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As at 23 March 2022, the date of this annual report, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 75, is the Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio
Electronics at the Peking University and worked as a professor
at the Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining the Group in
2001, Mr. Cheung was the chairman of Founder Technology Group
Corporation, a company listed in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) and a director of Founder Holdings Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He has extensive work experience in international
trade, finance, asset management and strategic planning. Mr.
Cheung was honoured with many awards, including being selected
as the young entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China,
and won the first prize of national golden award for enterprise
initiators in the 4th National Technology Industrialist Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 56, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from the Peking University with a
master’s degree in international relations and has over 30 years of
experience in the information technology industry and investment
activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman, chief executive officer and
a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL"), the Company’s substantial
shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000, Mr. Kui was the president
of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 53, is an Executive Director of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from
the Dalian University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in
computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu is also a director of
HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president
of a system integration company and has extensive experience in
computer systems integration of the financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 58, is an Executive Director of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from
the Peking University with a master’s degree in law. He has over 30
years of experience in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li
is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL in 1999, he worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February 2010. He
joined the Group in 2000.
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XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 55, is an Executive Director of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated
from the Peking University with a master’s degree in international
economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu worked for
several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. He has over 30 years
of experience in corporate management of enterprises in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 59, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 30
years” experience in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
major red chip company) and an independent non-executive
director of KWG Property Holding Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 65, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public
in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience
in law both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member
of the Inland Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and
has been appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 67, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas
at Austin with a bachelor’s degree in Statistics and Operations
Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than 28 years of experience in
electronic payments industry in Southeast Asia, Japan and the Great
China. Mr. Chang was the Senior Vice President, Global Clients
APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”) in Singapore. He was previously
VISA’s Greater China General Manager, Japan General Manager,
and senior country manager for Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines
and Indochina. He joined the Group in 2009 as a Non-Executive
Director and was re-designated as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 2016.
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LI HEGUO

Mr. Li, age 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from the Peking University with a
bachelor degree in international economics and a master degree
in economics. From July 1992 to June 2007, Mr. Li worked for
China Baoan Group Co., LTD., a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, and its subsidiaries, including Beijing Heng-Feng
Real Fstate Development Company Limited JEE1EE E#EA
&) serving as the President and General Manager. Mr. Li has over
27 years of experience in corporate management and strategic
development. Mr. Li is currently serving as the General Manager
in strategic development department of Fu Shou Yuan International
Group Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 1448). He joined the Group in 2021.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 42, is the President of BETT{IZ(IERAE (“VBIll
OPCO"). He graduated from the Hubei University of Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Technology. He has over 15
years of experience in third-party payment industry management.
He joined the Group in 2008.

FENG FAN

Mr. Feng, age 28, is the Chief Executive Officer of Hunan Hisun
Mobile Pay IT Limited. He graduated from the Peking University
with a bachelor’s degree in Finance and a master’s degree in
Finance. He has over 6 years of experience in the corporate service
and information technology industry. He joined the group in 2021.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 40, is the President of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech
Global Limited (“Shenzhen Hi Sun”). He graduated from the Central
South University with a bachelor’s degree in Telecommunications
Engineering. He also received a master’s degree in Engineering
Project Management from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University and a
master’s degree in business administration from the China Europe
International Business School. He has over 18 years of experience
in the information technology industry. He joined the Group in
2003.
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LIU XIAOZHEN

Mr. Liu, aged 39, is the President of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited (“Beijing Hi
Sun”). He graduated from the Shenzhen University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering. He has over 17 years of experience in the
financial technology industry. He joined the Group in 2004.

LILl

Mr. Li, age 46, is the President of Megahunt Technologies Inc.
(“Megahunt”). He graduated from the Tsinghua University with
a bachelor’s degree in engineering and a master’s degree in
engineering. He also received a degree of Executive Master of
Business Administration from China Europe International Business
School. He has over 24 years of experience in the integrated circuit
design industry. He joined the Group in 2010.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 43, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager of an international
public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | would like to present to
our Shareholders the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 (“FY2021”).

Key Investing and Financing Activities

Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”), formerly an
associated company, listed its American depository shares (“ADS”)
on the New York Stock Exchange on 9 February 2021 (New
York time) through an initial public offering priced at US$16.00
(equivalent to approximately HK$124.8) per ADS (each of which
represents two underlying Class A ordinary shares of Cloopen) (the
“Cloopen Listing”). Upon completion of the Cloopen Listing, the
Group held 55,677,341 Class A ordinary shares, classified as a
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI), with subsequent fair value movement recognised in other
comprehensive income. The Group recorded a non-cash aggregate
gain of approximately HK$3,055.7 million that arose in connection
with the Cloopen Listing, accordingly an increase in net profit
for FY2021 as compared to the year ended 31 December 2020
(“FY2020").

In December 2021, Megahunt Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt
HK”), a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company,
entered into share transfer agreements with certain purchasers
and Megahunt for the disposal of an aggregate of approximately
20% interest in Megahunt (the “Relevant Interest”) at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB208,727,200 (approximately
HK$254,647,000) (the “Disposal”).
disposal of the entire Relevant Interest, the Company’s interest in
Megahunt will decrease from approximately 65.73% to 45.73%
and Megahunt will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company and be
accounted for as an associate of the Company. As at 31 December

Upon completion of the

2021, the Disposal was partially completed and the Group's interest
in Megahunt decreased from approximately 65.73% to 54.10%
and Megahunt remained a subsidiary of the Company as at 31
December 2021.
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Overall Performance

The worldwide economy has been facing unprecedented challenges
since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in late 2019.
Various prevention and control measures in accordance with the
relevant national and local regulations on epidemic prevention
and control have been adopted in compliance with the national
epidemic prevention policies. In line with the stablization of the
various economic activities in Mainland China as a result of the
substantial success of the COVID-19 control measures which
managed to largely quell the spread of the virus in the country, the
Group reported a more normalized level of turnover for FY2021 as
compared to FY2020.

Consolidated turnover of the Group from continuing operations
amounted to HK$4,182.7 million, representing an increase of 9%
in FY2021 as compared to HK$3,844.6 million in FY2020. The
Group's share of results from an associated company, PAX Global
in FY2021, increased by 17% as compared to FY2020. Profit for
FY2021 totaled HK$3,685.0 million, as compared to HK$779.1
million in FY2020.

Meanwhile, to promote better efficiency and effectiveness in
management, during FY2021, we split our “Fintech solutions and
services” segment from the “Payment processing solutions” segment.
In January 2022, the first phase of the VBill Supply Chain Finance
(Phases 1-15) Asset-backed Securities Scheme (BE{T{J1IEHES
BR1-15 B E IS EIEETE) with a total issue size of RMB309.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$380.1 million) was
established.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take
hold of the various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in
2022. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express our appreciation and gratitude to Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung,
Richard, who would retire as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company with effect from the expiration of the
current service agreement on 19 April 2022, for his contribution
and services to the Company during his tenure of office.
Meanwhile, we would also like to take this opportunity to express
our utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for their continuous trust
and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
OUTLOOK

AND BUSINESS

Review of business performance of the Group during the reporting
year and the Group's business outlook are disclosed in the section
titled “Business Review” in the Report of the Directors.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group reported total assets
of HK$10,818.8 million (2020: HK$9,717.1 million), which
were financed by total liabilities of HK$3,327.8 million (2020:
HK$3,349.6 million) and total equity of HK$7,491.0 million (2020:
HK$6,367.5 million). The net asset value was HK$7,491.0 million
(2020: HK$6,367.5 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$2.698 as compared to HK$2.293 per share as at 31 December
2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had restricted bank balance
of HK$765.5 million (2020: HK$880.6 million), cash and cash
equivalents of HK$3,254.6 million (2020: HK$3,747.5 million)
and short-term borrowing of HK$2.4 million (2020: Nil). The net
cash position was HK$3,252.2 million as compared to HK$3,747.5
million as at 31 December 2020. The gearing ratio is calculated
as total debt divided by total capital, while total debt includes
borrowing, lease liabilities and written put option liability of the
Group. The gearing ratio was 11.1% (2020: 12.2%). The gearing
ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the continuing growth of
the Group's business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank borrowing of
HK$2.4 million made at RMB (2020: Nil) and banking facilities of
approximately HK$26.6 million (2020: HK$25.9 million). The bank
borrowing carried an interest rate of 4.25% per annum as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil). As at 31 December 2021, the banking
facilities were secured by the leasehold land and buildings of a
subsidiary of the Company, with a net carrying amount of HK$2.7
million (2020: HK$2.8 million) and HK$4.7 million (2020: HK$5.8
million), respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Approximately HK$2,626.1 million, HK$413.5 million, HK$979.4
million and HK$1.0 million of the Group’s restricted bank balance
and cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar and Euro respectively as at 31
December 2021.

Approximately HK$3,251.7 million, HK$305.7 million, HK$998.2
million, HK$69.7 million, HK$2.5 million and HK$0.2 million of
the Group’s restricted bank balance and cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar,
Japanese Yen, Macanese Pataca and Euro respectively as at 31
December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in note (H) and note (J) under the section titled
“Overall Financial Results and Position” in the Report of Directors
on pages 38 to 40, the Group held no significant investment as at
31 December 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Key Investing and Financing
Activities” on pages 47 and 48, the Group had no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2021.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US Dollar, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group's
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong Dollar or Renminbi may have an impact on the
operating results of the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A) Performance Guarantee Agreement with a customer

(B)

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance of
a service project of a subsidiary of the Company with a surety
of up to HK$60 million and to indemnify the customer against
any third-party claim of intellectual property right infringement
resulting from the acts of the said subsidiary. The Performance
Guarantee Agreement remained in full force and effect during
the year of 2021. As at 31 December 2021,
did not recognise any liability in relation to the Performance

the Company

Guarantee Agreement. The Directors considered the possibility
of reimbursement not probable.

Guarantee Agreement with subsidiaries of the Company

(i) In 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(the “2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”)
with Megahunt, Megahunt HK and Tianjin Megahunt
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianjin Megahunt”).
Pursuant to the 2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement,
the Company shall guarantee to repay the due and
unsettled debts of Megahunt, Megahunt HK, Tianjin
Megahunt individually and/or collectively of up to US$10
million incurred in relation to such manufacturing orders
they placed with the named manufacturer, should any
of them individually and/or collectively cease or fail to
honour its payment obligations.

Due to the further expansion of order scale, the Company
entered into a new guarantee agreement dated 22 April
2021 (the “2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”)
with the same counterparties. Pursuant to the 2021
Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement, the Company
shall guarantee to repay the due and unsettled debts of
Megahunt, Megahunt HK, Tianjin Megahunt individually
and/or collectively of up to US$20 million incurred in
relation to such manufacturing orders they placed with
the named manufacturer, should any of them individually
and/or collectively cease or fail to honour its payment
obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The 2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement was
terminated on 22 April 2021 and the entirety of the
Company’s obligations and liability thereunder, if any,
was effectively transferred to the 2021 Manufacturer
Guarantee Agreement. As at 31 December 2021, the
Company did not recognise any liability in relation to the
2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement. The Directors
considered the possibility of reimbursement not probable.

In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(the “2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”) with Megahunt
and an independent manufacturer (“OEM”), in respect
of Megahunt’'s payment obligations against the OEM.
Pursuant to the 2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement, the
Company shall guarantee to repay Megahunt's due and
unsettled debts of up to US$10 million owed to the OEM
which are incurred in relation to such manufacturing
orders Megahunt placed with the OEM should it cease or
fail to honour its payment obligations. As at 31 December
2021, the Company did not recognise any liability in
relation to the 2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement. The
Directors considered the possibility of reimbursement not
probable.

(i)
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2021.
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EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2021 was 2,759. The breakdown of employees by division is as

=]

FERR T —F+-RB=+T—HZEERHS
2,759 N - (B EIZEFIMBHUNT !

follows:
Payment processing solutions TN BERIEERSE 890
Fintech solutions and services TR AR 5 R R AR 148
Information security chips and solutions ERREEERKRBRAE 132
Platform operation solutions TREEHMRAE 704
Financial solutions ERUBRRS 613
Others H 231
Corporate office AR ER 41
2,759

The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive. Directors are entitled to a fixed
director’s fee, discretionary bonus and other benefits, which are
determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group’s
corporate goals and objectives in accordance with the remuneration
policy of the Company. Employees are remunerated with fixed
monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses. The
Group also operates certain share option schemes and share
award scheme for the purpose of attracting, retaining, motivating
and rewarding the employees. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs of
the Group's businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group's
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group’s current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL
OPERATIONS

ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are provision of payment
processing solutions, fintech solutions and services, platform
operation solutions, financial solutions and sales of information
security chips and solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 120.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year (2020: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 29 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND EQUITY-
LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share capital are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Option Schemes of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company operated
two share option schemes adopted on 29 April 2011 (the “2011
Scheme”) and 18 May 2021 (the “2021 Scheme”) respectively, both
having an effective period of 10 years from the respective adoption
date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The 2011 Scheme

The 2011 Scheme expired on 29 April 2021. At the date of this
annual report, no further share options may be granted and no
further share is available for issue under the 2011 Scheme.

The purpose of the 2011 Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented employees for the future developments and expansion of
the Group. Eligible participants include any full-time employees and
directors of the Company, any subsidiary or associated company.

The maximum number of Shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of all exercised and outstanding options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not in aggregate exceed
1% of the number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of the aforesaid 1% limit shall be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders with such participant and his/her associates
abstaining from voting. For options granted to a substantial
Shareholder or an Independent Non-Executive Director, or any of
their respective associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1% and
HK$5 million in aggregate value based on the closing price of the
Shares on the date of grant.

The exercise period of the options granted is determined at the
discretion of the Board and in any event shall commence on the
date of grant and expire within 10 years therefrom.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and no performance target must be
achieved by the grantee before the option can be exercised.
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A share option shall take effect when duly accepted by the grantee
and the Company having received HK$1 from the grantee as
consideration for the grant within 21 days after the offer.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares on the date of grant (which must be a trading day); (ii)
a price being the average of the closing prices of the Shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report, there was no outstanding share option under
the Scheme. No share option of the Company was granted, vested,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2011 Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The 2021 Scheme

The Company operates the 2021 Scheme for the purpose of
attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees of the
Group or associated companies (including executive and non-
executive directors) in order to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants include the
Group's or associated companies’ full-time employees, executive
and non-executive directors. The 2021 Scheme, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period
of 10 years therefrom until 18 May 2031.

The maximum number of Shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of all exercised and outstanding options granted to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not in aggregate exceed 1%
of the number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in
excess of the aforesaid 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of
the Shareholders with such grantee and his/her associates abstaining
from voting. For options granted to a substantial Shareholder or
an Independent Non-Executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1% and HK$5 million in
aggregate value based on the closing price of the Shares on the date
of grant.

As at the date of this annual report, 277,683,383 Shares were
available for issue under the 2021 Scheme, representing 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue.
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The exercise period of the options granted under the 2021 Scheme
shall be determined at the discretion of the Board and in any event
shall commence on the date of the offer of the options and expire
within 10 years therefrom.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and no performance target must be
achieved by the grantee before the option can be exercised.

A share option shall take effect when duly accepted by the grantee
and the Company having received HK$1 from the grantee as
consideration for the grant within 21 days after the offer.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares on the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii)
a price being the average of the closing prices of the Shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, there was no outstanding share option granted under
the 2021 Scheme. No share option was granted, vested, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the 2021 Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Further details of the 2021 Scheme can be found in the circular of
the Company dated 13 April 2021.

Share Option Scheme of VBill (Cayman)

VBIll Limited (“VBill (Cayman)”) operates a share option scheme
(the “VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme”) which complies with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The scheme was adopted on 16
October 2020 and became effective on 18 November 2020. Unless
otherwise amended or terminated, the scheme will be effective for
a period of 10 years from 18 November 2020 until 18 November
2030.

The purpose of the VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme is to
enable VBill (Cayman) to grant options (the “VBill (Cayman)
Option(s)”) to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the VBill (Cayman) and
its subsidiaries (the “VBill (Cayman) Group”). Eligible participants
(the “VBill (Cayman) Participant(s)”) include any director, senior
management and employee of the Company and the VBill (Cayman)
Group.
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The principal terms of the VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The total number of shares of VBill (Cayman) (the “VBill (Cayman)
Shares”) issued and which may fall to be issued to each VBill
(Cayman) Participant upon exercise of the options granted under the
VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the VBill (Cayman) (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the number of VBill (Cayman) Shares in issue, unless otherwise
approved by the Shareholders with such VBill (Cayman) Participant
and his close associates (or his associates if such participant is
a connected person) abstaining from voting. For VBill (Cayman)
Options granted or to be granted to any substantial Shareholder,
Independent Non-Executive Director or their respective associates,
the said limit shall be reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant of VBill
(Cayman) Options in excess of such limit is subject to Shareholders’
approval at general meeting, with the relevant participant
concerned, his associates and all core connected persons of the
Company abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this annual report, 930.8 VBill (Cayman) Shares
were available for issue under the VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme, representing 10% of the total number of VBill (Cayman)
Shares in issue.

The exercise period of a VBill (Cayman) Option is to be determined
by the board of directors of VBill (Cayman), which shall not be
beyond 10 years from the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill (Cayman) Option
must be held nor any performance targets must be achieved by a
grantee before a VBill (Cayman) Option can be exercised, subject
to VBIill (Cayman)’s board of directors’ discretion, on a case-by-case
basis or generally, to impose such conditions, such as minimum
performance targets and other terms as they consider appropriate.

Upon acceptance of the grant of a VBill (Cayman) Option, the
grantee shall, within 7 days after the grant, pay HK$1 to VBill
(Cayman) as nominal consideration for the grant.
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The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price to
be determined by the board of directors of VBill (Cayman) in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant VBill
(Cayman) Option, with reference to factors which may include
the business performance, value of VBill (Cayman) Group and
individual performance of the relevant grantee, but in any event, the
subscription price shall not be less than the net asset value of the
interests of VBill (Cayman) subject to the relevant option calculated
from the latest audited accounts of VBill (Cayman).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no VBill (Cayman)
Option was granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at 1
January 2021, 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, there was no outstanding share option granted under the
VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme.

Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO

VBill OPCO operates a share option scheme (“VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”) which complies with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. The scheme was adopted on 15 January 2018 and became
effective on 5 February 2018. Unless otherwise amended or
terminated, the scheme will be effective for a period of 6 years from
5 February 2018 until 5 February 2024.

The purpose of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme is to enable
VBill OPCO to grant options of equity interest of VBill OPCO (“VBill
OPCO Options”) to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to VBill OPCO and its
subsidiaries (“VBill OPCO Group”). Eligible participants of the VABill
OPCO Share Option Scheme include any directors, supervisors,
general managers and other employees of any member of VBill
OPCO Group.

The principal terms of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:
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The maximum registered capital of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO
Registered Capital”) contributed and to be contributed upon
exercise of the VBill OPCO Options granted to each participant of
the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding VBill OPCO Options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the VBill OPCO Registered Capital, unless
otherwise approved by the Shareholders with such participant
and his close associates (or his associates if such participant is a
connected person) abstaining from voting. For VBill OPCO Options
granted or to be granted to any substantial Shareholder, Independent
Non-Executive Director, or their respective associates, the said limit
shall be reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant of VBill OPCO Options
in excess of such limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval at
general meeting, with the relevant participant(s) concerned and all
core connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of VBill OPCO Share Options shall be
determined by VBill OPCO'’s board of directors at the time of the
grant, which initially shall not be beyond 5 years from the date of
grant. The Shareholders approved certain amendments with respect
to the exercise period of the VBill OPCO Options at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 November 2020,
pursuant to which the exercise period of (i) VBill OPCO Options
to be granted under the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme is
extended from not beyond 5 years to not beyond 6 years from the
date of grant; and (ii) the VBill OPCO Options previously granted is
extended from 3 years to 6 years from the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill OPCO Option
must be held nor any performance targets must be achieved by
a grantee before a VBill OPCO Option can be exercised, subject
to VBill OPCO'’s board of directors’ discretion, on a case-by-case
basis or generally, to impose such conditions, such as minimum
performance targets and other terms as they consider appropriate.

Each grantee shall, within 7 days after the grant, pay RMB1 to VBill
OPCO upon acceptance of the VBill OPCO Options granted.
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The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be determined
by the board of directors of VBill OPCO in its absolute discretion
at the time of the grant of the VBill OPCO Option, with reference
to factors which may include the business performance, value of
VBill OPCO Group and the grantee’s individual performance, but in
any event, shall not be less than the net asset value of the relevant
equity interests of VBill OPCO subject to the VBill OPCO Option
calculated based on the latest audited accounts of VBill OPCO.

The subscription price of VBill OPCO Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of VBill
OPCO on the Main Board or Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of VBill OPCO must be not lower than the new issue price
(if any). In particular, any VBill OPCO Options that would have
been granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of VBill OPCO would be subject to
this requirement.

The following table sets out the movements of the VBill OPCO
Options during the year ended 31 December 2021:

EAERABNZRBESBTHZESENEE
BOTNBREN2EETHNERZEFRR BE
REFEANZBARBERREENBEEE > HIME
FERT IR ERRET I ROPEEZIRE
FRstEZ BT IRRERBZ BT ERREZE
EFE

RERBFASKET MBS EARNCEMTE
INEBERGRARITEHREERITN ETHBR PR
RUERBETMEBRIEZ DEETSEIIETE @
B) ~LHRZE  FRIERATRE @R FrGEMEE5H
BHERZF EHZAEBRXY Fi/NERRBEERT
L BB ERE 2 EAEIT A ERERET
ZRRE °

TREIHESZ - —F+A=T—HILEFER
TEREZES

Amount of VBill OPCO Registered Capital subject to the VBill OPCO Options

REETIRRERRNOETIHRREEE

Exercise
price
(for every
RMB1.00 in the Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
VBill OPCO as at Granted Exercised cancelled as at
Registered 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Capital) 2021 the period the period the period 2021
T1EfE
(BT KRIBRZ-% RZF_—F
ettt —B—H WAk +-A=+-AH
EBA e =k AE#1.007) RETE MRkl HARETE it RETHE
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARET AR
Mr. Shen Zheng (“Mr. Shen”) 5 February 2018 12.51 13,629,500 - - - 13,629,500
BEEE (MREL) “Z-\#”R1H
Mr. Li Huimin 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
REGEE —Z-)\f¥-H1A
Mr. Guo Yi (“Mr. Guo”) 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
PEF%E (BEE) “EZ-)\#”"F1H
Total: 27,259,000 - - - 27,259,000
At

Mr. Shen is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO
and a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr. Li
Huimin is the President of VBill OPCO. Mr. Guo is the senior vice
president of VBill OPCO.
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As at the date of this annual report, no more VBill OPCO Options
are available for issue unless Shareholders” approval is obtained.

Share Option Scheme of Megahunt

Megahunt operates a share option scheme (“Megahunt Share
Option Scheme”) which complies with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. The scheme was adopted on 4 July 2018 and became
effective on 10 August 2018, while certain terms thereof were
amended by the Shareholders at general meeting held on 27 June
2019. Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the scheme will
be effective for a period of 5 years from 10 August 2018 until 10
August 2023.

The purpose of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme (as amended) is
to enable Megahunt to grant options of equity interest of Megahunt
(“Megahunt Options”) to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to Megahunt
and to provide the selected participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in Megahunt and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of equity interests in Megahunt
for the benefit of Megahunt and its shareholder(s) as a whole.
Eligible participants of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme include
the directors or senior management of the Company, Megahunt or
its subsidiaries.

The maximum registered capital of Megahunt (“Megahunt
Registered Capital”) contributed and to be contributed upon
exercise of the Megahunt Options granted to each participant of
the Megahunt Share Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding Megahunt Options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Megahunt Registered Capital, unless
otherwise approved by the Shareholders with such participant
and his close associates (or his associates if such participant is a
connected person) abstaining from voting. For options granted or
to be granted to a substantial Shareholder, an Independent Non-
Executive Director, or any of their respective associates, the said
limit is reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant of options in excess of
such limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval at general meeting,
with the participant concerned and all core connected persons of
the Company abstain from voting.
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The exercise period of the Megahunt Options shall be determined
by the board of directors of Megahunt at the time of making the
offer of the Megahunt Options and in any event shall not be beyond
10 years from the relevant date of grant.

Although there is no general requirement for any minimum period
for which any Megahunt Option must be held or any performance
targets which must be achieved before any Megahunt Option
granted can be exercised, the board of directors of Megahunt has
discretion on a case-by-case basis or generally to impose such
conditions, including (i) minimum periods for which the Megahunt
Option must be held; and/or (i) minimum performance targets that
must be reached before the Megahunt Options can be exercised
in whole or in part; and/or (iii) such other terms on the Megahunt
Options where appropriate. At the special general meeting of the
Company held on 30 December 2019, the Shareholders approved
amendments to terms of the Megahunt Options granted on 3 June
2019, pursuant to which such previously granted Megahunt Options
became vested and exercisable with immediate effect from 30
December 2019.

Each grantee shall, within 7 days of the grant, pay HK$1 to
Megahunt upon acceptance of the Megahunt Options granted.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price
to be determined by the board of directors of Megahunt in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant Megahunt
Options with reference to factors which may include the business
performance, value of Megahunt and performance of the individual
grantee.

The subscription price of Megahunt Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of
Megahunt on the Main Board or Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of Megahunt must be not lower than the new issue price (if
any). In particular, any Megahunt Options that would have been
granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of Megahunt would be subject to
this requirement.

As at the date of this annual report, no further Megahunt Options
remained outstanding and no further registered capital of Megahunt
was available for issue under the Megahunt Share Option Scheme.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, no Megahunt Option
was granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at 1 January
2021, 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, there
was no outstanding option granted under the Megahunt Share
Option Scheme.

Share Award Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) which became effective on 29 June 2021 (the “Adoption
Date”). Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the scheme will
be effective for a period of 10 years from 29 June 2021 until 29 June
2031.

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is (i) to recognize and
reward the contribution of certain eligible participants to the growth
and development of the Group and to provide incentives in order
to (i) retain them for continual operation and development of the
Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for further development
of the Group.

Eligible participant include any (i) employee, (ii) non-Executive
Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or (iii)
adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant to or expert in any
area of business or business development of any member of the
Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest; and (iv) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the development
and growth of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is operated by an independent trustee
which may purchase the existing Shares from and/or off the market
by utilising the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s
resources and be held in trust for the relevant selected participants
until such Shares are vested. For the avoidance of doubt, no new
Share(s) will be issued and allotted by the Company pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares which may be subject to an award
or awards to a selected participant shall not in aggregate exceed
1.5% of the issued Shares as at the Adoption Date.

Each selected participant shall pay HK$1 to the Company upon
acceptance of the share award granted.
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The trustee may purchase existing Shares, via on-market and/or
off-market transactions, using funds allocated by the Board out of
the Company’s resources. In the event that the Trustee effects any
purchases by on-market transactions, the Trustee shall purchase
existing Shares at the prevailing market price (subject to such
maximum price as may be from time to time prescribed by the
Board). In the event that the Trustee effects any purchases by off-
market transactions, the purchase price shall not be higher than the
lower of the following: (i) the closing market price on the date of
such purchase, and (ii) the average closing market price for the five
(5) preceding trading days on which the Shares were traded on the
Stock Exchange.

As at the date of this annual report, the maximum number of
Shares that may be purchased by the trustee for the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme shall be no more than 277,683,383 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

Since the Adoption Date and up to the date of this annual report, no
Share has been awarded under the Share Award Scheme. As at 31
December 2021, there were no Share held in trust under the Share
Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed in this section above, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 or subsisted at as 31 December 2021.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as calculated under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$23,344,000
(2020: HK$13,728,000). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2020: HK$1,290,857,000) may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 276.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any Shares during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Turnover EBITDA?
L EBITDA’
2021 2020 2021 2020
- 2ITF IBI-F ZI%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[z THERT TR THET TER
(Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (=5
Continuing operations BRTEEY
Payment processing solutions TARZRERARE 1 3,346,991 3,127,636 809,910 822,237
Fintech solutions and services SRB RS ZRRE 2 213,843 160,303 18,966 11
Platform operation solutions TREERAFR 3 191,697 176,873 (5,660) 3,864
Financial solutions SRRARE 4 336,396 271,487 (8,202) (33,494)
Others Hi 5 101,176 138,289 (26,821) (1,892)
Segmental results NEEEE 4,190,103 3,874,588 788,193 790,726
Less: Inter-segment turnover R =] (7,419) (29,970) - -
Total &t 4,182,684 3,844,618 788,193 790,726
Depreciation & (248,248) (243,887)
Amortisation i (853) (122)
Write off of property, plant and equipment it ENE e (2,257) (26,156)
Net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value ?ﬁ’\¥@ SABHZEHMEEZ
through profit or loss ATHEWEEE B 181,191 245,866
Employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary ~ — M EAE 2 RS EN:HE C - (40,191)
Segmental operating profit PEEZER 718,026 726,236
Unallocated other income KAEEMUA 4,090 6,798
Unallocated corporate expenses KO EEET (102,232) (89,524)
Operating profit KR 619,884 643,510
Turnover EBITDA?
EEE EBITDA’
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EZ-F “EZIZR ZEC-F ZZC%E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
34 T#ET TER THET TER
(Restated) (Restated)
(&5 (=5
Discontinued operation BRIEEEEY
Information security chips and solutions EEZEDAMBARZ 454,480 298,753 79,255 16,161
Deprecation e (8,564) (4,818)
Amortisation ] (2,666) (1,803)
Segmental operating profit DT E R 68,025 9,540

fEREHRIR S - RIE ITE R SRR (BB 0 RR
BIEMIEME BB ARE BATEFABEZSRE
EZATEWmEFRR—RHNB AR Z BE52EEl-

Represents earnings/(losses) before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation, and excludes write off of property, plant and equipment,
net fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary.



28

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Report of the Directors

HPEFWE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT  fBRAR S Uk zER
2021 2020
IEI-F “2°%F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THT FHT
(Restated)
(==51)
Continuing operations RELEER
Revenue KA A 4,182,684 3,844,618
Cost of sales HEME C (2,958,603) (2,836,288)
Gross profit EF 1,224,081 1,008,330
Other income HitA B 95,686 143,971
Other gains, net Hittla 328 B 181,265 245,300
Selling expenses HERT C (119,086) (81,224)
Administrative expenses THER C (649,028) (570,415)
Employees’ incentive programme of a subsicliary —BNEAT 2 BB RE: 3 C - (40,191)
Credit impairment loss EERESE C (113,034) (62,261)
Operating profit ESpeyll 619,884 643,510
Finance costs B 0 (70,588) (63,360)
Share of results of investments accounted for using BB EARZREZ £ D
the equity method 352,333 301,512
Loss on deemed acquisition and dilution of an investment REERBE BN EARZ
accounted for using the equity method REMSERE (9,837) (1,044)
Gains on deemded disposals of investments accounted for RELELEREARZ £
using the equity method K&z W@ 2,861,475 -
Profit before income tax BRETSIRANRR 3,753,267 880,618
Income tax expense FIiSImET (129,531) (108,987)
Profit from continuing operations HELERHE 3,623,736 771,631
Profit from discontinued operation BAILREER R R 61,300 7,510
3,685,036 779,141
Profit attributable to: e A
— Owners of the Company YN 2PN 3,521,526 656,685
- Non-controlling interests — R R 163,510 122,456
3,685,036 779,141
Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations FARREANEGEFESEES HKS per share HKS$ per share
attributable to the owners of the Company: B2 SRER shiEn SkEn
Basic EX 1.253 0.234
Diluted 2 1.222 0.204
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the owners of FATER AEEER
the Company: Z28RER:
Basic 2N 1.268 0.236
Diluted 3 1237 0.206
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET SRS EERRAR
As at 31 December
®+ZBA=+—H
2021 2020
ZEZ-fF ZZIZE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MifzE TR TEr
ASSETS BE
Investment properties and property, plant and equipment BREMERNE BERZE F 265,648 388,537
Right-of-use assets FRELE G 60,133 81,655
Intangible assets BREE 25,812 11,231
Deferred income tax assets FEFEREE - 17
Investments accounted for using the equity method DEREANRZERE H 2,695,559 2,404,813
Financial assets at fair value through profit o loss RATESABGRZEHERE [ 109,303 543,040
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income RATES AR ARG SHEE J 629,711 =
Inventories 58 K 18,427 121,445
Trade and bills receivables FEUER TR FE W E 4 L 168,409 273,894
Other financial assets at amortised cost and other current assets BEERAEZ ENEREER L
HtRBEE 158,821 183,240
Loan receivables FEWER M 2,228,327 1,043,079
Amounts due from investments accounted for using the equity method  FEUR A& A A IR 2 R E 2 B N - 19,957
Current income tax recoverable Bl e 12,701 11,990
Bank deposits RITER 0 6,832 6,181
Restricted bank balance SRR AR 0 765,462 880,552
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 0 3,254,558 3,747,468
Assets classified as held for sale NEAFFHEZEE R 419,105 -
Total assets BEME 10,818,808 9,717,099
EQUITY tEit
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company BARERAEBEESRiE
Share capital B 6,942 6,942
Reserves i 6,416,362 5,535,124
6,423,304 5,542,066
Non-controlling interests RS 1,067,690 825,438
Total equity e 7,490,994 6,367,504
LIABILITIES afE
Written put option liabilities EHLIAREE Q 902,581 831,207
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFEHREE 2,969 371
Trade and bills payables FARRRENEE P 505,583 526,804
Payables for payment processing solutions business TRARFERERAS REBZ EAREB P 624,296 828,619
Other payables and accruals HEN AR A p 1,076,401 1,013,991
Amounts due to investments accounted for using the equity method S MUEZE AR Z R EZ B N 6,304 43,936
Current income tax liabilities EmERas 92,855 51,189
Lease liabilities HEaRE G 31,576 53,478
Borrowing RN 2,446 -
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale ENEARFLEZEE
ERERNEE R 82,803 -
Total liabilities afElE 3,327,814 3,349,595
Total equity and liabilities EakaREEHE 10,818,808 9,717,099
HK$ per share HKS per share
SRET SRAET
Net assets per share SREEFE 2,698 2.293
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT SRR SIRERER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+ZA=t+—HLEE

2021 2020

ZEZ-&§ “TC%E

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTAT TAT

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities mEEE (FrR) /PSR EE (743,189) 100,932

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities REZBFE/ FiB) RE3E 131,596 (277,704)

Net cash generated from financing activities MEEDRESHERE 100,361 50,284

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBYRLFE (551,232) (126,488)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNzRERFELEEBY 3,747,468 3,712,567

Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents RERREEBYZERNE 59,064 161,389

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZRERFEEEN 3,295,300 3,747,468

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEM 2O

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 3,254,558 3,747,468
Cash and cash equivalents included in assets classified as held for sale R&RFREZEMADEAFE

HEZEE 40,742 -

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERZBRERREEEY 3,295,300 3,747,468

Net cash flows of discontinued operation BRLERELEZREREFE (24,210) 40,365




FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021 (“YEAR 2021"), the
consolidated turnover of the Group from continuing operations
amounted to HK$4,182.7 million, representing an increase of 9%
when compared with the year ended 31 December 2020 (“YEAR
2020"). Profit for the year totaled HK$3,685.0 million as compared
to HK$779.1 million in YEAR 2020.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$10,818.8 million, when compared with
HK$9,717.1 million as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2021, net current assets amounted to HK$3,816.8 million, when
compared with HK$3,778.5 million as at 31 December 2020.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In view of continual development of the Group, management
has implemented the internal organization alignment to better
and more closely align our segment reporting with the Group’s
strategic decision and market dynamics to better serve the market
and the customers. In particular, separate business units have been
established for its payment processing solutions business and fintech
solutions and services business, while electronic power meters
and solutions is no longer separately disclosed in management
reporting. The new organisational structure has been adopted as
the Group's reporting format effective from 1 January 2021. The
comparative segment information has been revised to conform with
the current organisational structure.
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7 ElE

REBEE_E-_—F+_-_B=+—HEFE(ZZE
TFE)  AEEFELEER GO E X
#4,182,700,0008 0  REEZZZEF+A
—t+—HIEFE (ZTZ2ZZFE) 1809%  FRE
FEFH%3,685,000,00087 M_E_FEELA
779,100,000 7T

wEEasxms N _Z_—4S+_A=+—81"
BE4EEA10,818,800,0008 70 MR S _ZF
+ B =+—HE8%9,717,100,0008 T IR —_ T _—
F+ZHA=+—H8 "HEEFEA3,816,800,000
BT MRIZZEF+ZA=+—HH A
3,778,500,00078 7T ©

AR O]

BNAEERNEER EEEEEMABABRE
haR > LUBEM B0 $RR & B AL A E E R EE R
RRTHHBE HMBEF AT S RE R RHERT
LTHR *&EBEMEINRZREBRTEER
REMBRBRADERRBEB D MIIEBE
i MEBENERBADEFIBNEERETER
KB MHEBREERE -2 - —F—F—Hit
ERMATEERERA - ERDEER DERE
ERIBVAEBRIBIEHEST -
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the results of the
information security chips and solutions segment are presented as
discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (“HKFRS 5”). Last
year comparative segment information has been restated to conform
with the current year presentation. Please also refer to note (R)
below.

(1) Payment processing solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =ELEH

EBITDA? EBITDA?

Employees’ incentive programme ~ —fEHi B AR Z B8
of a subsidiary 2Rt 3

Write off of property, WIS ZE -~ BB Rt
plant and equipment

Operating profit S =iyl

*  Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, excludes write off of property, plant and equipment and
employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary

REE_Z-_—F+_A=Z+—HBLEE 8%
EORKRBRALEDENEERESBMBERE
R BRI EHE 2 IFRENE E R DR LS EFS

(TEBMBFREENES5H) 27 AR IKEE
o AEMIERDEENLEIUMNEGEREENE
T B2 T XHIER)

(1) INARZEREERSE

BXRIFIEIE

2021 2020 Change
B —ECEF pf0)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

F#ET FET

(Restated)

==l
3,342,837 3,107,080 +8%
809,910 822,237 1%
N/A
- 40,191 AEA
2,257 26,156 -91%
579,396 529,978 +9%

* RBINEIERZEXE

ERETFI B M RIE T E RS R T 81E
WsEME BERRER—ENB AR EE %R

58



(2)

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$3,342.8 million, as
compared to HK$3,107.1 million in YEAR 2020. By end of
YEAR 2021,
was approximately RMB139 billion. Transaction volume being
processed through this segment increased as a result of a
gradual resumption of offline consumer consumption of goods
and services in mainland China resulting from the considerable

monthly transaction volume in December 2021

success in managing the COVID-19 pandemic and the
epidemic prevention and control measures adopted across the
country.

Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$579.4 million,
9% up as compared to YEAR 2020. The increase in segmental
operating profit is primarily attributable to the decline in write-
off of property, plant and equipment as well as the share option
expenses. During YEAR 2021, additional resources were placed
in the development of new digital service products.

Fintech solutions and services
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =EXEY
EBITDA? EBITDA?

—including credit impairment loss —@iE(EEFEEE
Operating profit/(loss) rERF, (B8

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation

(2

BHEH (FE) ARAF T EER

Report of the Directors

HHE WS

NEFEEEEEA3,342,800,0008 T M _E
TEEA3,107,100,0008 T - HE T~ —
EF‘EE’:::—EJr BHBERZEN
ABAREE,390B T BEZDBEENR
%%E%ﬁCOVIDJ9F|ﬁ7§’zﬁ§\%ﬂ%ﬁuﬁﬂ
BEHEEE S mBREERRINEREK
NG T HESENE R ERBINEEZ S
ERETIg A o

DAL E RN A579,400,00058 75 R _-Z
TEFE L% DELE R IEMEE
FRRMEEYZE BB MR EURERER
TR R IEZ—F s KABRAZEINE
BRSNS T ERFEER -

) BRI RRIR S AR
EXRIIEE

2021 2020 Change
—EI—fF —EIERF g=if3)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FHET TFET

(Restated)

(Ges=zl))
212,552 159,127 +34%
18,966 11 +172,318%
113,034 67,026 +69%
12,590 (5,084) N/A &

* REINBERZEEE

P IEREHRIE S IR I E R A B A
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(3)

To promote better efficiency and effectiveness in management,
during YEAR 2021, we split our “Fintech solutions and services”
segment from the “Payment processing solutions” segment.
In YEAR 2021, segmental turnover amounted to HK$212.6
million as compared to HK$159.1 million in YEAR 2020,
representing an increase of approximately 34%. Micro-leading
business was stable while supply chain financing services
business increased drastically. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$12.6 million as compared to segmental
operating loss of HK$5.1 million in YEAR 2020. Increase
in credit impairment loss was mainly due to additional
impairment loss provision on long aged loan receivable.

Platform operation solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* Sk

EBITDA? EBITDA?

Net fair value gains on BATESAB®mZ
financial assets at fair value ETMEEZAFE
through profit or loss W P 5R

Operating profit SNyl

* Turnover from external customers

Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes fair value gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

In YEAR 2021, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to China Mobile
Fintech, the IVR Base of China Mobile and the Animation
Base of China Mobile. During the year, segmental turnover
amounted to HK$189.7 million as compared to HK$168.6
million in YEAR 2020. Segmental operating profit amounted to
HK$171.0 million as compared to HK$244.7 million in YEAR
2020, which is mainly due to a decrease in net fair value gains
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the
Convertible Series C Preference Shares and Convertible Series
D Preference Shares of Cloopen Group Holding Limited held
by the Group for YEAR 2021.

ARDEEMERMH NS —FE » #fM
& RS ARR S 2 R AR DR T2 (4325
BRIBRAF R DEDRIR T —FE
DI EEAA212,600,0008T M_E_FF
FE#3159,100,000787T » 1 iN4934% o /NEEE TR
KRB MRS REER ARG R
DEBLSEHER 512,600,000 7T TS _TFE
EofEE R 45,100,00078 7T © 15 BB ER
BB EERRRERREWERNEEINRE
1B ERTE

(3) TFEEEMRRAE
FEXIBIEE
2021 2020 Change
e TERIEF pf0)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FHET TET
189,723 168,635 +13%
(5,660) 3,864 N/A iE B
181,191 245,866 -26%
171,043 244,711 -30%

* REINDERZEEE

fERSHHIE R IRIEMITEREEREY) KT
ERATESAREZ ERMEEZ AT ERT

ATEC-EE - RPAMEATEER 8
FIVREM & PR EHENEEMIBHEE U
SRS E RS EBEERR MR-
FR - DEEEEEEA189,700,0008 7T =
—EEEH]A168,600,00078 7T © 9 B AL EH
F#171,000,00088 5 M-S ZZ2FELA
244,700,000 7 LA EBHRMAER R
—E T —FEPMFACloopen Group Holding
LimitedZ C& 7| AT BB ST AR DR 5 AT A A B
SEREATEFABRZ EMEEZ ATEW
PR



(4) Financial solutions

(5)

Key performance indicators

Turnover* =E$0h
EBITDA? EBITDA?
Operating loss FES ) SEi

* Turnover from external customers

Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation

In YEAR 2021, segmental turnover amounted to HK$336.4
million, as compared to HK$271.5 million in YEAR 2020.
Segmental operating loss totaled HK$15.3 million, as
compared to HK$38.5 million in YEAR 2020. The increase in
segmental turnover and the decrease in segmental operating
loss were mainly due to the more normalized operations
given the gradual resumption of the Group’s delivery of on-
site services to customers.

Others

Other business operations mainly included our electronic
power meters business and various new business projects in
development stage. Turnover from these businesses contributed
approximately 2.4% of the total consolidated turnover from
continuing operations of the Group. The decline in turnover
and an increase in EBITDA loss from other business operations
were mainly due to the shrinkage in shipment volume of
electronic power meters business during the year.

)
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@) ERBRAER

FEXRIFISE
2021 2020 Change
—E—F TETERE gt
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FHT FHET

336,396 271,487 +24%
(8,202) (33,494) N/A & B
(15,310) (38,533) N/A & B

* RBEIBERZEXE

FEARETH B RIR T EE RS R A T

A= =

N E_—FECHDEEXREA
336,400,0008 70 M _ S _SFEL A
271,500,000/ 0 DAL EEFIEE S

15,300, oooﬁém ) ﬁ’ﬁ_;f_;ﬁifﬁui%

?%%‘Eﬂﬁﬁ"\fﬁiuﬂﬂﬁ’\$%L/EWME
BEFREHRERE  EEEEBMER
E°

Hith
HthEBEETRORBAEFEEREFT RS
BREERRITEFRE REEBNEXER
1% ’JTEZIK%JEE%%E%%%%?%?@%%@Q
KBERARY2.4% FRHMEBEZSZERBE NER
EBITDABIRIE NS T B AN B BEMET
BIHH & S 48R, -
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OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

(B)

©)

Revenue

The consolidated turnover from continuing operations
amounted to HK$4,182.7 million, representing an increase of
9% over YEAR 2020. Such increase was mainly contributed by
an increase in segmental turnover of our payment processing
solutions segment. Please also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above on
segmental performance.

Other income
Decrease in other income was due to decrease in interest
income and government subsidies in YEAR 2021.

Cost of sales and operating expenses

Despite an increase in turnover during YEAR 2021, cost of
sales did not increase proportionally. In YEAR 2020, in an effort
to ride out the peak of the pandemic, we offered additional
incentives to merchant recruiting agents in the payment
processing solutions segment. Such initiative was well rewarded
in YEAR 2021 and business gradually recovered. Meanwhile,
the increased proportion of turnover from our fintech solutions
and services segment also increases the overall gross margin
ratio.

Increase in operating expenses was mainly due to increase in
staff cost of the Group during the year and additional selling
expenses related to merchant digital transformation under the
payment processing solutions segment.

Credit impairment loss was primarily due to impairment loss on
aged loan receivable balances under the fintech solutions and
services segment.

(D) Share of results of investments accounted for using the

equity method

Amount mainly represented share of the results of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), an associated company
of the Company, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

As an ordinary shareholder of Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”), the then associated company of the Company,
the Group's share of loss exceeded its interest in the ordinary
shares of Cloopen prior to the listing of its American depositary
shares on the New York Stock Exchange on 9 February 2021
(New York time) through an initial public offering.

54
=

AR R AR

A) A

(B)

©

FBREET 2 iR E %£58744,182,700,0007%8
RIS TEEEEMNI% BREIEMNEER
RENRABREBAFED B DIRE 5E1E
NOFREL o TReB 2R _EBisE(1)EG) 2 DEaRIR

Hethlg A
RZZ2 - —FEEME AR T ERFBWEA
R BRbRL

HEMETREERZ

BE_T - —FENEXRAMER BHE
AT RIZEEAIE I - R =T =T FE > R I
SNRGEERRTTZDRBERERFR
HERIMIE SNEBRBHEE - BREIR
—ET-FEESREFOIR BRFHMNES
BHEE R RSB KBRS EZRR
BOBERBEGILEMNTR < BEEMNKAMIRE
Fto

MERSIEMLERENFASERS THE
BINEZNRZRERRFENEZERHT
{CERLERRRIMEERIS

EEREBENIEZHEN SRR S ER
AR5 0 4578 T By E HA FE R & R A BR DY R B S
e

(D) BAGUEREZARZIREZER

ERERIBENEARDZHEATBER
BRARAR (BB - ERD R EFT
iz G-

J*Cloopen Group Holding Limited (T Cloopen J)
RERBERFZHMERNE) A —F AN
B (AR BRERABEERHEEREFT
BEAR TR 4R 49585532 5 P _E Al > 1E#3Cloopenz.
BRI ER AL E (LA EBIAE I Cloopen
BBk e



(E) Fair value gain on convertible preference shares of

Cloopen, deemed disposal gain on ordinary shares

of Cloopen then held by the Group and other
comprehensive loss on financial asset at FVOCI

The Group’s then associated company, Cloopen listed its
American depositary shares (“ADS”) on the New York Stock
Exchange on 9 February 2021 (New York time) through an
initial public offering priced at US$16.00 (equivalent to
approximately HK$124.8) per ADS (each of which represents
two underlying Class A ordinary shares of Cloopen) (“Cloopen
Listing”).

Prior to the Cloopen Listing, the Group's interest in Cloopen
was accounted for (i) using equity method in respect of ordinary
shares held, the fair value of which as at 31 December 2020
was approximately HK$1,900.5 million and the carrying
value of which as at 31 December 2020 was zero, and (ii) as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in respect
of convertible preference shares held, both the fair value
and thus carrying value of which as at 31 December 2020
were approximately HK$418.5 million. Upon completion of
Cloopen Listing, the Group held 55,677,341 Class A ordinary
shares of Cloopen and the entire interest was classified as
a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI), with subsequent fair value movement
recognised in other comprehensive income.

In connection with the Cloopen Listing, the Group recorded a
non-cash aggregate gain of approximately HK$3,055.7 million
in YEAR 2021 (by reference to the offering price of the ADS
attributable to the Group’s interest in the ordinary shares or
convertible preference shares (as the case may be) of Cloopen
less the carrying value of such interest as at 31 December
2020), comprising: (i) a deemed disposal gain of approximately
HK$2,857.9 million credited to profit or loss in the financial
statements of the Group for YEAR 2021 in respect of the
ordinary shares of Cloopen then held by the Group, although
such gain will not be classified as operating profit; and (ii) a fair
value gain of approximately HK$197.8 million, reflected in the
operating profit of the Group for YEAR 2021 in respect of the
Group's interest in the convertible preference shares held prior
to the Cloopen Listing.

(E)
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CloopenT ] [ BT 2 A FEU =  RIE
HERERE R A NCloopenZ EA 2 UK
EREATFESAHMWZEWEZE/ME
EZHMMEEEE

REBERNEE QAT CloopeniR ZE Z—F
“ANB YR BEERAREERSH
FEFFERMD (EEFFERM ) RANEST
ZRLT EERARERERFERG (BRE
Bl 17 5ER (7 18 E 7 M & CloopenVAERIATE & &
%) 16.005=7c (1B E 7 49124.87%87T) (M Cloopen_
i) e

¥ Cloopen_E A1 » 282 E 1 CloopenfI# AT
BIARARR (ORI AEMZERME FHE
@ R _EBFE+"A=+—HWAFE
#3#%1,900,500,0008 70 N2 _ZTF+_8
=+ HNEREEAD  Ki)MATRFAE WA R
BB S EARATES ABENSME
BERIZIEF+A=+—HNAFERK
IR (B 949 %5418,500,00078 7T © i Cloopen_E
TERL 1 AEEFFACloopeni55,677,341 EA%E
LER 2BRENEARATESAEMS
mE BAFESAREMRERE )z%ﬁﬁ
B EBNAFEESNEthEmIRmER

N2 " —FE #iCloopen LM E » A&EH
RS IEIR T W 4B EEAY3,055,700,00058 7T (2
EAREE R Cloopenz & B K S Al B LA
GEBERME) 2 EEEhH EHFLRG

ZREBREZSRGEN _SE2EF+°A
=+—BzEEEsE 9 i(i)ﬁ*jEK%@%E%
P A Z Cloopen& BRI E > st ARERE

T HEMBRRZEBRIBIEHE RS ‘Z’J
2,857,900,0008 7% » EZ WG T & iR A EE
w5 B ASE B B Cloopen M AIFA 2 7]

BREBARERMES  WAEER S —FF
AR E M P R B A A (B U & £9197,800,000

BITe
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(F)

(G)

(H)

Based on the market price of each ADS (of US$2.9 as at
December 2021 (New York time), equivalent to approximately
HK$22.62) and the market value of the shares of the Cloopen
held by the Group (at US$80.7 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$629.7 million) as at 31 December 2021,
the Group has recognised an “other comprehensive loss” of
approximately HK$2,844.6 million in YEAR 2021 due to the
change in fair value of its interest in Cloopen after the Cloopen
Listing (i.e. by comparing the market price of the ADS as at 31
December 2021 against the offering price of the ADS).

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 20 January 2021, 4 February 2021, 10 February 2021,
1 July 2021 and 28 February 2022.

Investment properties and property, plant and
equipment

Balance mainly represented fixed assets of payment processing
solutions segment.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Balance represented leases which are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Balance mainly represented the Group’s interests in
364,000,000 ordinary shares of PAX Global. As at 31
December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s approximately
33.3% effective interest in PAX Global was approximately
HK$2,009.3 million and was lower than its carrying value. An
impairment test was performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use basis
using the discounted cash flow model, exceeds the carrying
value as at 31 December 2021.

(F)

(G)

(H)

RiEE—REEEFELROHITE K2 —F
+ZA=+—H GBLORR) 22.9%7m HER
#922.6287m) KR —F+B=+—H
ZREERFA BICloopeni& A FITI{E (80,700,000
f@mﬁvﬁmmmmm%ﬁ)$$@em:

—FEM3ECloopen_E & E X Cloopen
z&m%@i@ﬁ@ﬁ%%%!ﬁ?kﬁm:
E T —F+_B=1+—HmEREHET
R MEEELER BN THEEmEEI AN
2,844,600,00078 7T ©

BRAE—THB HRNEAARBSHEAE T —
F—A+H Z2ET—FAMNH 2T Z—
FZA+H-ZEZT—FtHA—HKRIZEZZ
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EEREITEEXNIRZERERRSEDEZEE
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ERERIAATEREEE WNEEEEA M|
RERFERZ BB AAREENEE

UH#EHEEARZKEE

AR EEIEAEEN B SIREK364,000,00088 &
BEBRFPEERESE N —F+"HA=+—
H> AEBREBIRKAB33%NERERZ AT
B#97%2,009,300,00078 70 BN EHEREE &
TRENREEEECKREZIKREIEE R
2T —F+ZRA=+—H > B\ hEMEE
BEEEENGURAMRRSREELFE
Z AR [ElE BB B R E o



The Group is optimistic about the future prospects of PAX
Global and will continue to demonstrate prudence and
resilience in assessing its investment strategy towards the
enhancement of shareholders’ value. The interest in PAX Global
of HK$2,688.7 million represented approximately 24.9% of the
Group's total assets as at 31 December 2021 and the cost of
investment as at 31 December 2021 was HK$259.8 million.

PAX Global is one of the world’s leading electronic payment
terminal solution providers. In recent years, the COVID-19
pandemic caused people to adopt new lifestyles in social and
consumer habits. E-commerce and electronic payments are
fueling the shift towards cashless societies. Consumers today
are also more concerned about the perceived health risks
associated with handling physical cash, which further reinforces
the widespread adoption of electronic payments. PAX Global’s
technological competitive advantages have been even more
accentuated amid the COVID-19 pandemic, with a surging
demand for PAX Global’s Android payment terminal products.
Its new generation of Android payment terminal solutions is
connected to the cloud-based platform PAXSTORE, providing
merchants with business intelligence and digital marketing
applications, as well as helping acquiring banks and payment
service providers to better manage payment terminal estates in
real-time and delivering better payment service experience.

During YEAR 2021, PAX Global achieved record-high revenue
and net profit. All regions recorded growth, especially in the
United States of America and Canada (USCA) and Europe, the
Middle East and Africa (EMEA). The growth was mainly driven
by the increase in market penetration and sales of Android
payment terminals. Looking forward, we are optimistic about
the market demand of PAX Global’s payment terminals, and we
expect that PAX Global is very well prepared to embrace the
vast opportunities in a post COVID-19 era.

For the impact on the deemed disposal of interest in Cloopen,
the then associated company of the Group, upon the Cloopen
Listing, please refer to note (E) above.
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AEEHAERKNWRLFSITFRERE > T
AT B BB M T I B RS LURFH
BREREE-BE_ZT_—F+_-_HB=+—H>
PREERKMER2,688,700,00078 T4 15 2
EEEEEEN249% AN _E_—F+_4
=+—HBYEE R A £259,800,00078 7T ©
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(U]

()]

(K)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The balance represented the fair value of the trading securities
listed in Hong Kong of HK$1.1 million; and the fair value of
interest in a venture capital fund of HK$108.2 million.

Significant decrease in balance was due to the conversion of
the Group’s interest in the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares
of Cloopen and the Convertible Series D Preferred Shares of
Cloopen held prior to the Cloopen Listing to ordinary shares of
Cloopen upon the Cloopen Listing. Please also refer to note (E)
above.

Financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The balance represented the fair value of the Group’s interests
in Cloopen. The interest in Cloopen of HK$629.7 million
represented approximately 5.8% of the Group’s total assets
as at 31 December 2021 and the cost of investment as at 31
December 2021 was HK$127.8 million. Please also refer to
note (E) and note (I) above.

Inventories

Decline in balance was due to the classification of inventories
of our information securities chips and solutions segment to
assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2021.

U]

()]

(K)

BAFEFABERZEMEE
EHRENREABLTEERZSFN L FE
1,100,000787T ; RiRBEEE 2 BmINAFE
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IEERAIRRI T R fECloopen E 18 » AN EE
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RATESARMEZEANGZ EHEE

ERRIEAEE PR CloopenZ R M AFE e 7
CloopenZ ##629,700,000/8THHER T = —
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(L) Trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at (L)
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FEWIRMR R R RS BN EZ

amortised cost and other current assets

HttEMEEREMAHEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables (Note (i)(a)) FEURBRFR (B72#()(a)) 176,292 236,974
Bills receivables (Note (i)(b)) FEW SR (Wt at(i)b) 1,520 51,291
Less: provision for impairment of i EWGRIE R E R
receivables (9,403) (14,371)
168,409 273,894
Other receivables, prepayments and HEWRIA s A RUIEREE
deposits (Note (ii) (B3#i) 158,821 183,240
Total =11 327,230 457,134
Note (i): Btata:
(@) The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180 @ AEE-RETEZEFAZEEHHIEISOET

days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on

%o TRIRBAARE R B 2 FEUCBRRERE D0

the relevant invoice dates is as follows: T
2021 2020
—E—F TECTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 128,311 194,298
91 to 180 days 91E180H 10,947 7,955
181 to 365 days 1812365H 17,934 11,185
Over 365 days 365HLL E 19,100 23,536
176,292 236,974

Decrease in balances aged from current to 90 days was mainly due

to decrease in account receivable balances from our electronic power

meters business and classification of account receivable balances

of our information securities chips and solutions segment to assets

classified as held for sale.

BREC FRVHAEI0H Z MEERR T2 AN BAESTE
EmER 2 BUERRER AL URRMANEEZE

SR RERRT D 2 FEUERR

EZEEMR-

EERD R ARE

(b)  Bills receivables as at 31 December 2020 mainly belonged to the
information security chips and solutions segment.

Note (ii):
The decrease in balance was mainly due to the settlement of other

receivables for special dividend receivable of HK$36.4 million from PAX
Global during the year.

REZ-RE+_A=+—HZBUEREIERE
REBREER RBRAEDER-

Htai:

£

e T EBNMEE A RN E SRR KR

B 2 HAhFEURERTES6,400,00078 TTET Y ©
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(M) Loan receivables M) BB

Loan receivables are amounts due from customers under the
payment processing solutions segment in the ordinary course
of business, unsecured and primarily denominated in RMB.
Significant increase was due to the growth of fintech solutions
and services segment.

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the payment
due date is as follows:

BUWERSIN AEEBBREPINRZ RIER
RABEDERTEEERIR BRERIER
BRAREZBUARBSHE KBNS B
ERBIERTT BRRB D ERE RPAE

BRI B R o 2 KRB IR DA T

2021 2020

—ETF 2

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ET FH7T

Current BPEA 2,219,046 1,038,283

1 to 3 months past due BE—Z=@AH 16,449 10,658

Over 3 months past due BEA=EA N 122,980 39,078

Loan receivables, gross FEWE A EE 2,358,475 1,088,019
Less: provision for impairment of W BB RERES

loan receivables (130,148) (44,940)

Loan receivables, net B E T FEE 2,228,327 1,043,079

Non current JERNHAR - 54

Current ENEA 2,228,327 1,043,025

2,228,327 1,043,079

(N) Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using (N) FEU FE AR S ZEARZIEE Z5hI1a

the equity method
Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the
equity method are unsecured and interest-free.

W FEA LU TA A BRZ R E 2 RIBR IR
HRREE -



(O) Restricted bank balance and cash and cash equivalents
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O) ZRHFRITHEBRUARRERFEEEY

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020

AZEZ—F RIB-EF

tZA=+—HB +=-A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Bank deposits BITHER - 6,105
Current assets TENEE
Bank deposits RITHEM 6,832 76
Restricted bank balance (Note) SIRGIRIT&E 5 (WaE) 765,462 880,552
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERIREEEY 3,254,558 3,747,468
Restricted bank balance and cash and SIRGIIRITAEFUSIRE K
cash equivalents REEEY 4,020,020 4,628,020
Note: Yoz

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the People’s Bank of China (the “PBOC”), all customer
reserve accounts held by the third-party payment institutions were to be
cancelled and the customer reserves were to be deposited in a dedicated
deposit account maintained centrally by a designated agency. The customer
reserve account is non-interest bearing and denominated in RMB. Transfers
of funds under this bank account are governed under certain measures
implemented by the PBOC and hence these customer reserves are restricted
in nature.

RIEFEARET (FEARRT) NEEE%
BN E=AXANRBHANMAERER#HES
IRPRBRE  BRREABETRETFRINEER
BHNERTERRA T - FREFEZRE FEFE 1
MAREESHE - ZRITRAPHETHEREPEA
RIFCTEENETHEESEE AEZEEAF#ES
AE EZRH -
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(P) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment

processing solutions business and other payables and

accruals

(P) BARMREMRE ZURZEERRS

REBZBRARBEUREMEDRIERE

FHRIR

2021 2020
—E-—F —B2F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Trade payables (Note (i) FEATRRTR (H72L() 497,080 512,622
Bills payables FET 48 8,503 14,182
Payables for payment processing SXNUNRFEIEBRDRERZ
solutions business (Note (ii)) FEAS RIE (B 22(ii) 624,296 828,619
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii) ~— EMEFRIE & ESTRIE
(Wt a2 ii) 1,076,401 1,013,991
Total =11 2,206,280 2,369,414
Note (i): Bt

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. The

ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice date was as

follows:

HEFRTZEEMHOE180ATF - TERFEZAHN

ZFEARRRERES DATL0 T

2021 2020

—E_—F ZEITE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 468,595 462,757
91 to 180 days 91E180H 11,272 30,489
181 to 365 days 181E365H 7,089 9,898
Over 365 days 365 £ 10,124 9,478
497,080 512,622

—  Changes in trade payables aged between 91 to 180 days were mainly —  RENTFNEI0H ZENRREEH T EANEEE

due to the settlement of outstanding balances under the electronic

power meters business.

FEFTBEMFERE NAEEA E?Fﬁ:ﬂz °



Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing
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Biati:

ERERIEM XN R P REBRS ZREFROHAZR

solutions business. IHe

Note (iii): Bt
2021 2020
—F_— —EIBE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* fE5t B TRARRIKNE EE 266,720 302,642
Deposits & 60,751 50,373
Receipt in advance from customers** AL E Bz FRIg** 77,241 27,932
Advance from merchant recruitment agents** REBER R IR RR 435,842 415,261
Others*** H ftteex 235,847 217,783
1,076,401 1,013,991

*  Balance represented accrued staff costs, pension obligations and year-
end bonus.

**  Receipt in advance from customers and advance from merchant
recruitment agents represented advances and guarantees received from
merchant and agents under the payment processing solutions segment.

*** Balance mainly represented accrued subcontracting costs and other
accrued handling fees payable under the payment processing solution
segment.

(Q) Written put option liability
Balance represents written put options liabilities on written put
options granted by VBill (Cayman) and Megahunt HK.

The increase in balance was mainly due to finance cost of
HK$68.8 million incurred in relation to the put option liabilities
during YEAR 2021.

* KEEREIEET B T A RS BRI FRTEAL

o FASWERE R 2 AR AR BB E A EE R i BRiE
X RFERIEFRS EDEET B A R AIERE
ZERRAREE ©

oo BRI EERE DMK N R R RERATE
DERE TR E MR FEE

(Q BEHsVHIIERR
FEERIERLVBIll (Cayman) R JKEAEBR H N
BHRLEENE L RE RS

ML T EARN B —Esh
HEEBEELERERN 768,800,000/ 7T
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(R) Discontinued operation

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 December 2021, 28 December 2021, 11 February
2022 and 28 February 2022 in relation to the Share Transfer
Agreements entered into by Megahunt HK'’s, the Purchasers
and Megahunt in relation to the disposal of an aggregate of
approximately 20% of the issued share capital of Megahunt
(representing an aggregate of RMB11,960,002 registered
capital) at an aggregate consideration of RMB208,727,200.
Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group’s interest in
Megahunt will be decreased from approximately 65.73%
to approximately 45.73% and Megahunt will cease to be
a subsidiary of the Company and will be accounted for as
an associate of the Company. As at 31 December 2021,
completion of the Share Transfer Agreement Il (first tranche),
Share Transfer Agreement Il and Share Transfer Agreement
IV had taken place and the Group’s interest in Megahunt
decreased to approximately 54.10%. Megahunt remained a
subsidiary of the Company as at 31 December 2021.

Megahunt is principally engaged in the provision of information
system consultancy services, the sales of mag-strip card
security decoder chips and related products and solutions in
mainland China. The corresponding business segment (i.e. the
information security chips and solutions segment) was classified
as discontinued operation for the YEAR 2020 and 2021.

Key Financial Performance

Turnover* RS SN
EBITDA? EBITDA?
Operating profit Syl

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation

(R) BRRILEEEXEF

IR A AT BB - —F+=AH
+AA-ZE—F+"“AZ“+/\HB-Z
T F_R+—HERIZEZZHFEZR
“+NABHAM RRBRANKATE -EXR
R IR B E M LA B A R 15208,727,200
TTEEEEIANIEEEETIRAL20% (1]
EREMEARLEEE ARK11,960,0027T) T
ST RN EEGZE N EREESEER
REBRIKAIEZEN R R ERAI65.73%8
E#45.73% BIKFIEERFTBABE AT
BB AT Wi ARSI EAR AT BB
NB M _B_—F+_A=+—HE®K
B EEm I (i) ~ RDEER RN
KR EERZIVEE  AEBRILIEZEN
ERBEL54.10% RN _E_—F+_4
=t+—H > KABENAXRLADHHEAL
o

KAEEZETERPRARELFTRHEENR
WEAAFAARTS S E MR RN E AREE T R UK
HRAERKBRDE BRAEHD iE(EUTE.
BREDARBRAEDER DER/R"ZTZ
TEERTT—FENDRIEEEXER-

FEHYHERE

2021 2020 Change
g2 —HF TERIEF pf0)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +(-)

FHET TFAET

(Restated)

Cee==pil)
454,480 298,753 +52%
79,255 16,161 +390%
68,025 9,540 +613%

* REINDERZEEE

f IEREHRI B RIE T R R A A



Financial Position

Assets classified as held-for-sale
Liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held-for-sale

During the year, turnover from discontinued operation
amounted to HK$454.5 million as compared to HK$298.8
million in YEAR 2020, representing an increase by more than
52%. Operating profit from discontinued operation amounted
to HK$68.0 million, as compared to HK$9.5 million in YEAR
2020. The increase in turnover compared to last year was
mainly due to the active stocking of downstream customers
because of the tight semiconductor supply chain.

KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Listing of Cloopen

Cloopen, formerly an associated company, listed its ADS on the
New York Stock Exchange on 9 February 2021 (New York time)
through an initial public offering priced at US$16.00 (equivalent to
approximately HK$124.8) per ADS (each of which represents two
underlying Class A ordinary shares of Cloopen). Upon completion
of the Cloopen Listing, the Group holds 55,677,341 Class A
ordinary shares, classified as a financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI), with subsequent fair value
movement recognised in other comprehensive income. Please also
refer to note (E) under the section titled “Overall Financial Results
in this Report of the Directors. Further details are
referred to in the Company’s announcements dated 20 January
2021, 4 February 2021, 1 July 2021 and 28 February 2022.

and Position”

DEAREHEZEE
BNEARKIFHE 2 EEEZERNEE
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BRI

As at

31 December
2021

A B —5F
+=ZB=+—H
HK$’000

FHET

419,105
(82,803)

TR BARIEKE T 2 EFEER7454,500,000
B M_ZTZZTFE%A298,800,0008 7T
EAN#E52%  BRIEREEFR I KE G5
68,000,000/ 7T T — & — T HE 49,500,000
TLoEEBALLAERS L FERREN¥E
EHEHETSR TERABIETEE

FERERAEIED

Cloopen ET

A= A B]Cloopenit ZEZ—F Z B N.H GRAVEF
B) BRE N AHEEREERFETRO N ELNES
R L EEASKRERETRYD (ERERE

SEAR D HEE R M BRCloopenMIFHRAALEZER) 16.00
F7T HEENA9124.8787T) 1 Cloopen L HiFELE
REBFFHS5,677 341 RASREBR > ZEEBBRK
DIERRATES ARMEE WG RATEF AR
MEEEG) 2 EMEE HB 2 A TEEENEM
EWNGEER A2 HEEEREITER Y
BEBE AR —EIMEHE) - BRIE—FHIBE FS
RAABIHEARZ %:—ﬂf—ﬁ —+E- 22—
FZAME-ZE-—HFtHA— ElEZ_v__fF_
BZ+N\HHA T’FEO
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Disposal of Megahunt

In December 2021, Megahunt HK entered into certain share transfer
agreements with certain purchasers and Megahunt for the disposal
of an aggregate of approximately 20% interest in Megahunt (the
“Megahunt Interest”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately
RMB208.7 million (approximately HK$254.6 million). Upon
completion of the disposal of the entire approximately 20%
interest, the Company’s interest in Megahunt will decrease from
approximately 65.73% to 45.73% and Megahunt will cease to be a
subsidiary of the Company and be accounted for as an associate of
the Company.

In connection with the disposal of (i) approximately 4.36%
Megahunt Interest by Megahunt HK pursuant to one of the aforesaid
share transfer agreements; and (ii) approximately 3.64% Megahunt
Interest by Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (a subsidiary
of PAX Global, an associated company of the Company), to an
independent third-party purchaser, Megahunt, the said independent
third-party purchaser and the Management Platform Company (a
limited partnership in the PRC held as to approximately 99.99%
by Megahunt’s directors and management) entered into the side
letters, pursuant to which Megahunt shall guarantee the repurchase
obligations of the Management Platform Company to repurchase
all or part of the aforesaid aggregate of 8% Megahunt Interest upon
the occurrence of the triggering events, subject to other conditions
as provided in the side letters and a cap of RMB180 million
(approximately HK$219.6 million) (the “Repurchase Guarantee”).
The Repurchase Guarantee shall unconditionally and irrevocably
terminate on 31 December 2022, notwithstanding its validity as
provided under the side letters would be 3 years from the relevant
triggering events.

As at the date of this annual report, the disposal of an aggregate of
approximately 11.63% Megahunt Interest completed. Megahunt is
owed as to 54.10% by the Company.

Further details are referred to in the Company’s announcements
dated 15 December 2021, 28 December 2021, 11 February 2022
and 28 February 2022.

HEJLAIEE

RIEZ—F+"_F> K AEBERETERKIHK
Al uEsTROEERZ  UWERBOAR
#208,700,0007T (49254,600,00078 7T) & HE K
HIBEA20%Em (KB EER)) - EMEES
B A20% B AEBPIKAIBENER AR
%B%Hi%ZW)E%ﬂE%%TEE$@EW
B AR WA ARRIMER A BN HE AT

BRAGIKAEBRE L H P — R ROER =
EX9436%IKNIEZ R ; KiNBEEERE (R

BRAR (R RABMEATBSRINNEAR) &
EA3.64%IMNBERT THUE =ZER > JLAIE

EN FBUSE=AERKEEBEFAAE (BIKAIE
EEEREERBIFEE99.99%NTEE RSB %)
STILFIER > BRI S BRE TR T A A BN E
EEMELFBELO 2T E D D&% IKIEE
fetm 2 BRIEE » M RIRE N E MR FTRIR
H_EBRZA AR 1180,000,0007T (49219,600,0007 7T)
(TEEEIER)) ~BENRBFEEEBEN S B8/ E
BEMEIBE BBELERAN B 2F+ A
=+ —BEEG R AL

RAFRAE B HEEHEL11.63%IKIEE
e o JKFNIB R AR BB 54.10% M 11 ©

BRE—THB FREARBREAST _—5F
+_A+ER - ZE_—F+_A-_+N\HA =
T THE_RA+—HAKRZE__F_A-+N\EBHMA
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL ERESHZHZER
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopt ZHEBEEETEBRASOBITHK,HEE
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual  (T&#%H)) B8 SHEEAEEANIERLRES
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign ~ BREHIN FELEINFRGEH 2 PEEEAT
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies — (TFREIZE A E]) WAL

(“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which ~ TX&HF|HAEBMSBEAZ GNTH ZF#1F
are material to the Group.

1. Contractual Arrangement in respect of Chongging JIM 1. EREEBGEITREMBABREITNZEY

and its subsidiary VBill OPCO ZHE

1.1 Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners 1.1 FAEEEN G REZMEBANZFIE
Chongging JIM is a limited liability company established in EERETA BN _F/ANHERE
the PRC on 4 June 2002. R 2 BRREEAT ©
From 28 May 2010 to 24 October 2019, contractual BETEZ-ZFRA_TN\HEZ-NF
agreements (“Existing JIM Control Documents”) were +E-+UA SEET HERLRKRE B
entered into between Chongqing JIM, its registered BRIB L (60%) KRFBELL(40%) (TEE
shareholders, namely Mr. Zhou Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na BT RAE1TIE BB (L8) BIRAT
Wei (40%), (“Chongging JIM Shareholders”) and #1715 & (M EB4%1T) sTA e = (IREETE
BT (£i#8) BBR/AE (“Shanghai JIM”), pursuant to which IR Rt EEATARIRES
Shanghai JIM was allowed to exercise control of and enjoy BEATEE 2R e

economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM.

Shanghai JIM is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the EBETRARBZEEEERB AR
Company.
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1.2

1.3

On 24 October 2019, (i) Chongging JIM, (ii) Chonggqing
JIM Shareholders and (iii) It RMIEEIERIZHBRAE
(unofficial English translation for identification purpose
only, being Beijing Microcode Data Technology Co., Ltd.)
(a wholly-foreign owned enterprise incorporated under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of VBIill (Cayman), the “New WFOE"), entered into a new
set of contractual agreements which allows New WFOE to
exercise control of and enjoy economic benefits generated
from Chongging JIM (“New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap)”). The Existing JIM Control Documents were
terminated on the same date.

Description of OPCO'’s business and their significance to
the Group

Chongqing JIM and its subsidiaries (collectively “JIM
Group”) are principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (&% 5% 7%) with major
focus on payment related solutions and services, the
provision of payment processing solution in the PRC.
Key financial indicators of the JIM Group are set out in
paragraph 1.4 below.

Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of
the Contractual Arrangements

JIM Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE and Chongging JIM entered into the JIM
Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which (i) Chongging JIM has appointed and designated
New WFOE as its exclusive service provider to provide
the technical and business support services and (i) New
WEFOE has agreed to provide financial support in the
form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to
Chongqing JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for
the said services shall be equal to 100% of the audited
consolidated net profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding
the foregoing New WFOE may adjust the service fee at its
sole discretion and in accordance with the requirements
of relevant governmental authorities, with reference to the
working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.

1.2

1.3
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JIM Business Cooperation Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongging JIM, and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Business Cooperation
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each of the
Chongging JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM have
jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that, without
obtaining New WFOE's prior written consent, neither
Chongging JIM nor the Chongging JIM Shareholders shall
cause Chongging JIM to, engage in any transaction which
may materially affect Chongging JIM’s asset, obligations,
rights or operation.

JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqging JIM and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Exclusive Option
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging
JIM Shareholders to transfer any and all of their equity
interests of Chongging JIM (the “JIM Equity Interests”) to
New WFOE and/or its designated third party, subject to
New WFOE's specific requirements; and (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging JIM
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Chonggqing
JIM (the “JIM Assets”) to New WFOE and/or its designee,
subject to New WFOFE's specific requirements. The total
transfer price for the JIM Equity Interests and/or the
JIM Assets shall be the lowest price allowed under the
applicable PRC laws and administrative regulations at the
time of transfer. Where there is no lowest price prescribed
under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations, the transfer price shall be determined by New
WFOE.
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JIM Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap)
New WFOE, Chongqging JIM, and the Chongqing JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Proxy Agreement and
Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has nominated
and appointed New WFOE (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Chongging JIM on
his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws and
regulations and the articles of association of Chongging
JIM; and (ii) each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
covenanted with and undertaken to New WFOE that, if he
receives any dividends, interest, any other forms of capital
distributions, residual assets upon liquidation, or proceeds
or consideration from the transfer as a result of, or in
connection with, his JIM Equity Interests, he shall, to the
extent permitted by applicable laws, remit all such monies
or assets to New WFOE or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.

JIM Equity Interest Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqing JIM and the Chongqing
JIM Shareholders entered into the JIM Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each
of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has agreed to,
unconditionally and irrevocably, pledge all of their JIM
Equity Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for
such equity interests, to New WFOE as a security for the
performance of any and all obligations of Chongging JIM
Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents (other than JIM Equity Interest Pledge
Agreement (Pre-Swap)) at the amount of RMB50,000,000
which is estimated value of the obligations of Chongging
JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.
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JIM Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap)

Each of Chongging JIM Shareholders has signed the JIM
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
confirmed and guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Chongging JIM held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Chongging JIM,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;

2. he will unwind the contractual documents and transfer
all of the equity interests of Chongging JIM held by
him to New WFOE or any party designated by New
WEFOE as soon as the applicable PRC laws allow New
WFOE to operate the business operated by Chongging
JIM by way of directly holding equity interests, and
that subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to New WFOE or
its designated entity any consideration he has received
from New WFOE during its acquisition of JIM Equity
Interests; and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Chongging JIM or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and New WFOE
(including but not limited to the shareholders of New
WEFOE); in the event of any such conflict, he will take
any action as instructed by New WFOE to eliminate
such conflict provided such action is compliant with
PRC laws.

JIM Spousal Consent (Pre-Swap)

Ms. Liu Dan (“Ms. Liu”), the spouse of Mr. Na Wei has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such equity interests in Chongging
JIM constitute property or community property between
herself and Mr. Na Wei and waives all her rights or
entitlements to such equity interests that may be granted to
her according to any applicable laws.

B (FE) ARAF T EER

Report of the Directors

HHE WS

METTIE R IR (FHARD)
EEETRRE B RBGETEEIRIER
B (=HARD) - BRIt EEETTRRSEEHE
BRfREE > HAPEE)

1. HEEA BEAERARERE
HEH RRTH/EN WE BRER
HREREHTENRERGETZRRE
FZ BEN Z A RIIETZ T AT BB R fE KR
HRAZEEGITRET Z A R

mZEMEMAL BAREETOIEE
FERPRABRTREGHOXHET
BEZEATH

2. —BEBFREAREAFMWFOESESE
ERESEREREEBEATIEEZ
% HEBBRAEAXHRBERE
2B ERETRIESETFHWFOE
WHWFOEEE 2 A AL REHE
FRBEIAERR T ENETRE
REBEEATRERRRTIEEN
WFOEU Bl Z A BRI F #HWFOE
NEIEE 2 EEE > mAE WEE A
B &

3. HRTEEERNEEUS HEEIK
BUBEBETHNERBLADEBRS
HABERF 2 EANEBUNRERS
hEAEEED  REFRTTER
B ERHASEITWFOE (8158
TRRICHIWFOEZ IRER) 2 e85 Rk
B MEEERZEEIR HRRR
HWFOHS R Z R A1TE)  LUBBR=2TE
3 ERITREBTPENERRE °

HEITEBREER (=HiA0)
%Bf&f‘ﬁizﬁﬂ{%%ﬂﬁi (MRt BIF
325 (HPEE) B ERRERTE
SETEAOXHETZHNERETT (B85
FRERAREEGIT ZERRERNE
AEPERFEZBZ P ESHRMEZ
EX)  WHERRBEREREREAEE
RZZEREZ 2N S o

53



54

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Report of the Directors

HPEFWE

1.4

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain a disputes
resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute or
claim shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Chongging JIM and
winding up orders against Chongging JIM. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Chongging JIM are located, shall all be deemed to
have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$3,567.4 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$5,085.9
million and HK$2,811.4 million respectively.
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Contractual Arrangements in respect of R ER

= ERMTAMRAT (“Hunan Yunrong”, unofficial
English translation being Hunan Yunrong Information
Technology Co., Ltd.)

2.1

2.2

Particulars of Hunan Yunrong and its registered owners
Hunan Yunrong is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 15 August 2014. Hunan Yunrong was
wholly-owned by Chongging JIM before 21 May 2019.
Hunan Yunrong and Chongging JIM were accounted for as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company contractually
controlled by the Group through the Existing JIM Control
Documents.

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring
involving the Hunan Yunrong and its subsidiaries (“Yunrong
Group”) as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 May 2019. Upon completion of the restructuring,
Mr. Zhang Yonggang (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Wei Mingliang
(“Mr. Wei”) became the registered shareholders of Hunan
Yunrong (“Hunan Yunrong Shareholders”), holding 70%
and 30% equity interests of Hunan Yunrong (“Yunrong
Equity Interests”), respectively. Control documents
(“Yunrong Control Documents”) were entered into between
Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and 1t 2322
BEEERMARASE (“Beijing Hi Sunsray”, unofficial
English translation being Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited) to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
contractually control 100% equity interests and the
management of Hunan Yunrong.

Description of OPCO'’s business and their significance to
the Group

Yunrong Group is principally engaged in platform
operation solutions business in the PRC. Key financial
indicators of the Yunrong Group are set out in paragraph
2.4 below.
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2.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of
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the Contractual Arrangements

Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the
Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Hunan Yunrong has appointed and designated
the Beijing Hi Sunsray as its exclusive service provider
to provide the technical and business support services
and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the extent
permissible under PRC law) provide financial support
in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Hunan Yunrong by separate agreements to be
executed and performed by the parties. The service
fee payable for the said services shall be equal to
100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi
Sunsray may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion
and in accordance with the requirements of relevant
governmental authorities, with reference to the working
capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

Yunrong Business Cooperation Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Business
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong
have jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that,
without obtaining the Beijing Hi Sunsray’s prior written
consent, neither Hunan Yunrong nor the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders shall cause Hunan Yunrong to, engage in any
transaction which may materially affect Hunan Yunrong's
asset, obligations, rights or operation.
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Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Exclusive
Option Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Beijing Hi
Sunsray shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders to transfer any and all of their
Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing Hi Sunsray and/or its
designated third party designated, subject to Beijing Hi
Sunsray’s specific requirements; and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray
shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan Yunrong
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Hunan
Yunrong (the “Yunrong Assets”) to the Beijing Hi Sunsray
and/or its designee, subject to Beijing Hi Sunsray’s specific
requirements. The total transfer price for the Yunrong Equity
Interests and/or the Yunrong Assets shall be the lowest price
allowed under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations at the time of transfer. Where there is no
lowest price prescribed under the applicable PRC laws
and administrative regulations, the transfer price shall be
determined by the Beijing Hi Sunsray.

Yunrong Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Proxy Agreement
and Power of Attorney, pursuant to which (i) each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has nominated and
appointed Beijing Hi Sunsray (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Hunan Yunrong
on his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws
and regulations and the articles of association of Hunan
Yunrong; and (ii) each of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders
has covenanted with and undertaken to Beijing Hi
Sunsray that, if he receives any dividends, interest, any
other forms of capital distributions, residual assets upon
liquidation, or proceeds or consideration from the transfer
of equity interests as a result of, or in connection with, his
Yunrong Equity Interests, he shall, to the extent permitted
by applicable laws, remit all such monies or assets to
Beijing Hi Sunsray or its designated entity without any
compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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Yunrong Equity Interest Pledge Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders has agreed to, unconditionally
and irrevocably, pledge all of their Yunrong Equity
Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for such
equity interests, to Beijing Hi Sunsray as a security for
the performance of any and all obligations of Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the
contractual documents (other than Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement) at the amount of RMB10,000,000,
the estimated value of the obligations of Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

Yunrong Confirmation and Guarantee Letter

Each of Hunan Yunrong Shareholders signed the Yunrong
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter, pursuant to which each
of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has confirmed and
guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Hunan Yunrong,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;
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2. he will unwind the contractual documents and
transfer his entire Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing
Hi Sunsray or its designated party as soon as the
applicable PRC laws allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
operate the business operated by Hunan Yunrong
by way of directly holding equity interests, and that
subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to Beijing Hi
Sunsray or its designated party any consideration
he has received from Beijing Hi Sunsray during its
acquisition of the Yunrong Equity Interests; and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Hunan Yunrong or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and Beijing Hi
Sunsray (including but not limited to the shareholders
of Beijing Hi Sunsray); in the event of any such
conflict, he will take any action as instructed by
Beijing Hi Sunsray to eliminate such conflict provided
such action is compliant with PRC laws.

Yunrong Spousal Consent

Ms. Li Qi (“Ms. Li"), the spouse of Mr. Zhang, has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such Yunrong Equity Interests
constitute property or community property between herself
and Mr. Zhang and waives all their rights or entitlements to
such equity interests that may be granted to her according
to any applicable laws.
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2.4

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain disputes resolution
clause which stipulates that any dispute or claim shall be
resolved by the parties in good faith through negotiations.
If no resolution can be reached, the dispute shall be
submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission for
arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Hunan Yunrong and
winding up orders against Hunan Yunrong. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Hunan Yunrong are located, shall all be deemed
to have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the Yunrong Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$174.8 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the Yunrong
Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$219.2
million and HK$5.9 million respectively.
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Laws and regulations relating to the provision of value-
added telecommunications services in the PRC and
reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangements
Under the Telecommunications Regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (FZEARIEFMBEE KA,
telecommunications service providers are required to obtain
operating licenses prior to their commencement of operations.

Under the Administrative Measures on Internet Information
Services (B Ht#B(5 BARFE EIEIIE) (“Measures”), profitable
internet information service providers must obtain the ICP
License from the relevant authorities before engaging in the
profitable internet information service business in the PRC.

According to the Regulations on the Administration of Foreign-
invested Telecommunication Enterprises (2016 Amended) (4}
LEBEREBERT (20165F1&5]1)) (“FITE Regulations”),
(i) the ratio of investment by a foreign investor in a company
providing value-added telecommunications services shall not
exceed 50%, and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a value-
added telecommunications services company shall have a
good track record and operational experience in providing
value-added telecommunications business (the “Qualification
Requirement”) in the PRC.

The purpose for the Group to adopt the contractual
arrangements is to enable the Group to engage in the value-
added telecommunications business indirectly through
Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong which hold the ICP
License. Each of Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong is engaged
in value-added telecommunications business and holds the
ICP License. Due to the foreign ownership restrictions under
the PRC laws as outlined above and based on the consultation
with the officer of the relevant governmental authority, since
the Group has not previously engaged in telecommunications
business outside the PRC nor has it previously acquired
any equity interest in a PRC enterprise engaged in
telecommunications business, the Group would not be
considered to satisfy the Qualification Requirement. As such,
the Group would not be able to engage in the value-added
telecommunications business in the PRC directly, regardless of
the percentage shareholding interest (being less than 50% or
otherwise) it holds in the operating entity, without first adopting
a VIE structure.

3.
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4. Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The Group is exposed to certain risks under the Contractual
Arrangements, which are summarised below.

e There is no assurance that the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements
in the PRC and the PRC government may determine that
the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents do not comply with applicable
regulations.

e Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
enactment timetable, interpretation and implementation of
the Draft Foreign Investment Law (9MNEI & A E Z) and
how it may impact the viability of the current corporate
structure, corporate governance and business operations
under the Contractual Arrangements.

e Uncertainties exist with the future laws, administrative
regulations or provision prescribed by the State Council
especially relating to the Foreign Business Investment Law
(9MEEIZETE) may regard the Contractual Arrangements
as a form of foreign investment and how the Contractual
Arrangements will be handled.

e the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing control over Hunan Yunrong or
Chongging JIM.

e The registered shareholders of Chongging JIM or Hunan
Yunrong may potentially have a conflict of interests with
the Group.

e The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and transfer pricing adjustments
and additional tax may be imposed.

e Certain terms of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents may not
be enforceable under PRC laws, such as the disputes
resolution clauses stipulated above.

e A substantial amount of costs and time may be involved in
transferring the ownership of OPCOs to the Group under
the JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement.
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e The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of OPCOs.

e The Company does not have any insurance which covers
the risks relating to the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

e There is a lack of clear guidance or interpretation on
the qualification requirement under the Internet Content
Provider License, which may cast uncertainty to the Group
when the foreign ownership restriction in value-added
telecommunications is relaxed.

Internal control measures implemented by the Group to
mitigate the risks

The New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents contain certain provisions to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of OPCOs. In
addition to such provisions, the Company has adopted certain
measures which may include but not limited to management
control, financial control and legal review as follows:

e the Group has delegated representatives (“Representatives”)
to OPCOs, mainly responsible for exercising management
control of OPCOs; the Representatives will conduct
reviews on the operations of OPCOs;

e the Board and the Representatives shall identify major
issues arising from the implementation of and compliance
with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents;

e any regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to the Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

e the Representatives or other delegates of the Board shall
meet with the registered shareholders or directors of the
OPCOs to investigate and report any suspicious matters to
the Board;

e the Board shall collect the management accounts and
major operational data of OPCOs regularly for review
which will be no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
the financial team of the Company will seek explanations
from the senior management of the OPCOs on any
material fluctuations;
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e the Board will consult the Company’s PRC legal
advisers from time to time to check if there are any legal
developments in the PRC affecting the arrangement
contemplated under the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents (such as
the development of the draft Foreign Investment Law (9h
Bl E/AE2)), and the Board will determine if any
modification or amendment are required to be made;

® major issues arising from implementation and performance
of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents, if any, will be reviewed by
the Board on a regular basis; the Board will determine, as
part of its periodic review process, whether legal advisers
and/or other professionals will need to be retained to assist
the Group to deal with specific issues arising from the New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control
Documents;

e the Board will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents in its annual
report to update the Shareholders and potential investors;
and

e the Company shall comply with the conditions prescribed
under the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange in
connection with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents and
the New JIM Control Documents.

6. Material change
There was no material change of the Contractual Arrangements
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

7. Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements
As at the date of this annual report, there is no unwinding
of any of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

It is expected that the economic outlook and operating environment
will remain challenging in 2022. At present, the COVID-19 control
measures in China are successful to a substantial extent, managing
to sufficiently quell the spread of the virus within the nation. While
Mainland China’s economy has stabilised in many areas, with
the COVID-19 vaccination roll-out underway, we are cautiously
optimistic about the direction and scope of the country’s full
recovery.

Payment processing solutions

In 2021, due to the regional impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
across China, the payment business gradually recovered compared
with 2020, but such recovery were unable to catch up with the
pre-pandemic level. The payment transaction volume increased
by approximately 14% compared to last year to approximately
RMB 1,670 billion. In particular, the QR code payment transaction
volume in 2021 more than tripled as compared to last year, and the
number of daily transactions peaked at more than 16 million. The
co-ordinated development of SaaS-based QR code payment service
and digital services, through the offering of enhanced sophistication
and more profound value, managed to improve merchant stickiness.
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In the past 10 years, nothwithstanding that we have provided
payment services for more than 10 million offline merchants, we
realise that the penetration rate of digital services, including O20
platforms and smart business terminals, among online and offline
small, medium and micro merchants is still limited. On the basis of
innovation and exploration in 2021, we have completed product
development, market validation and commercial application
for three scenarios, and achieved notable results in the market.
Through providing personalised smart customer-locking marketing
solutions to community stores, the best preferential policies can
be recommended according to the consumption behaviour of
store users, and the integration of the payment process can also
shorten the decision-making time of consumers. We helped stores
to enhance consumer stickiness, with the number of transactions
per capita more than tripled, and achieving rapid sales growth.
Such products have been promoted to 440,000 merchants. In
addition, by virtue of the core of smart empowerment, we provided
all-rounded smart solutions integrating management, marketing
and user experience for the managers, merchants and consumers
of the vegetable market, and strived to build a digital ecosystem
therefor. At present, such products are serving nearly 100 vegetable
markets. On the other hand, manual management was replaced by
systematic data drive, providing retailers with digital and intelligent
business decisions through data processing and intelligent analysis,
and realising automatic replenishment and intelligent product
selection, which allowed merchants to reduce the out-of-stock loss
rate by 2/3 and the turnover days by 1/3, and improve business
efficiency in an all-rounded way. Such products have been verified
by 2,000 stores in the market. Looking forward to 2022, we will
continue to develop new digital service products to cover more
business scenarios. Our large payment customer base will continue
to be the foundation of our long-term sustainable development.
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Fintech solutions and services

In order to improve management efficiency and effectiveness,
we separated “fintech solutions and services” from the “payment
processing solutions” segment in the first half of 2021. Fintech
solutions and services mainly include: micro-lending, supply
chain finance, factoring business, credit assessment services and
related products and solutions. In particular, our supply chain
finance sector also made great progress. Two major product service
platforms were built under this sector, namely the Suixin Cloud
Chain Financial Service Platform and the Commercial Bill Financing
Service Platform.

As the Company’s self-developed supply chain financial technology
service platform, Suixin Cloud Chain Financial Service Platform
mainly serves core enterprise suppliers. Relying on blockchain,
big data, cloud computing and other financial technology, it has
built an industrial financial ecosystem, running across credit
barriers in the industrial chain, and to achieve business credit
empowerment for core enterprises, solve the difficult, expensive and
slow financing problems for small and medium-sized enterprises
along the industrial chain, so as to facilitate the favourable and
healthy development of the industrial ecology. The Commercial
Bill Financing Service Platform mainly provides one-stop bill
standardisation services and Sui Quick Bill Discounting services,
supports commercial bill pledge financing and instant discounting
of bank bills. Integrating with financial institutions such as banks,
it can provide small and medium-sized enterprises with efficient,
convenient, compliant and safe financing services. In 2021, we
cooperated with more than 19 banks and 2 trust companies, serving
more than 4,800 suppliers and helping suppliers at all levels to raise
more than RMB12.5 billion in total.

In January 2022, IEREEITIEERIEBRAF) (unofficial English
translation being Beijing VBill Commercial Factoring Co. Ltd.)
(“VBill Factoring”) approved the VBill Supply Chain Finance (Phases
1-15) Asset-backed Securities Scheme* (BE1T{I{FESE S RE1-15H
BEZFEIATE]) (the “ABS Scheme ”) and the issuance of asset-
backed securities, which are backed by loan receivables in the form
of trust interests, in the PRC pursuant to the ABS Scheme. Pursuant
to the no-objection letter from the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
maximum issue size of the ABS Scheme is RMB1,000,000,000
which can be issued in not more than 15 phases by 31 December
2023. The priority tranche of the ABS will be traded on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. On 27 January 2022, the first phase of the ABS
Scheme with a total issue size of RMB309,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$380,070,000) was established.
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Platform operation solutions

In 2021, we continued to provide stable product technical services
and business operation support services for China Mobile Financial
Technology Co., Ltd., the Company’ s major customer. The contract
size also remained stable and we continued to gain recognition
of the customers. In addition, during the year, we expanded our
business beyond telecom operators to new customers, such as the
securities industry. Looking forward, on the basis of deepening
the scale of business cooperation with operators, we will increase
investment in research and development, enhance product
functionality and competence, and expand customers in more
industries, in order to secure more contracts. Meanwhile, we will
continue to expand innovation at business level, focus on technical
services and payment solutions in emerging industries, and further
expand our business scale.

Financial solutions

In 2021, the new generation of decentralised micro-service core
banking products developed by ABS for domestic banks were
verified and launched in Mainland China. The product adopts
a new distributed and micro-service architecture to meet the
requirements of information technology application innovation. As
the core business system of domestic banks is facing a new wave
of technology upgrade and transformation, the focus of ABS’s work
in 2022 is to use the non-inductive down-moving process to help
customers realise the technology upgrade of the core system, and
inherit application assets and realise technology stack updates
at the lowest cost. For Hong Kong and Macau, our focus is to
solidly assist customers in the daily operation and maintenance
services of relevant systems, while closely following local financial
policies, focusing on innovation in financial products, and helping
customers achieve rapid production of innovative businesses. At
the same time, we export the popular and mature Internet financial
technology framework in China to customers, helping customers to
gradually complete the technology upgrade.
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For overseas financial IT service opportunities, Hi Sun FinTech
Global actively carried out market expansion and new product
research and development on the basis of serving its existing
customers. During the period, in addition to the daily operation
and maintenance of projects, the core business system of Banque
Pour Le Commerce Exterieur Lao Public (BCEL), the largest
local commercial bank in Laos, was put into operation in April
2021. The system has been operating stably since it was put into
operation. In terms of expanding into new markets, by virtue of
close cooperation with pipelines, we successfully signed contracts
with new customers such as a digital bank in Kazakhstan, a bank
in Cambodia and a digital bank in Singapore in relation to IT
system construction projects during the period. In terms of product
research and development, we focused on a new generation of
bank core business systems based on a decentralised, micro-service
technology architecture, and managed to sign the procurement
contract for new products during the period. The project is expected
to be put into production in the first half of 2022. At the same time,
in order to actively expand the overseas market and serve local
customers, a Cambodia representative office was established during
the year to localise the Group's service team.

Information security chips and solutions

In 2021, due to the tightened global semiconductor supply chain,
the growth of the information security chip industry tended to
slow down and competition became more intense. The increase
in sales compared to the preceding year was mainly due to the
active stocking of downstream customers because of the tight
semiconductor supply chain. In particular, sales of magnetic stripe
encryption and decoding chips remained stable, and sales of
security microcontrollers (MCU) increased. It is expected that the
information security chip market will develop steadily in 2022,
which is subject to changes due to the policy impact in the payment
market. At the same time, it is expected that the security chips used
in the Internet of Things (loT) will achieve preliminary sales in 2022.
Other research and development projects are progressing smoothly
and the cost reduction initiatives of various products are also rolling
out in an orderly manner.
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In addition, following the completion of the disposal of Megahunt
(the “Disposal”), as provided in the section titled “Key Investing
and Financing Activities” on pages 47, the Group’s interest in
Megahunt will be reduced from approximately 65.73% to 45.73%,
and Megahunt will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company and
will be accounted for as an associate of the Company. The Disposal
is expected to bring strategic benefits to Megahunt's long-term
growth. Through the establishment of cooperative relationships
with new investors, it is expected that Megahunt can benefit from
the experience and reputation of new investors while providing
the management team of Megahunt with the opportunity to
further acquire proprietary interests in Megahunt and encouraging
them to work towards enhancing the value of equity interests in
Megahunt for the benefit of Megahunt and its shareholder(s) as a
whole. Megahunt remained a subsidiary of the Company as at 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In view of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) in Mainland China since January 2020, the Group has
adopted various prevention and control measures in accordance
with the relevant national and local regulations on epidemic
prevention and control to comply with the national epidemic
prevention policies. As local consumption market and hence the
payment processing industry, as well as the Group’s financial
performance may be materially and adversely affected by the
epidemic, the Group is closely monitoring the market situation and
continuously evaluating the impact of the epidemic on the Group's
operation and financial performance.

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue is derived from
a small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. Failure to promptly respond
to changes, continually enhance existing products and launch new
products to the market in a timely manner may adversely affect our
business performance. Also, any unauthorised use of our intellectual
property by third parties could harm our business and competitive
position.
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The Group maintains significant amount of loan receivables, which
primarily comprise micro-lending and supply-chain financing loans,
under our fintech solutions and services segment. Credit risk is
the Group’s primary risk exposure. It is the default risk presented
by loan borrowers and counterparties. Losses may arise if there
are shortfalls in the recovery amount received for defaulted loans.
Substantial defaults in these loan receivables could disrupt our
business operations and our financial position may be materially
and adversely affected.

The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment processing solutions business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses, which will expire in June 2022. Failure to renew
these licenses could disrupt our business operations and our sales
may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group has been operating certain lines of business which adopt
contract-based arrangements and/or structures for the purpose of
enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from
the PRC operating companies in the foreign restricted businesses
in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the PRC government authority would
continue to regard these Contractual Arrangements as being in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future
would not affect the Contractual Arrangements and the relevant
business operations. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are
set out in section above titled “Information on the Contractual
Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 49.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We uphold
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention. The
Company regularly conducts review of, the Environmental, Social
and Governance issues, related approach and strategy, goals and
targets, and if appropriate takes necessary measures to enhance
and adjust, the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance
performance, compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers and
stakeholders having significant impact on the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The followings outline the relevant laws and regulations which had
a significant impact on the Group’s business during the year.

Payment business license

Non-financial institutions acting as intermediaries between payees
and payers to provide online payment, issuance and acceptance
of prepaid cards, bankcard acquiring, and other payment services
determined by the PBOC shall obtain a “payment business license”.

Compliance Measures

Regulatory Relations Department and Compliance Department
of the Group directly communicate with relevant government
departments and review policy changes, and adopt measures to
regularly review and ensure that relevant business licenses are
validly maintained.
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Regulations on online payment and bankcard acquiring
business

Payment institutions, when providing online payment services, shall
apply a real-name management system to register and take effective
measures to verify the real identity information of account holders,
and bankcard acquirers shall implement real-name management of
merchants and follow the “KYC” principle.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control rules and systems
to record customer information and keep transaction records.
In addition, the Group implements the regulations of the PBOC
regarding customer information protection (see “Regulations on the
Protection of Personal Information and Privacy” below for details).

Regulations on the management of customer reserves
Non-bank payment institutions shall (1) deposit the customer
reserves received directly to the centralized depository account
maintained with the PBOC; and (2) pay industry protection funds
to make up for specific losses of customer reserves or for other
purposes specified by the PBOC.

Compliance Measures
The Group has formulated supervision and review measures to
ensure compliance with the corresponding requirements.

Regulations on the administration of testing and
certification of the payment business system

Relevant laws and regulations set out the requirements for the
security management of payment business of third-party payment
institutions in respect of the business system and communication
system.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems to ensure
compliance with the relevant management requirements and
regulations of the risk management department.
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Regulations on the standards for the barcode payment
business

Relevant laws and regulations govern the application of barcode
technology by banking financial institutions or non-bank payment
institutions to engage in the monetary capital transfer business.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems and regular
review measures to ensure compliance and that relevant business
licenses are maintained.

Regulations on the protection of financial consumers
Non-bank payment institutions shall establish protocols for the
protection of the rights and interests of financial consumers.

Compliance Measures

The Group formulates and improves internal protocols and
measures to disclose information to consumers, and perform fair
customer treatment responsibilities.

Regulations on the micro-lending business
The establishment of a micro-lending company shall be approved
by the competent department of the provincial government.

Neither micro-lending companies established within the
administrative region of Jiangxi Province as a new type of
financial organization that provides micro-lending services for the
development of agriculture, rural areas, farmers, nor online micro-
lending companies that complete the entire business process from
risk review, loan application approval, lending to recovery through
online platform shall accept public deposits.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds an online micro-lending business license, and
has formulated guidelines, approvals and notifications measures to
strengthen supervision and management to ensure strict compliance
with operating conditions.
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Regulations on the factoring business

Such regulations regulate commercial factoring companies’
provision of the businesses such as factoring financing, sales ledger
management, collection of accounts receivable, non-commercial
guarantee against bad debts, investigation and evaluation of
customers’ credits, and other relevant consulting services.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control
measures, and strictly abides by the relevant regulations, including
keeping customer identity information and transaction records.

Regulations on the issuance of asset-backed securities

The issuance of asset securities, its listing and trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange shall comply with the Business Guidelines
of Shanghai Stock Exchange on Asset Securitization and the
applicable rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Relevant laws and
regulations standardize asset securitization business, maintain the
normal market order and protect the legal interests of investors.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control measures
to identify, evaluate and manage the risks in the development of
asset securitization business, formulate and implement risk control
measures, and coordinate and supervise other participating entities
to perform relevant responsibilities.

Regulations on the restriction of foreign investment
Foreign-invested value-added telecommunication enterprises in the
PRC shall be established as sino-foreign equity joint ventures, and
foreign investors’ ultimate investment in the enterprise shall not
exceed 50%. Foreign investors shall also have good performance
and operational experience in relevant business.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal control measures, sought legal
opinions, and paid attention to changes in regulations to ensure
that the contractual arrangements and/or structure adopted to
operate business comply with laws and meet relevant operational
requirements.
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Regulations on anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist
financing

Non-financial institutions shall fulfill their anti-money laundering
obligations, including the verification of customer identification,
reporting suspicious large-value transactions and keeping customer
information and transaction records.

Compliance Measures

Our “anti-money laundering department” and “anti-money
laundering system” screen suspicious transactions and enhance the
Group's capability to identify suspicious transactions. Our large-
value and suspicious transaction monitoring system investigates
large-value suspicious transactions, so as to safeguard legitimate
rights and interests, and ensure information and transaction security.

Regulations on the protection of personal information and
privacy

Such regulations regulate the collection and use of personal
information in the provision of telecommunications services and
Internet information services in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism of network
operation security and information security protection to maintain
operation and information security and confidentiality, and regularly
conduct data backups to ensure the integrity of information and
transaction security, and use personal information as required.

Value-added telecommunications business license
All telecommunications service providers shall obtain operating
licenses before the commencement of operation in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds the relevant business licenses. It also conducts
annual inspections and self-checks, and adopts regular review
measures to ensure the vaild existence of the relevant business
licenses.

During the year, there was no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

RFEBNRRMHD FRENER

FERMEBRETRARER 1 ATER S
PR RERRIRERR Z#0A ~ B R AR Z R
ﬁO

BB

FEER NRFIREP K TRAERAR BEATRER
5 IR HB Pl Z BIBES] - REER S M AR5
B RMARERERIRR S ERME S E R R
BEESNXZZE-

BAE R RERTARERN AR

BRERAEETERHEERBNERBESR
BRSSP EAE BBIUENER -

=y skl
FEECARESHBRETZENER R RER
Bl EET - EERERRE  EMETHEERS
7 EREENTBUERENRZRZE  RIZERME
AREARE-

I IS T TR
P B IR (R R RE LA K R S A BT
ST

=yt
AEBFEEREST IR TATAEETFR
K BE  REUE B LB T RABRE X FT AT SR Y
BXIFE-

FR MEERNEFEREREREEEREMN
EXFE-



RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term needs.

Due to the nature of business, the Group did not have any major
supplier that has significant influence on its operations. However,
the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative relationship with
the suppliers.

DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future development to
be an objective. Under the Company’s dividend policy, dividends
may be declared from time to time and be paid to shareholders
provided that the Group is profitable, without affecting the normal
operations of the Group. In summary, the declaration of dividends
and the dividend amount shall be determined at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Board taking into account the following
factors:

e the Group’s financial performance;

e the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
and

e any other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

LI Heguo (appointed on 20 July 2021)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, not less than one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting, and every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung, Mr. Tam Chun Fai and Mr. Leung Wai Man,
Roger, shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87(1). Being eligible,
they offer themselves for re-election in accordance with Bye-law
87(2).

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Heguo who was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director by the Board on 20 July 2021 shall hold office only until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election thereat.

Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard (“Mr. Chang”) would retire as an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from the expiration of the current service
agreement on 19 April 2022. Mr. Chang has confirmed that he has
no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter relating
to his retirement that needs to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in which any Director or any entity
connected with a Director is or was materially interested directly
or indirectly subsisted at any time during or at the end of the year,
nor was there any contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, or any contract
of significance for the provision of services to the Group by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 7.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and
officers of the Group is currently and was in force throughout the
year.

Throughout the year, the Company maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against
liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices,
subject to terms and conditions of the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:
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(note(i)
550,007 (L
(i)
Xu Changjun #eg 16,563,000 (L* - 16,563,000 (L)* 0.6% RMBT,768,884 (L)* 2.96%**
(note (i)
AR 1,768 8847s (L
(i)
RMB550,000 (LJ* 20+
(notei)
550,007t (L
(i)



Note:

(0]

(i)
(iii)

sk

sokok ok

Representing shares of the Company held through (1) Hi Sun Limited, a
company which he holds a 99.16% interest, and (2) Rich Global Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

Representing the personal interest in the issued share capital of Megahunt.

Representing the personal interest in the registered share capital of
Shenzhen Hi Sun.

The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

Calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the Company as at
31 December 2021, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

Calculated based on the issued share capital of Megahunt as at 31
December 2021, which was RMB59,800,000.

Calculated based on the registered share capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun as at
31 December 2021, which was RMB27,500,000.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders (other than a Director, or the Chief
Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
RE4TE/ e AT
Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** -
Rich Global Limited (TRGL J)***
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 1) -
Hi Sun Limited (THSL1 )+ (#f5£7)
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 2) 28,650,000 (L)*

RBEKE Wi2)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”) -
Ever Union Capital Limited (T Ever Union )

Mr. Che Fung (Note 3) -
BB (at3)

Notes:

1 Representing interests in the Company’s shares by virtue of control of 100%
shareholding in RGL.

2 Representing (i) deemed interests in the Company’s shares by virtue of
control of 99.16% shareholding of HSL; and (ii) personal interests in
28,650,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

3 Representing interests in the Company’s shares by virtue of control of 100%
shareholding in Ever Union, which holds beneficial interests in 334,314,000
ordinary shares of the Company.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

**  The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2021, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

#*% - Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng are directors of HSL which
are deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

FERRRN AR AR Z fE i Be 3¢

B

AR —F+"RA=+—H FERE EZqRE
BITHABRRIN RARA B R ERE EE 2 IR% 18
RAND R B EE P B IR IR S 5 R HA S & A 55X VED
BR3P EMEEAAR N TIRER EFLALR AR
RS BB EIRAIE336IRFTE B S s Mz i m Bk
BT

KATEREE0.00258 T2 Z @R

Approximate

Corporate Total number of percentage of

interest ordinary shares shareholding**
RIEZHA

L LEREY [ZB:idin
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 (L)* 645,733,636 (L)* 23.25%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%

sz -

Hok

FEFEIERIRGLZ 100% R EM I AR B RID iR 2 ik

$5 () HIHSLZ 99.1 6% B TR A 1 A A T IR 19 e
B R AAF28,650,0000 Z BB S 2 B
Mo

FEEEESIEver Union 22 100%B&EMMN A A BRI PR 2
1% > Ever Unionf#A 2~/ 5)334,314,00008 Z @M% 2 B
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) of the Comapny under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules subject to disclosure requirement during the year
ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Connected Transaction

Deemed Disposal

On 20 August 2021, (i) Shenzhen Hi Sun, a then indirect
70% owned subsidiary of the Company, (ii) Beijing Hi Sun,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, (iii)
Mr. Liang Jing Jing (“Mr. Liang”) and Mr. Zhao Ming (“Mr.
Zhao”, collectively with Mr. Laing as the “Shenzhen Hi
Sun Management Shareholders”), (iv) FIBREHEE
A%k (BERE) (unofficial English translatlon being
Shenzhen Huan Qiu Jin Shi Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership)) (“LP 17), (v) FINBHKEEHREGELE (BR
&%) (unofficial English translation being Shenzhen Huan
Qiu Yuan Jing Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership))
(“LP 11"), (vi) Mr. Xu Wensheng (“Mr. Xu WS”), Mr. Li Wen]in,
Mr. Xu Changjun (“Mr. Xu CJ”) and Ms. Hui Lok Yan (“Ms.
Hui”, collectively with Mr. Xu WS, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr.
Xu CJ as the “Company’s Management Shareholders”) and
(vii) certain other investors (collectively with the Shenzhen
Hi Sun Management Shareholders, LP I, LP I, Mr. Xu WS,
Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr. Xu CJ as the “Subscribers”) entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Subscribers,
by way of capital injection, subscribed for an aggregate of
RMB7.5 million newly-issued registered capital of Shenzhen
Hi Sun, representing 27.27% of the enlarged registered
capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun, at an aggregate consideration of
RMB9,750,000 (the “Subscription”).
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Upon completion of the Subscription, the Group’s equity
interest in Shenzhen Hi Sun decreased from 70% to
approximately 50.91%. As such, the Subscription constituted
a deemed disposal of 19.09% equity interest in Shenzhen Hi

Sun by the Company (the “Deemed Disposal”).

Mr. Liang is a director of Shenzhen Hi Sun and a general
partner of LP I. As at the date of entering into the
Subscription Agreement, Mr. Liang held 23% interest in
Shenzhen Hi Sun and approximately 81.82% interest in LP |
respectively. Mr. Zhao is a director of Shenzhen Hi Sun.

Each of Mr. Xu WS, Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr. Xu CJ is an Executive
Director and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and Ms. Hui is the Company’s group financial
controller, Company Secretary and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

By virtue of the above, (i) each of the Shenzhen Hi Sun
Management Shareholders and LP | is a connected person
of the Company at subsidiary level and (ii) each of the
Company’s Management Shareholders is a connected
person of the Company. Immediately upon completion of
the Subscription and up to the date of this annual report,
Shenzhen Hi Sun is owned as to 50.91%, 16.73%, 5.09%,
12%, 2%, 2%, 2%, 1.27% and in aggregate 8% by Beijing
Hi Sun, Mr. Liang, Mr. Zhao, LP I, Mr. Xu WS, Mr. Li
Wenjin, Mr. Xu CJ, Ms. Hui and the rest of the Subscribers
respectively.

As all of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under
the Listing Rules) in respect of the Deemed Disposal are
less than 5%, the Deemed Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company which is subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but is exempt from the
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

REBEERIETME  AEBPR SRRV ER70%
D E£950.91% At SR BB AR B ZR15
HESHIRIK19.09%&#E (A HEEIHE)) ©
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Continuing Connected Transactions - Contractual
Arrangement

Yunrong Control Documents

In 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring involving the
Yunrong. Upon completion of the restructuring, Mr. Zhang and Mr.
Wei became the registered shareholders of Hunan Yunrong, holding
70% and 30% Yunrong Equity Interests, respectively. Yunrong
Control Documents were entered into between Hunan Yunrong,
Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and Beijing Hi to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray
to contractually control 100% Yunrong Equity Interests and the
management of Hunan Yunrong.

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the Yunrong
Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Hunan
Yunrong has appointed and designated the Beijing Hi Sunsray as
its exclusive service provider to provide the technical and business
support services and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the
extent permissible under PRC law) provide financial support in
the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to Hunan
Yunrong by separate agreements to be executed and performed by
the parties. The service fee payable for the said services shall be
equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi Sunsray
may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion and in accordance
with the requirements of relevant governmental authorities, with
reference to the working capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

During the year, there were no service fee, dividends or other
distributions payable by Hunan Yunrong to the holders of the equity
interests of Hunan Yunrong and loan made by Beijing Hi Sunsray to
Hunan Yunrong.
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Each of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. The Yunrong Control Documents shall remain
effective save as otherwise terminated in accordance with their
respective terms and conditions. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company with
connected persons at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements and can be exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcement of the Company dated 21 May 2019.

Chongqing JIM VIE Restructuring

In 2019, Chongging JIM, VBill OPCO, Chongging JIM Shareholders
and each of Mr. Shen Zheng, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Xue Guangyu and
Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “VBill Management Shareholders”)
entered into a share swap agreement, pursuant to which each of
the VBill Management Shareholders agreed to transfer all the equity
interests they respectively hold in VBill OPCO, representing an
aggregate of 19.96% equity interest in VBill OPCO, to Chongging
JIM upon completion of certain conditions. As consideration for
the transfer of the VBill OPCO equity interests, Chongging JIM
will increase its registered capital in the amount of RMB526,300
(representing an aggregate of approximately 5% of its the enlarged
registered capital), which shall be registered under the names of the
Management Shareholders. As at the date of this annual report, the
Share Swap Agreement has not yet completed.

Chongging JIM, Chongging JIM Shareholders and New WFOE
further entered into the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap).
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New WFOE and Chongging JIM also entered into the JIM Master
Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
Chongging JIM has appointed and designated New WFOE as its
exclusive service provider to provide the technical and business
support services and (ii) New WFOE has agreed to provide financial
support in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Chongging JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for the said
services shall be equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net
profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding the foregoing New WFOE
may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion and in accordance
with the requirements of relevant governmental authorities, with
reference to the working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.

During the year, there were no service fee, dividends or other
distributions payable by Chongging JIM to the holders of the equity
interests of Chongging JIM and loan made by New WFOE to
Chongging JIM.

Each of the VBill Management Shareholders and their respective
solely owned companies is a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. Each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders is
a director of certain insignificant subsidiaries of the Company.
Chongging JIM Shareholders will cease to be exempted
as connected persons of the Company if the insignificant
subsidiary exemptions under Rule 14A.09 no longer apply. If
so, the transactions contemplated under the Chongging JIM VIE
Restructuring (except step (iv)) constitute connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions at subsidiary level under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but can be exempt
from the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2019 and 24
October 2019.
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Grant of waiver

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted a
waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules from (i) fixing
the term of the Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control
Documents for a period of not exceeding three years pursuant
to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum
aggregate annual cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
for (x) the services fees payable by Hunan Yunrong to Beijing Hi
Sunsray and the amount of loans to be made available by Beijing
Hi Sunsray to Hunan Yunrong (as contemplated under the Yunrong
Control Documents), and (y) the services fees payable by Chongging
JIM to the New WFOE and the amount of loans to be made
available by the new WFOE to Chongging JIM (as contemplated
under the New JIM Control Documents). The waiver is subject to the
conditions as set out more particularly in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 May 2019.

Views of directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents and
confirmed that the transactions carried out during the year ended
31 December 2021 have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (i) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the Yunrong
Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2021 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Board confirms that the auditor has issued an unqualified
letter confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing rules in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021 as being in
order. A copy of this letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
applicable requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

The aggregate amount of sales attributable to the 5 largest customers
was less than 30% of the total revenue of the Group for the year.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

VBill Factoring, a wholly-owned subsidiary of VBill OPCO,
approved BETT(IEEEERMI-15ABEEZFEEFE (the
“ABS Scheme”) and the issuance of asset-backed securities
(“ABS”), which are backed by loan receivables in the form of trust
interests. Pursuant to the no-objection letter from the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, the maximum issue size of the ABS Scheme is
RMB1,000,000,000 which can be issued in not more than 15
phases by 31 December 2023. The ABS are classified into priority
and subordinated tranches according to their risks, earnings and
duration. The priority tranche of the ABS will be traded on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

On 27 January 2022, the first phase of the ABS Scheme with an
issue size of RMB309,000,000 was established. The priority tranche
would be traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and were issued
to qualified institutional investors in the PRC and the subordinated
tranche were issued to VBill Factoring or its designated affiliates.
The proceeds from the issuance of the ABS will be principally used
as general working capital of the fintech solutions and services
business segment. The issuance of the ABS will widen the fund-
raising channels of the Group to access low-cost capital, which in
turn will be used to improve the financing structure of the Company
and promote its operating activities and investments.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
27 January 2022.

Save as disclosed above, no other important event affecting the
Group has occurred since the end of YEAR 2021.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries incorporated and operating in Hong Kong
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) under which employer
and employees are each required to make regular mandatory
contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s relevant income
(“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme, subject to the
minimum and maximum relevant income levels as prescribed by
law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions additional to
the Mandatory Contributions.
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Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute to certain retirement benefit
schemes in favour of the employees in the PRC an amount equal
to approximately 7% to 20% of their respective yearly wages. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

There is no arrangement where contributions may be forfeited under
the defined contribution schemes of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group’s business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained at all times the sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

This Report of the Directors shall comprise all such cross-references
herein contained to other parts of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance or compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance
manual to ensure that the Group’s operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code and applicable
disclosure requirements. Directors and senior management are
provided with appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for regular updates of the legal and regulatory
requirements relevant to their duties.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating directors’ and
senior management’s securities transactions, on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and
the Group’s code throughout the year and up to the date of this
annual report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to and prior
approval of the Board are necessary before the senior management
enters into any material transactions and assuming significant
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 4 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

Li Heguo (appointed on 20 July 2021)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the section
titled “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election
at annual general meeting and the key terms and conditions are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. Subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, the
service contracts shall not exceed 3 years and may otherwise be
terminated in accordance with the terms of the respective service
contracts.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed contract term of one year, subject to renewal
on a yearly basis and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the CG code and may otherwise be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the respective service agreement.
Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings
for the Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training
materials. A summary of training received by the Directors during
the reporting period according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors Exps
Executive Directors: WITES:
Cheung Yuk Fung REE

Kui Man Chun REE

Xu Wensheng HmXE

Li Wenjin 3

Xu Changjun HEE

BIFRITESE :

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Tam Chun Fai SRIRIE
Leung Wai Man, Roger ZER
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard R 2

Li Heguo (appointed on 20 July 2021)

During the year, each of the joint company secretaries attended
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and achieving sustainable and development for the
Group. It also sets out the Board’s commitment to gender diversity
and other diversity aspects, with the ultimate goal of achieving
gender parity on the Board. The Board will take opportunities to
appoint at least 1 female director by the end of 2024 as and when
suitable candidates are identified.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and reviewed
on an annual basis (“Board Diversity Policy”), under which the
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors in the Board members’ selection process,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board members’ appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The Company currently has 1 female senior management, and the
Board will take opportunities to increase the proportion of female
senior management over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four regular Board meetings were held during the year for, among
others, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance and respectively the final results for the year ended
31 December 2020, results for the three months ended 31 March
2021,
and results for the nine months ended 30 September 2021, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2021
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The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of
the Board in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings
and general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of meetings*

BEMEBIRE
Risk
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration ~ Management Regul
Committee Committee Committee Committee Board General
N 41 g M ' g M. ' g Il" 1 °+ M. 4 g M. 11 g
BEREEE RAEE% FHEEE RREE  EREFE
Name of Directors R4 b= = g2 ZEggH g3 BRRAE
Cheung Yuk Fung REE N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TER TER TER TER
Kui Man Chun REE N/A N/A N/A N/A 44 17
TER TER TER TER
Xu Wensheng HXE N/A N/A N/A 22 4/4 11
TER TER TER
Li Wenjin FXE N/A 2/2 2/2 2/2 4/4 1
TER
Xu Changjun HEE N/A N/A N/A 2/2 4/4 1
TER TER TER
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIEE 22 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 11
TER TER TER
Tam Chun Fai B 22 22 22 N/A 4/4 171
TER
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 212 2/2 22 N/A 4/4 1
TER
Li Heguo (appointed on 20 July 2021) FME R_E-—F m N/A N/A N/A 212" 0/0"
tAZ+BEZE
Note: i
* Meetings may be attended in person or by electronic means including ~ * RS HFEEH IARAE 2 A B A HEES
telephone or video conferencing as allowed under the Company’s Bye- REEREETHNHESE-
laws.
* Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller, Joint Company  * SRR LI RARABD 2 EBYHEE - MEAINE

Secretary and member of Risk Management Committee of the Company
attended all meetings of the Risk Management Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Attendance stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his
tenure.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days in advance, and agendas together with accompanying
board papers are disseminated to the Directors within reasonable
time before meetings. Reasonable notice is, as permitted by the
Company’s Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise
agreed, given for other Board and committee meetings.
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The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on, among others, business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which Independent Non-Executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are clearly defined. The clear division of management of the
Board and day-to-day management of business ensures a balanced
power and authority such that no concentration of power shall
vest in any one individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung
acted as the Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, monitoring control systems
and internal control procedures and processes for the Board’s
approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.
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During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held during his tenure,
details of which are set out in page 96 and 97, enabling them to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors a written annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the guidelines for
assessing independence set out thereunder.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference, setting out its authority and duties, and requiring the
Board committees to report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by legal or regulatory
requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of reference of the
Board committees are available on the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites and hard copies of which are available to
Shareholders upon request.

All Board committees, save as the Risk Management Committee,
consist of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Chairman and members of each Board committee as at the date of
this annual report are set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*

Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard*

Li Heguo* (appointed on 20 July 2021)
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Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)”

Xu Wensheng”

Li Wenjin®

Hui Lok Yan*

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

*  Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies
and practices and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the company’s staff, compliance officers, qualified
accountant or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
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(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group's financial
control, internal control system, risk management system and
associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has adequate resources and access to
information necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference to
the CG Code, “Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role of
Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization
of Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An
Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review the half-yearly and annual financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems, effectiveness of
internal audit function of the Group, the auditor’s independence
and objectivity. During the year, the Audit Committee met with
the Company’s auditor twice and approved their remuneration
and terms of engagement. The Audit Committee has further
recommended the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the Company’s auditor and the Board confirms that it has taken
no different view from the Audit Committee in relation to its
recommendations.

As at the end of 2021 and the date of this annual report, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2021 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director.
The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant industry experience, character and integrity
and whether he can contribute to the diversity of the Board as
detailed in the Board Diversity Policy, which is regularly reviewed
by the Nomination Committee with a view to achieve a diversified
spectrum of Directors to facilitate a balanced development of the
Company. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director
is based on objective criteria and summarised as follows:-

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director for
consideration;

2. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate the
personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out under the above section;

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;
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4. (for a Candidate whom may be nominated as an Independent
Non-Executive Director) the Board should assess the
candidate’s independence under Code Provisions A.3.3 and
A.4.3 (re-numbered as Code Provisions B.1.6 and B.2.3
respectively since 1 January 2022) and Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

5. (for a candidate whom may be elected as an Independent
Non-Executive Director at a general meeting) the Board
should consider the factors set out in Code Provision A.5.5 (re-
numbered as Code Provision B.3.4 since 1 January 2022);

6. (in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors) the
Board shall review the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance, including attendance of committees, board and
general meetings, and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and to the Shareholders for re-election at general
meetings; and

7. the Board will convene a meeting for discussion of
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung (“Mr. Cheung”), being an Executive Director,
and Mr. Tam Chun Fai (“Mr. Tam”) and Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger
(“Mr. Leung”), being Independent Non-Executive Directors, shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87(1). Being eligible, they offer
themselves for re-election in accordance with Bye-law 87(2).

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li
Heguo who was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director by the Board on 20 July 2021 shall hold office only until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election thereat.

In accordance with Code Provision B.2.3, the further appointment
of any Independent Non-Executive Director who has served more
than 9 years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders. As Mr. Tam and Mr. Leung have
served the Company as an Independent Non-Executive Directors
for more than 9 years, their re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting is subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by Shareholders.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size, diversity
and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors; (iii) consider the
appointment of new Director and his re-election; (iv) consider
the re-appointment of the retiring Directors; and (v) review the
Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy. It has recommended
the appointment of Mr. Li Heguo as an Independent Non-
Executive Director as an addition to the Board during the year, his
and the retiring Directors’ standing for re-election to the Board,
with reference to which the Board, after due consideration, has
recommended the re-election of Mr. Li Heguo and the retiring
Director’s re-appointment for the Shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The requisite information of the Directors standing for re-election
are contained in the Company’s circular to the Shareholders for the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate
in deciding his own remuneration, whose remuneration will be
determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group’s
goals and objectives.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consider
and consult the Chairman and/or the Board about these
recommendations. The Remuneration Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2021 to review and
recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, to establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy and to assess performance of the
Executive Directors and approve the terms of their respective service
contracts.
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The remuneration, including employee incentive programmes of
subsidiaries, payable to the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band M4 R
HK$1 — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 and note 39
to the consolidated financial statements.

Risk Management Committee
Main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the
followings:

(@) to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls), internal audit function, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, to ensure that effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems are established and
maintained and that sufficient resources are in place for the
Group’s internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group's risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls) for
the Group and Environmental, Social and Governance Report
and adequacy of resources of its internal audit functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2021 to review and assess the
effectiveness of the Group'’s the risk management, internal control
system and internal audit function and considered them effective
and adequate.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and their compliance
of the same and (v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and relevant disclosure obligations.

During the year, the Board, at Board meetings, performed the
corporate governance duties and reported no issues which may had
or might have significant impact on the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 112 to 119.

Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior
management to all members of the Board to enable proper
discharge of duties by the Board as a whole or each member
individually by giving them balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospectus
in sufficient details.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and acknowledges its
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the
systems at least annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and is kept apprised of significant risks that may impact
the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risks at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by likelihood of occurrence and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings determine the level of managements’
attention and risk treatment effort required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed an ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance) covering the
Group’s material controls in financial, operational and compliance
aspects agreed and approved by the Risk Management Committee
and in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision C.2
(re-numbered as Code Provision D.2 since 1 January 2022).

The Internal Control Department reported the review results to
the Risk Management Committee and the Risk Management
Committee was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the areas of the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems, following the implementation of recommendations
against the internal control defects revealed. The Audit Committee
cooperates with the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk
Management Committee has access to information necessary to
fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and had been implemented with adequate resources
during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board adopts a policy for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the obligations of
the Group, in respect of the restriction on disseminating non-
public information, handling of rumours, unintentional selective
disclosure, exemption and wavier to the disclosure of inside
information, and also compliance and reporting procedures.
Senior management must take all reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent any breach of disclosure
requirement from time to time. Employees are required to promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information
to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his delegates,
who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. The policy is subject to the regular
review of the Board. In case of material violation, the Board, or its
designated appropriate personnel, will decide the course of actions
for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services, such as tax consulting
service, for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$4,378,000 and HK$3,091,000respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s)” holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies) signed
and deposited in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

(c) Communication with shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board. The
Company held one general meeting during the year. Notices
of the general meeting were sent in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Company’s Bye-
laws and other applicable laws. At the general meeting,
directors were made available to answer questions, adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders, separate issues were proposed as separate
resolutions for the shareholders’ approval, shareholders were
familiarised with the detailed procedures for voting by poll
and given sufficient chances to raise questions. The Company’s
external auditor also attended the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 18 May 2021 to answer any questions about
the conduct of audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report, the accounting policies applied and their
independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary to direct
their written enquires to the Board.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board regularly reviews the Company’s shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at
the Company’s website) to ensure that the shareholders and
potential investors at large are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information
about the Company, including its financial performance,
strategic goals and plans, material developments, corporate
governance and risk profile, in order to enable shareholders to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow active
shareholders” engagement with the Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be
found.
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There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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To the Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 120 to 275, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment of
loan receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
MEEER
Impairment of loan receivables

PR ERURE

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(i) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 20 (loan
receivables) to the consolidated financial statements.
FE2REEMIBRRME3.1 b)) MBRERR) M4
(RARESHE T R HIE) KisE20 (EUINERR) ©

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross loan receivables
amounted to HK$2,358,475,000, and a provision for impairment
of loan receivables of HK$130,148,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated balance sheet. The impairment losses on loan
receivables in the Group’s consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$113,034,000.
RZT-—F+"A=+—H > SEENEKRERRBES
2,358,475,000870° 7 BEEGEEESEREINEKRE
RRER#E#130,148,0008 7T EEEBE—T_—F
T A= T—HLEFENGERERFNREEREERE
§5187%3113,034,000/ 7T °

The provision for impairment of loan receivables represents the
management’s best estimates at the balance sheet date of expected
credit losses under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments expected credit losses models.
RWERREEE R EEERA(EBYHREERH5%:
TRt TE) FEHEEHEERE SR A EBRREEHEFY
BUERfE(EET©
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HAINEANAREMRRESER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included:
HPYEREERFLENERAEBRER B2
Fr 8

— Understood, evaluated and validated the key control

procedures over management’s estimation of expected
credit losses allowance and periodic review on
overdue receivables and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors in association with estimation of expected
credit losses;
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Key Audit Matter
Rt E1E
Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

PRI ETRE (8)

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and applies a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their expected credit losses. The measurement
models of expected credit losses involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EEENLRMERZEERBRENT EIEEDT AR
R =P RERES EHRREERE -7
EERBAERAMIRNEREEBABNEBRRTIE
BETHEE !

- Selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and exposure
at default;

— BEERENS8RE WEARMMNRBRESE 81F
BOME  BOBRRARRENRRAE ;

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and
— EERRBRESEBIEMENNAERE ; &

—  Economic indicator for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and
weightings.

— FARARUEABENEEER CEBRAEEEN
KA ©

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the loan
receivables and the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance on the loan receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HAINEANAREMRRESEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included: (Continued)
HAYEREERFLENERAEBRER B2
FHE: (@

— for the historical information, discussed with
management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired loans, corroborated
management’s explanation with supporting evidence;

— HRELERN BEEESHLTREEERER
Rk~ BOMEEREEMBE L INAIHEG] » S H
B EEIEENERE

— for forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data; and

— WAL RPHEFEBEERER  EEB
SKFFIRARENSEN  BBTHEIE LB
AT EEY ; &

— agreed major data inputs used in the expected credit
losses models on sample basis to the Group's record.

— WMEWERMEEEEEEMERNEIEZ]NE
B EEEAEERER

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and
judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability
of the loan receivables were supportable by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-—F+_"A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
31 December

120

#E+_A=+—HLEFE
2021 2020
—E-—F T
Note HK$000 HKS'000
B5E T#ET HIT
(Restated)
(=5
Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Revenue WA 5,6 4,182,684 3,844,618
Cost of sales & B 7 (2,958,603) (2,836,288)
Gross profit EF 1,224,081 1,008,330
Other income HMWA 5 95,686 143,971
Other gains, net EL AUl o0 5 5 5 181,265 245,300
Selling expenses §g‘% Fsz 7 (119,086) (81,224)
Administrative expenses TBREA o 7 (649,028) (570,415)
Employees’ incentive programme of —ENBABIZIEE
a sub5|d1ary . ﬁﬁﬂ%‘l‘%ﬂ 28 - (40,191)
Credit impairment loss EERERIE 7 (113,034) (62,261)
Operating profit T 619,884 643,510
Finance costs FRERLAS 10 (70,588) (63,360)
Share of results of investments accounted ~ FE{G AR A ARRZ
for using the equity method _REZEE 22 352,333 301,512
Loss on deemed acquisition R IE R EE—18
and dilution of interest of an PEm AR S
investment accounted for using Z TP E R38R
the equity method, net . L 22 (9,837) (1,044)
Gains on deemed dxsposals of investments  fR{ELH & LB m A AR
accounted for using the equity method K EFTS W 22 2,861,475 -
Profit before income tax BREFIS IR AT EF) 3,753,267 880,618
Income tax expense g~ 11 (129,531) (108,987)
Profit from continuing operations FEREESE RN 3,623,736 771,631
Profit from discontinued operation BEAR IS E R ET 36 61,300 7,510
Profit for the year FREF 3,685,036 779,141
Profit attributable to: FEfL R &
— Owners of the Company —EREEAAN 3,521,526 656,685
— Non-controlling interests —JEIER 163,510 122,456
3,685,036 779,141
HKS$ per HK$ per
share share
siET BT
Earnings per share for profit from AT EE ANEILFE
continuing operations attributable BEEHHAZ
to the owners of the Company: SRR :
Basic =%N 13 1.253 0.234
Diluted e 13 1.222 0.204
Earnings per share for profit attributable ~ ZNAE) EH AFEGEF 2
to the owners of the Company: sREF
Basic E=¥N 13 1.268 0.236
Diluted 8 13 1.237 0.206
The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these  55128F275H 2 Mz hZEREM BRI HP

consolidated financial statements.
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BHEH (FE) ARAF T EER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
- i VN
o e 2 T W e R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ_—F+"A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-B=+—RiL&EE

2021 2020
—F - TEIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
Gl
Profit for the year FEREHN 3,685,036 779,141
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax ~ Efth 2z~ (§518)
(NBRR1E)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified HE O SEET AT B =~
to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIME B A B M IRE
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEXCERERE 87,305 161,107
Exchange differences on translation of the financial 28 B 4% |F &8 & 25501 R 7
statements of discontinued operation ErZERELE 7,957 18,775
Share of other comprehensive income AU EREARZEE L
of investments accounted for using Hth 2 EWm
the equity method 28,361 63,486
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest BEL R E AR —BRE
in an investment accounted for using EmBEL 2 f#E
the equity method 10 (409)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1 & B # 7 HEFEm 2 EHH
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ ZAFEFTAEMEE W@ Z
through other comprehensive income THEEEEEF (2,844,555) -
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of LR EARY — B E
an investment accounted for using ZHth2mWaE, (5518)
the equity method 120 (2,669)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FAZHEKELREE (NRRIER)
net of tax 964,234 1,019,431
Total comprehensive income for the year EASFEAREREAREE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —RKREEBA 775,218 851,684
— Non-controlling interests — ISR = 189,016 167,747
964,234 1,019,431
Total comprehensive income for the year TABEBANEBEER
attributable to the owners of the Company PHEHKEAERS :
arising from:
— Continuing operations —HERE R 729,695 834,520
— Discontinued operation —BRIERE X 45,523 17,164
775,218 851,684

X

5128F275B 2 MDA FHR A B iRE& Z HER

o

The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these

D H

consolidated financial statements.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Consolidated Balance Sheet

g A faR

n‘T IZI

As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—F+_H=+—H

As at 31 December

w+Z-A=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F TEIERF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MisE FAET TAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties GBI 14 857 1,219
Property, plant and equipment EN e 15 264,791 387,318
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 16 60,133 81,655
Intangible assets BVEE 17 25,812 11,231
Deferred income tax assets FIEPTISIMEE 32 = 17
Investments accounted for using Migs ZE AR I8E
the equity method 22 2,695,559 2,404,813
Financial asset at fair value through BATESt AHM2E
other comprehensive income Wik 2 SREE 18 629,711 =
Other financial assets at amortised cost REIE AT E 2
HMsmEE 25 7,788 14,332
Loan receivables R E R 20 - 54
Financial assets at fair value through BATES ABEmZ
profit or loss TRBEE 19 108,200 542,004
Bank deposits IRITHEM 27 - 6,105
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 3,792,851 3,448,748
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 78 23 18,427 121,445
Other current assets HMnsh&EE 26 65,088 80,006
Other financial assets at amortised cost BB A S E
HMsmEE 25 85,945 88,902
Amounts due from investments }@H&L@&”‘f)\ﬁﬁz
accounted for using the equity method S E 7 FIA 39 - 19,957
Loan receivables %H&%ﬁ%ﬁ 20 2,228,327 1,043,025
Trade and bills receivables }%H&EETA&F’%HQWH% 24 168,409 273,894
Financial asset at fair value BNFEFAER
through profit or loss TRIEE 19 1,103 1,036
Current income tax recoverable AU B BN ERFT1S R 12,701 11,990
Short-term bank deposits FEHAIRIT 7K 27 6,832 76
Restricted bank balance ZPRHIERIT4E BR 27 765,462 880,552
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 27 3,254,558 3,747,468
6,606,852 6,268,351
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIEHEZEE 36 419,105 -
Total current assets MENEEMEE 7,025,957 6,268,351
Total assets BEEHE 10,818,808 9,717,099
EQUITY 2k
Capital and reserves attributable TATEBABILEESR
to owners of the Company K f#E
Share capital i 28 6,942 6,942
Reserves EE] 29 6,416,362 5,535,124
6,423,304 5,542,066
Non-controlling interests IR TS 1,067,690 825,438
Total equity e k] 7,490,994 6,367,504
The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these  55128ZF2758B 2 MishZ SR EM BRI HP

consolidated financial statements. o
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BHEH (FE) ARAF

S —EFR

Consolidated Balanee Sheet

n‘T D
As at 31 December 2021

AN — = —
—=—

EEs

—&+=R=+—§

As at 31 December

n+=ZHB=+—H
2021 2020
—T-—fF “ETERF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FAET FHET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities JERENAE
Written put option liabilities BHALHAEEE 33 104,871 831,207
Lease liabilities HEaB 16 10,775 28,143
Deferred income tax liabilities RILFRISIREE 32 2,969 371
Total non-current liabilities JEREN B (FAREE 118,615 859,721
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and bills payables P& 1< BRI R P& 1 TR 4% 30 505,583 526,804
Payables for payment processing TR B RIBHIR
solutions business EF 2 EAERIE 30 624,296 828,619
Other payables and accruals HME R IB R E st 7IE 30 1,076,401 1,013,991
Amounts due to investments accounted FES A mIEAERZ
for using the equity method BEZHIA 39 6,304 43,936
Current income tax liabilities BPRAFREMEE 92,855 51,189
Borrowing (EEA 31 2,446 -
Written put option liability BRFLEAEEE 33 797,710 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 20,801 25,335
3,126,396 2,489,874
Liabilities directly associated with HEOBSREREZ
assets classified as held for sale BEEEHEAERNEE 36 82,803 -
Total current liabilities mBEfeE 3,209199 2,489,874 _
Total liabilities ‘AR 3,327,814 3,349,595
Total equity and liabilities EHRkaBELE 10,818,808 9,717,099

The financial statements on pages 120 to 275 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 23 March 2022 and were signed on its

behalf.

XU WENSHENG
&

Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F0E275 B2 B RFEHEEEN S "F=

B+ =AitEREREKEEZ-

LI WENJIN
EXE
Director

EF

F128E275B 2 st hZE LS
ﬁo

AR 2 Hrpap
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
oy ME i SR W) R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LYNSIE PN
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

ke REE EAEE  HUEE  SNERE  RERN FERER EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T#n T#n TAn T#n T#n T#n Tin

Balance at 1 January 2021 RoB-—£-A-B2EH 6942 1063153 168434 433076 158322 3712139 825438 6367504
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year FRiEF - - = = - 352152 163510 3,685,036
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hfh2EKE/ (55
Exchange differences on translation of the financial & BN BA T BHRREEZ

statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - = = = 64,526 = 2,779 87,305
Exchange difference on translation of the financial BB IHTEEHHBREES

statements discontinued operation ZERER - - - - 5,230 - 2,727 7,957
Share of other comprehensive income of investments FE(E MR \RZKREZ

accounted for using the equity method Hitv2ElE - - - 120 28,361 - - 28,481
Release of reserve upon dilution of interestinan ~ #ELER AR Z

investment accounted for using the equity method ~ —TERBRGHEL 2 HE - - - - 10 - - 10
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ ATEHAEMEZARRZ

through other comprehensive income SHEEEELEY - - - (2,844,555) - - - (2,844,555)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (518 /RELE - - - (2,844,435 98,127 3,521,526 189,016 964,234
Share of other reserves of an investment LB ENRZREZ

accounted for using the equity method HifEtg - - - 3,374 - - - 3,374

Transaction with owners at their capacity as owners EEANEEEAGRETZRS

Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 33) WEERBAT (fat35) - - - - - - 3,371 3,371
Capital injection into a subsidiary A-EANEAREE - - - (661) - - 661 -
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FEREDIE - - - - - - 306 306
Deemed disposal of shares of a subsidiary (Note 34) #fEHE—RHBARRI (Hi#34) - - - 574 (394) - 11,611 11,791
Partial disposal of a subsidiary (Note 36) BAHE-BHBAG ztse) - - - 104,053 (926) - 39,197 142,324
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests M HERED R ZRE - - - - - - (1910 (1910)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-E+ZB=+-BZEH 6942 1,063,153 168,434 (2,304,019) 255129 7,233,665 1,067,690 7,490,994

The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these  55128F 27582 Mz hZ LR S M RRZ HP
consolidated financial statements. e
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BEEH (E) BRAR T EER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ_—F+"A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LIS PN
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve eamings interests Total

ke RPEE  BEER  EMEE  NERGE  RERY HERER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TEr TEn TER TEn TEn TAR

Balance at 1 January 2020 RZE_ZE-A-AZHEH 6942 1,063,153 168434 434,108 (41,043) 3,055,454 591,464 5278512
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 656,685 122,456 779,141
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hth2E (58) /K&
Exchange differences on translation BEBINB AR BREYBRE

of the financial statements of EEZERESR (C87)

foreign subsidiaries, as restated = = = = 122,661 = 38,446 161,107
Exchange difference on translation of the financial ~ #EER ILTEXHHBRE

statements discontinued operation, as restated EE7ERER - - - - 11,930 - 6,845 18,775
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of EENEZENRZREZ

investments accounted for using the equity method ~ E#12 (§5%8) /Wi - - - (2,669) 63,486 - - 60,817
Release of reserve upon dilution of interestinan ~ RAFEAEMEENE 2

investment accounted for using the equity method ~ EREEEBEH - - - - (409) - - (409)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (55 /RELE - - - (2,669 197,668 656,685 167747 1019431
Share of other reserves of an investment BIESERENRZREZ

accounted for using the equity method Hitfifa - - - 13,025 - - - 13,025

Transaction with owners at their capacity as owners 5 ANERBAGRETZRS

Deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries (Note 34) #R1FHEMB AT (Hzt34) - - - (39,050) 1,697 - 53,698 16,345
Employees’ incentive programme WEAR 2 BERE:HE (HH26)

of a subsidiary (Note 26) - - - 27,662 - - 12,529 40,191
Balance at 31 December 2020 WoB-BE+-BS+-B2ER 6942 1063153 168434 433076 158322 3712139 825438 6,367,504

The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these  55128F2758H 2 Mz hZ LR e M BRI HPI
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

SRe Bl iR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-—F+_"A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F C—E-%E
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REFHZRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4% (FrFR) /Fri8IR%E 37(a) (665,898) 199,457
Interest paid BEAFE (2,193) (2,721)
Overseas income tax paid BXAEINRIER (75,098) (95,804)
Net cash (used in)/generated from EES) FRA) PR
operating activities H&3E (743,189) 100,932
Cash flows from investing activities REBHZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE#¥)% - BB K% E (163,663) (222,401)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (5,810) (11,972)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BRERZE
plant and equipment PRiSRIA 37(b) 3,738 376
Proceed from distribution from a financial ~ Z2AF{Ezt ABmZ &/
asset at fair value through profit or loss BEZ DIKFIISHRIE 1,666 -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries A= PN=| 35 (14,951) -
Acquisition of investments accounted WL EARZRE
for using the equity method - (7,895)
Decrease/(increase) in 2 IR FIIRI T4 R
restricted bank balance b (1) 27 136,524 (154,107)
Dividend received from B—EBEA AT ZKRE
an associated company 22 116,480 47,320
Interest received BIFHE 57,612 70,975
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEEFRS (FRE)
investing activities &3 131,596 (277,704)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHZRERE
Capital injection from FFERETTE
non-controlling interests 306 -
Net cash inflow from deemed disposals RIEEHERBLRBERMNZ
of shares of subsidiaries HWERAFEE 34 1,666 95,169
Proceeds from partial disposal o B E— B
of a subsidiary NEIFFSRIE 36 128,552 -
Proceed from bank borrowing SRITERFTEFIA 37(c) 2,412 -
Repayment of bank borrowing BERITER 37(c) - (5,623)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRZz KD 37(c) (30,185) (39,338)
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits SRITER g R (480) 76
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B {3 IFIE G L B (1,910 -
Net cash generated from MEEEFRREFEE
financing activities 100,361 50,284
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BHEH (FE) ARAF

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

0 B i R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 —F+"A=+—HLEE

BETETZ

S —EFR

For the year ended

31 December

BE+-A=+—RAiLEE

2021 2020
—B 5 —EBER
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FHET THAT
Net decrease in cash and REKRREEEWRLD
cash equivalents FE (511,232) (126,488)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRERIREFEY
of the year 3,747,468 3,712,567
Exchange gain on cash and RERREEBYZESR
cash equivalents Wz 59,064 161,389
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F42 IR & KMIFEEEY) 27 3,295,300 3,747,468
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEMZ O
Cash and cash equivalents BEMREEEY 27 3,254,558 3,747,468
Cash and cash equivalents included in RERREEBWETA
assets classified as held for sale DREAFEHEZEE 36 40,742 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F#4REMIREEEY 3,295,300 3,747,468
Cash flows of discontinued operation BRIEEEXEH
RBehe 36

The notes on pages 128 to 275 are an integral part of these  5128EF275B 2 WanZFREMFHRER ZHFES

consolidated financial statements. Do
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), are principally engaged,
in the provision of payment processing solutions, provision
of fintech solutions and services, sales of information security
chips and solutions, provision of platform operation solutions
and provision of financial solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), which are
measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ko W B Rk B e

—RIe

SR (FE) BIRATE ((RAR) REWER
B (iR TAER) TERFREARFE
BRI E RIS SRBH AR R AR ~ #5
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R BRI R SRR ER
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BEEH (E) BRAR T EER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 RBEE (B)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 B R B E)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (@) ANEBRRMZ T REESTE
Group a1l
The Group has applied the following standards FEEER "2 —F—-HF—H
and amendments for the first time for the annual e AV F B ¥R & BRI B R
reporting period commencing 1 January 2021: S ZERRAERT

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The Group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

e Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020 Cycle;

e Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction —
amendments to HKAS 12; and

e Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

o MEREENSZHE MK
BYBREERESR EH
GETERFE39% BBV
HREERE7R BBMHR
HERBAR BB HRE
RIS 165% (BRI 4

REE TR R R LT ST

PN

o EBMBREEN-Z-N
FETZTER HHZEF
HUE

e HBBEXZELNEEKRS
Tféﬁ BBV IEE IR T — é%ﬁ
STEERIE125% (BETA) 5

o T —FXB=+HZE
Covid-19t8RAFE SRR

EXFRIMESTH BRI EIRERRY
TRTEEATE BRATE

WA SRR EARBIG A E
2,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ko W B Rk B e

2.1 RREBE (18)

2 BEARZEEEREE @®

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 B ERKELE) ()
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) ERERMFETER K2l
adopted
Certain new accounting standards and ETMEIEstER REED R

interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting
period. The Group has not early adopted these
new accounting standards and interpretations in

current reporting period:

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

BBEERIE165E (BFTX)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)
EARAGTERFEI7H IBFTE)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
SR BEREERFHINR
(CREY

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

ERMBIREEREIR
SEEtENEI6ER
EARAGHEERIE375%
(BETA)

Accounting Guideline 5
(revised)

g5T551 5558 (&1E5])
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BRGERIERE 1R
CHES)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
SR G EREIRFHESTR
(CRHEN)

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

M BB Kkt | B ERRA
BIFRIS IR

Onerous Contract — Costs of Fulfilling a
Contract

BIREHN—BITEARIMAE

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
HESHEZRAV R

Narrow-scope Amendments

BRASERENEE

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

HEEFEHZEHEHA

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

MBEIERBEEN DR

Definition of Accounting Estimates

GEHEFTRER

o ERBE_T_—F+_8
=+ —HIERERBEEREEIE
R o AL B I AR 5 AR M AR 1R
PRNZ ST S S ER KRR

Effective for
accounting year
beginning on or after

RTHBEMAHZ &
RBHE T FEEER
1 January 2022

B "F—-F—H

1 January 2022
. —
1 January 2022
. —
1 January 2022

g S R =

1 January 2022
. —
1 January 2023
T2 =F#—A—H

1 January 2023
2 =F—A—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHHEFREE ®

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEE (@)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 BEHKFE R EET) (B)
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (b) ERTRABIFETER K2 T
(Continued) #®)
Effective for
accounting year
beginning on or after
RT3 BESHZE
RIS ST EEEN
HKFRS 17 (Amendments) Amendments to Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BBUHREERFE175% RIEEHRERT AR —E=F—A—H
(5T %)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Statement 2 (Amendments)

EBEHERIBIRR BT EERINER
BBV BREEREBR
RFE29E (BFTE)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
(2020) Classification by the Borrower of a Term

Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

BAERESSE (CTTF) WHERRNEI-—ERAHRBERERE
BIRXHEHERN DL

1 January 2023

“E2-=%—HF—H

1 January 2023

“E2-=%—HF—H

HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Extension of the Temporary Exemption from 1 January 2023
Applying HKFRS 9
BBUHREER B45% ERERHRPERBEBUHFRELER “E2-=%—HF—H
(5T %) 55955 2 HARR
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BEBUHREENBI05FKR REEHREMEATHSELEZHE &E
B G ERIE285% NWEEHEITE
(5T %)
The Group is in the process of assessing the AEE M IE S E RN SR g 5t
impact of adopting these new accounting ZR G EAEST AR R ES
standards, amendments to accounting standards FEARI SRR K AT TR R YR
and interpretation on its current or future reporting KRR AW E -

periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

131



132

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ko W B Rk B e

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

(b) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (c)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXZHEBRHE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2 RAARKESEHERD (B
(Continued)
(c) FEquity method (€ )%

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associated
companies are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(d) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 EBEAH

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are at year
end exchange rates generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
“administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at FVPL are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 SMEHBE (8
(d) HEREDHEBIIEE

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Office furniture and equipment 18%-33%
Plant and equipment 10%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investment properties

2.9

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)
(b) Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents

(c)

and capitalised software development costs and in-
progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost less amortisation.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent and
capitalised software development costs and in-progress
technology acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable
that the project will be a success considering its
commercial and technological feasibility, costs can be
measured reliably, there is an intention to complete
and use it, there is an ability to use it, there will be a
probable future economic benefits inflow and there
are adequate resources to complete and use it. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent and
capitalised software development costs and in-progress
technology have a finite useful life and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of them over their estimated useful lives (1.5-5
years).

Software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @

POLICIES (Continued)

210 EEREEZIRE

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at
fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for
any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain
or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of
the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at
the date of derecognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

and discontinued operations (Continued)
Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance
sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held
for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are
presented separately in the consolidated income statement.

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(i)

Amortised cost

(i)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income, except for interest income generated from
loan receivables which is included in revenue,
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other gains, net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
(iii) Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the consolidated income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as “other gains,
net” when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECL”) associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale..

2.15 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against “credit impairment loss” in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Written put option liabilities

The Group has written put options over the equities of
subsidiaries which permit the holders to put their shares
in the subsidiaries back to the Group at agreed prices on
specified dates over a three-year period. The amounts that
may become payable under the options on exercise are
initially recognised at the present value of the redemption
amount within “written put option liabilities” with a
corresponding charge directly to equity within “other
reserves”.

The liability is subsequently accreted through finance
charges up to the redemption amount that is payable at
the date at which the option becomes exercisable. In the
event that the option expires unexercised, the liability is
derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.19 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.21 Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees” basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

(c)

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the
PRC and contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees on a
monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of those
employees under these plans. Contributions to these
retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operate equity-settled share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

¢ including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the subsidiaries issue
new shares. The difference between the proceeds received
and the change in non-controlling interest is recognised in
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When the options are cancelled during the vesting
period, the Group recognises immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (Continued) 2.24 UARH A ERER R (@)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

When the options are modified, the Group will include the
incremental fair value granted in the measurement of the
amount recognised for services received as consideration
for the equity instruments granted. The incremental fair
value granted is the difference between the fair value of
the modified equity instrument and that of the original
equity instrument, both estimated as at the date of the
modification. If the modification occurs during the vesting
period, the incremental fair value granted is included in
the measurement of the amount recognised for services
received over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments vest, in
addition to the amount based on the grant date fair value
of the original equity instruments, which is recognised
over the remainder of the original vesting period. If the
modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair
value granted is recognised immediately.

2.25 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

The Group engaged in sales of information
security chips and electronic power meters. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customer has accepted the
products, the collection of the related consideration
is probable and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Provision of services

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solutions business when services are
rendered which coincide with the verification of the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers
of the Group) by the relevant banks and financial
institutions. Revenue from early settlement services
is recognised when the services are rendered, which
generally coincide when the settlement has been
completed.

The Group engaged in provision of platform operation
solutions services and financial solutions services.
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based
on the actual service provided using the percentage
of completion method, because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues or costs, estimates are revised.
These revisions may result in increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by management.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision of services (Continued)

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such
as the provision of financial solutions and related
maintenance services. The related maintenance
services are accounted for as a separate performance
obligation. Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on
the stand-alone selling prices. If contracts include the
maintenance services, revenue for the maintenance
services is recognised based on the actual service
provided, using the straight-line basis over the terms of
contracts, because the customer receives and uses the
benefit simultaneously.

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is
recognised in the amount to which the Group has a
right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly
basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

Interest revenue

The Group is also engaged in the provision of fintech
solutions and services. Interest income is recognised
and accrued using the effective interest method.
When a loan receivable is credit impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on credit impaired
loan receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

Contract liabilities — receipt in advances

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEXAZ:iHEFEHE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Other income 2.27 EHAthug A

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost,
except loan receivables from the fintech solutions and
services business, calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income.
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2.28 Dividend income 2.28 BEE UK A

Dividends are received from financial asset at FVPL and
financial asset at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
“other gains, net” in the consolidated income statement
when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is
recognised in other comprehensive income if it relates
to an investment measured at FVOCI. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.
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2.29 Leases 229 fE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 BEARIEEREE @®

2.29 Leases (Continued) 229 THE (45

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and any
initial direct costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the consolidated income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from
1 January 2020. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account
for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only
if all of the following conditions are met: (a) the change
in lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and (c) there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Leases (Continued)

The Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,
which extended the practical expedient to lease payments
that were due on or before 30 June 2022.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 14). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$,
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars (“US$”). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, JPY and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than
HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. The exchange rate of RMB
to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For subsidiaries with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,618,000
(2020: HK$2,461,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on

translation of RMB denominated current accounts
with group companies.

As at 31 December 2021, there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in JPY.

As at 31 December 2020, if JPY had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$697,000 lower/higher, mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange difference on translation of
JPY denominated cash and cash equivalents.

For subsidiaries with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$5,128,000 (2020: HK$4,816,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange

difference on translation of HK$ denominated
current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2021, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$1,501,000 (2020: HK$180,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents as well as the current
accounts with group companies.

3

IEEMGEIR @

3.1 BBEBEEER (&
@ THHEE (&)

(i)

SMEERL B (48)

MBI AEIREEE I 2 MY E
NG

W2 —F+/=+—H>
EARERBITEZEFHE%
mEMT A ZEHERTFE 8
ERRRRERRBEMN R LD
#92,618,0008 7T (CEZ £ !
2,461,00077T) > TERMP T
AR ERER AR KRR
EFERELE

A _E_—F+_"_B=+—8"
TEYAEFEZEREERE

f&e

RIE_ZEE+"_/B=+—8"
EHERBTRE FEI%
MEMPA AT RE BIF
RBRIR B FI R IS
697,000/870 FEHN RALHE
BBz REMREEEMESE
PERERE

MUANEKASEINEER W
BAE
RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8"
EETRARKEEZE FHE%
mEMET A S AERFAE R
ERNBRREBEA LMD
#95,128,0008 70 (ZE T4
4,816,000787T) » FEHR IR
BIHERERADZEKBRE
SERERE

ATE—F+ZBA=+—8>
BETRARBEE FHE%
MmEMFT A S ERFTE 8
FERBFREBEMNE R LD G0
#1,501,000/8 7T (ZEZEF !
180,000787T) » EEHNTHLE
T EZRERRSEBYUR
HMEBNBZKERELERE
Rgo



BHEH (FE) ARAF T EER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o WA 5 e A B e

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMHFEREE®

3.1 BBERBEER (&

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (@) _m’_i}iﬂ #)
(ii) Price risk ) BrgEkR
The Group is not exposed to commodity price FEBMBRAZELESRR

risk.
(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest

(iii) Iﬁi/)u%&@zﬁfﬁ%u%aﬁﬁ
MEXERIEEMRIAEZ ATFER
RensATISHEEML IR
REN 2 B - T EA K5 BH

rates. Financial instruments at variable rates TR IASAEEEERRESR
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. BAHRER - HEEMNEKFEH
Financial instruments at fixed rates expose the ETHTESAERREREATERN
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s XEfg - AEBZMEREBEEE

interest rate risk arises mainly from bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. Other financial
assets and financial liabilities are non-interest-
bearing and are measured at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
interest-bearing bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year of the Group would have
been approximately HK$32,613,000 (2020:
HK$37,536,000) higher/lower due to interest
income earned on market interest rate.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from financial asset at FVOCI, other
financial assets at amortised cost, loan receivables,
financial assets at FVPL, amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity method,
trade and bills receivables, bank deposits, restricted

bank balance and cash and cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts of financial asset at FVOCI,
other financial assets at amortised cost, loan
receivables, financial assets at FVPL, amounts due
from investments accounted for using the equity
method, trade and bills receivables, bank deposits,
restricted bank balance and cash and cash equivalents
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to financial assets.

(b)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

For its fintech solutions and services business,
the Group leverages on its proprietary credit
risk management and fraud prevention system
while it also has established a comprehensive
credit risk management process which include
credit origination, credit review, credit approval,
disbursement, post-disbursement monitoring, and
collection.

Management considers the credit risk for amounts
due from investments accounted for using the
equity method to be minimal after considering the
financial condition of the entities. Management
has performed assessment over the recoverability
of the balances and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 4% (2020: 4%) for the total
revenue from continuing operations, and top
five customers constituted 10% (2020: 9%) of
the Group’s turnover from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2021. They
accounted for approximately 55% (2020: 62%)
of the gross trade receivable balances as at 31
December 2021.

Collections of outstanding receivable balances
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis to
minimise such credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables and amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity
method for sales of goods of the Group and from
the provision of services and loan receivables
are subject to the ECL model. While cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balance,
bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

3 HMHFEREE®

3.1 BBERBEER (&
b) FERE (&)

(i)

(ii)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and amounts due from

investments accounted for using the equity

method

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
and amounts due from investments accounted
for using the equity method. The Group measures
the ECL on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. The
Group also estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the trade receivables
and amounts due from investments accounted
for using the equity method based on shared
credit loss risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, and applying
ECL rates to respective gross carrying amounts of
the receivables. The ECL rates are based on the
external credit ratings of individual customers
with reference to credit rating agencies or
historical credit losses experienced up to 3 years
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. Credit
ratings are periodically monitored.

As at 31 December 2021, the ECL of the
collectively assessed receivable balances from
customers of the sales of electronic power meters
and solutions business was HK$9,403,000
(2020: HK$9,160,000) based on expected loss
rates up to 55.1% (2020: 44.1%) calculated
using the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced up to 3 years. The respective ECL
of the collectively assessed receivable balances
from customers of other segments, which is
based on the external credit ratings of individual
customers with reference to credit rating agencies,
is immaterial as at 31 December 2021.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HHBRABERZE (B
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EEEE (&)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) iy THEERE B
Trade receivables and amounts due from FEWCR FUR FE WA RE 23 7A A BR
investments accounted for using the equity 2B FIE (@
method (Continued)
Impairment losses on trade receivables and FEWBR R R I s A A BR 2

amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method are presented as “credit
impairment loss” in the consolidated income
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the

same line item.

Loan receivables

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9
ECL models. The Group assesses whether the
credit risk of loan receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their ECL, the management assesses impairment
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporates key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default, with the consideration of
forward-looking information.

Loan receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1
Loan receivables have not experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of 12
months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2
Loan receivables to customers have experienced a

significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of
lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

Stage 3
Loan receivables that are in default and

considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit
impaired).

In assessing whether the credit risk of a loan
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loan receivables assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is past
due for more than 90 days. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a loan receivable’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)
Stage 3 (Continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the provision
for impairment of loan receivables was
HK$130,148,000 (2020: HK$44,940,000) based
on expected loss rates up to 100% applied to

different stages. The impairment policy of loan
receivables was disclosed in Note 2.12.

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balance, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,
financial asset at FVOCI, bills receivables and

other financial assets at amortised cost

Note 2.12 described the impairment policy
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balance, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,
financial asset at FVOCI, bills receivables and
other financial assets at amortised cost. There is no
loss allowance for these assets at amortised cost as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowing. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of
HK$3,254,558,000 (2020: HK$3,747,468,000) that
is expected to be readily available and sufficient to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$26,633,000
(2020: HK$25,944,000), of which HK$2,446,000
(2020: HK$nil) has been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
their contractual maturities for:

(a) all non-derivative financial liabilities, and
(b) a derivative financial instrument for which

the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

BEEH (E) BRAR

3 BEBA

IREIE @)

S —EFR

3.1 BBERBEER (&
REEZTRE (&

(©)

ZERPNEZERSAORMRREEM
BomNMRZFEAK BI12(88

NEIERZ AEERE S HARE SRR

Between  Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DPR—F —EIHF ZERF HE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TFHT FHT FHT
At 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F
+-RA=+—H
Trade and bills payables FE AT BR AR e FE A BB 9% 505,583 - - 505,583
Payables for payment SR PBRIBRERS 5
processing solutions business ¥ 2 &I 1B 624,296 - - 624,296
Other payables and accruals — E.{th (T T IE K
fESTRIB 970,793 - - 970,793
Amounts due to investments  FE{TLARERAARRZ
accounted for using SEZ IR
the equity method 6,304 - - 6,304
Lease liabilities HEaE 21,718 8,061 3,191 32,970
Written put option liabilites & s AREEE B
(Note 33) (H7#33) 852,188 - 127,680 979,868
Total =1 2,980,882 8,061 130,871 3,119,814
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 HMHFEREE®

3.1 BBEBEEER (&
€ HEHELERE (B

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
LR—F —ZEZF _ELE wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FAET AT FAT TFAT
At 31 December 2020 RIEZEHE
+-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables FEAT BR R S PR 24 526,804 - - 526,804
Payables for payment NG ERIEBRT R
processing solutions business  2£75 7 FE(TFRIE 828,619 - - 828,619
Other payables and accruals ~ EL &I FHIE K
FE 5t RIB 954,066 - — 954,066
Amounts due to investments  FE{TLUEZIE AR
accounted for using S B RIA
the equity method 43,936 - - 43,936
Lease liabilities HEaE 26,459 20,999 8,381 55,839
Written put option liabilites  ZEHEVEAIE AR
(Note 33) (H15#33) - 852,188 124,378 976,566
Total = 2,379,884 873,187 132,759 3,385,830

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
capital. Total debt includes borrowing, lease liabilities and
written put option liabilities of the Group. Total capital
is calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet plus total debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the gearing ratio was

as follows:

FA 55 B

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

EE@®

3.2 BEXRARERE @)

ATBT—HER-EC

eE+=A=+—

B EXafLExmT :

As at 31 December

R+-B=+—H
2021 2020
B —F —B2F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Borrowing (Note 31) = T)\ (Htz231) 2,446 -
Lease liabilities (Note 16) B&81E (Hazie) 31,576 53,478
Written put option liabilities (Note 33) Etﬂ soom A B 1E (W1a233) 902,581 831,207
Total debt B{54E%R 936,603 884,685
Total equity e 4R %E 7,490,994 6,367,504
Total capital MER 8,427,597 7,252,189
Gearing ratio RN =L 11.1% 12.2%

3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Fair value hierarchy

3.3 AT {EMEE

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair values. Such inputs

are categorised into three levels within a fair value

hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBREERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 XFEHT @
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@) L FEER )
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREFAERMBER - —F+Z
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2021. B=+—HBATEHEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R B4R B st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FTERT FTERT TFTERT

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEFAEBRZ
SRIEE
— Unlisted investment fund —FELTREEE - - 108,200 108,200
— Listed equity securities — L HRAES 1,103 - - 1,103
Financial asset at FVOCI BN FEFT AEM
2EWGZETEN
SRIEE
— Listed equity security — EHRAEE 629,711 - - 629,711
Total =11 630,814 - 108,200 739,014
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREVAERZRNR _EEF+T
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2020. B=+—BRTEEZEE"
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—k F R F=4R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET AT TFAT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFEF AR
SRIEE
— Unlisted investment fund ~ —JF EHREES - - 123,480 123,480
— Unlisted convertible —JE LAk
preference shares 1BIRR - — 418,524 418,524
— Listed equity securities — LR AES 1,036 - - 1,036
Total =1 1,036 — 542,004 543,040
There were no significant transfers of financial assets FR>RATFEERDEBLETHSE
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during EEREERE (CETZ2F A

the year (2020: same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1
The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

(i) Financial instruments in level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(i) Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not

based on observable market data, the instrument

is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted

equity security, unlisted investment fund and

unlisted convertible preference shares.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (“CFO")
and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

GLAEZE € R

3 MHBRAKREE @

3.3 DFEMEE @)
(a) WNFEER )

() F—HzesmITA
EERMBEES/MIT A (HIm
ArAEETETAKEBERKA
#BH) 2 AFE REBEEEHZT
BHRESAE AERMFEME
EZHEREAEFEAB-Z
ETHEFAFE R

iy E_HrEMmTH

WIS ERTIENEE > ST A
FBIMTE T B) LUSERMTE
EAFE HRSBRATEES
D% TREMKBEE
BEMst e ET A AFEFE
ERAEABASIESATTER
g BRI At AE Mo

Bz EmMIA
E-ENZEERHABIRILIF
Rz mEBEREE A
RLERSGAZ =M LHER
RIFETRAEBSH FFLHRE
BEERIFLHARESR

(iii)

(b) EER-TFEREHEZIGERMN
REBMPH A RIS — AR B EFR
FEMEEGE (BES=HRATE)
Z B REEEET ZEEREER
F5haEs (T F5HEER)) B > WA R
BRERSIMBL(ERT

FERMRRSRERME  EE2ED
SARAEEEWENEEHHETR
B st 28 WRMRUREF SR
SRR - MERMRRERER
i EEARRIBERBREEENER
EEFHEH RIS EUT AR
ERTHIHERTIR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)
Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2020: same).

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December
2021:

3

IEEMGEIR @

3.3 DFEMEE @)

(c) BHFEATEEERGAEHEZ AT
E5tE (B=4R)
AUME=Z ST AEGEZ TS
BEENEENRREERESTREE
FEBENER M o ARG ER T I &
gE) (CEBF MR °

TRENHBE_ZE_-_—F+_-H8
—+—HALEEE=HhEmIAE &
& .

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

BATESAREZ
EREE
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted
preference investment
shares fund Total
—JFLT —JFLmH
AR EER REESE =H
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
THER THR TR
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—&5—B—H2H#&H 418,524 123,480 542,004
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation FAEEHERE 2 EfEATE
recognised in profit or loss g/ (B518) 197,822 (16,631) 181,191
Conversion of convertible preference ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
shares (Note 19(b) (Kizt19)) (616,346) - (616,346)
Distribution pal - (1,666) (1,666)
Exchange realignment B 52 A% - 3,017 3,017
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-&+-A=+—H
2HEER - 108,200 108,200
Unrealised losses recognised in the  FRER&EHARIFBERIEMGZ
profit or loss attributable to balances 1832 BB R EHEE
held at the end of the reporting period - (16,631) (16,631)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HHERERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AT EM @&
(c) Fair value measurements using significant (c) 1FEHEATOJERGNA EE 2 1\ F
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) E518 (F=4R) #)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREIBRE_Z_ZF+_A
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December =E+—BLEFEFE=fEMIACE
2020: g

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

BATESABRZ
THEE
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted
preference investment
shares fund Total
—JkLTH -3kt
AR E xR RERET CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAR FTET
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZE_TE-A—-HZE&ER 166,113 122,093 288,206
Fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation Bz MR Z B AT(E
recognised in profit or loss Wz, (E518) 252,411 (6,545) 245,866
Exchange realignment fE R A% - 7,932 7,932
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZZEF+-A=+—H
pd =3:3 418,524 123,480 542,004
Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised ¥R & BARIFAAEERMEILZ
in the profit or loss attributable to Bz BRIRER
balances held at the end of the W,/ (E518)
reporting period 252,411 (6,545) 245,866
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted investment fund

The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
of 10% (2020: 10%).

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted convertible preference shares

The Group adopted the discounted cash flow
analysis for the purpose of valuation of the
financial asset at FVPL - unlisted convertible
preference shares as at 31 December 2020.

For the valuation as at 31 December 2020, the
compound annual growth rate adopted in the
discounted cash flow analysis was referenced to
an industry report prepared by an independent
research firm as mentioned in the prospectus of
the issuer of the unlisted convertible preference
shares dated 8 February 2021, adjusted for the
issuer’s market position and customer profiles.

The other key assumptions include discount rate
of 13.8% and terminal growth rate of 0%. If the
discount rate shifted upward by 1%, the impact
on the consolidated income statement would be
HK$27,157,000 lower. The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair value.

3 MR

BE®

3.3 AFEMEF @)
(c) EHEATETEZRMA BiEZ N\ F
BErE (F=4) (B

(i)

(ii)

BAFEFAERNEME
E-FFLmREES
NEERTE TERBREESIT
E10% (CTETEF 1 10%) B &
BREEFEEFLITREES
ZAFERE -

BAFESABmZEHME
E—IF EH AR ERR
AEERM_ZFTFE+Z ﬁ
=+t —HARATEFARDZ
%EE;’%—?EJ:FEEH&HQ@%HQZ
HEFRMMSRETRED

M_BTFT_A=+—H08
GE ETHRREEZREDINE
RMPESFIERERTVBEIF L
TR EBRREITABRS
BT -FA/\BNERERE
PRIR B R EH PR RBITT
RG> WRLHET AT EH
BERREITHE -

HtMFrE/RKXEIEMIREI3.8%
B B AR 18 EFR0% o {8 B ER =R 18 1
1% > B 4R & U o 2= B9 52 2R
127,157,000 70 ° BhIRE S
NFEME



BEEH (E) BRAR

S —EFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.4 Financial instruments by category

3.4 BERESZEMIA

EEMGEIR @

GLAE RiEd (TS

As at 31 December

n+=ZHB=+—H
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Financial asset at FVOCI BAFESFAEMEERGE 2
TRBEE 629,711 =
Financial assets at FVPL BATESABmZ TMEE 109,303 543,040
Financial assets at amortised cost BBIERA ST EC SRIEE
Other financial assets at BEIEm AT 22 M
amortised cost TREE 93,733 103,234
Amounts due from investments FEW R EARZEE
accounted for using the equity I8
method - 19,957
Loan receivables FEUE =R 2,228,327 1,043,079
Trade and bills receivables FEWBR A FE U 248 168,409 273,894
Bank deposits IRITER 6,832 6,181
Restricted bank balance 2 PRMEIRITAEER 765,462 880,552
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIBEEEY 3,254,558 3,747,468
Total =111 7,256,335 6,617,405
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~IZ#IHM A2 TREE
Written put option liabilities BHFLIAEE 902,581 831,207
Lease liabilities HESRE 31,576 53,478
Trade and bills payables FE A BIR R e P A R 4% 505,583 526,804
Payables for payment processing SNRBERIEMRFRER L
solutions business FEFRIE 624,296 828,619
Other payables and accruals HLAth & AT 7R I8 e FE 51 R IE 970,793 954,066
Amounts due to investments FETUEREARZEE Y
accounted for using the equity I8
method 6,304 43,936
Borrowing fEM 2,446 -
Total =L 3,043,579 3,238,110
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii)). The Group use
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forwarding-looking estimates at the balance sheet date.

Impairment loss on loan receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows in stage 3.

Fair value of the unlisted investment fund at fair
value through profit or loss

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund at FVPL that
is not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each of the
balance sheet date. The Group has used net asset value
model for the unlisted investment fund at FVPL that is not
traded in active market (Note 3.3).

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

4 RBRSEGEHEEtRAE @

(@)

(b)

(o)

FEWCRE (&)

FREEERRZ BT RERNEEEHE
R TEOEEECERYKEER
HRERTE2E BEEEERRES AR
Nz R%E WO EEEL BRI 2/
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EEERARKRE =R RRRE
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=

RAFEFABZZIFLEHRERS
2FE
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ZIEPREEZZATEDRBGEER
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, 5 UZA - EfthUg A R E fthikzs 558

NET
Revenue, other income and other gains, net recognised during R EPRFESS 2 WA ~ LU A R Eo iy 2555 88
the year are as follows: wmr
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-_B=1+—HILEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(#REF)
Continuing operations FRREER
Revenue from contract with customers RERER SN
Recognised over time PRI BT ST
o . . = _tt
Provision of services AR ) 3,905,489 3,547,202
Recognised at a point in time TR B 2 55
Sales of good HESm 99,631 138,289
4,005,120 3,685,491
Revenue from other source R B H fth 25 A Ue i
Provision of fintech solutions and services 2 {5 RARH % AR IR 75 22 K2 AR 75
(Note i) (Byzti) 177,564 159,127
4,182,684 3,844,618
Other income Hanug A
Interest income MEBA 57,371 70,875
Government subsidies (Note i) BT B8RS (07 a2ii) 33,789 67,820
Rental income B WA 3,388 3,207
Others Hh 1,138 2,069
95,686 143,971
Other gains, net Hthh =388
Fair values gains/(losses) on financial BN ESABRZSHEE
assets at FVPL ZAFEWE, (858)
— Unlisted convertible —JE LT R E SRR
preference shares i 197,822 252,411
— Unlisted investment fund —JFEHREES (16,631) (6,545)
— Listed equity securities — EhiRAE S . 67 (676)
Dividend income from a financial RELAFESABRZ
asset at FVPL THEEZKREWA 7 110
181,265 245,300
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS,

NET (Continued)

Note i:  Revenue from provision of fintech solutions and services represented

interest income recognised and accrued using the effective interest
method.

Note: ii Government subsidies represented value-added tax refund
from local tax bureau and grant from government in relation to
sales and research and development of self-developed software
products in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled condition and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

Due to continual development of the Group, management
has changed its internal organisational structure to align
more closely with the Group’s strategic decision and market
dynamics to better serve customers. In particular, separate
business units have been established for its payment processing
solutions business and fintech solutions and services business,
while electronic power meters and solutions is no longer
separately disclosed in management reporting. The Group
has adopted the new organisational structure as the reporting
format effective from 1 January 2021. The comparative segment
information has been revised to conform with the current
organisational structure.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the results of the
information security chips and solutions segment are presented
as discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
(“HKFRS 5”) as detailed in Note 36. Last year’s comparative
segment information has been restated to conform with the
current year’s presentation.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports:

5 WA~

for o A 5 ¥ R BT
Bt A e LR 2554

iazi:  RMEREHBRE BRRBEZWABEUBR
FRHHED R RETHIFBUA

Bstiic  BURHRRTEH S IR BB B (BB R BT AL
R EISH R 8 B TR ERM ERR TR
BYA R - WEZ S AR L B I A R AR R L
e ARIE

SHEER

EEERBEEFEERHUFHRERE Z B
REMEEEE D

EFENERAETEAERES-

ERAEEREERE EEESERENIAE
BB LB AAEENBE AR RTHE
BoMmEFAERRE - LER FA&EE
MEAXNRZREBRTBEB SRR E
R BRI EB DRI EFEEN > B
STERBADETBREERETEERE -
FEECRAMIERRBERE S - —F
—A— Etixﬁlﬁ’ﬁﬁiﬁ_t EEBRAOBERE
KBE B RTRVARBIB R ERT o

RBEZZ—F+ZA=+—HILFE
BRETRKERDEDENEERBEE BN
B SR EsE (HEBHMBREER B
FEREZIFPRSEERERIEEEXHEZS
REMRIEZET GERIMEE36) - REMLLER DA
BERHE BRI ERFEENZS G-

FERZABRE DAL EZSLENE
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operation

(@) Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting and related products and solutions;

(b) Fintech solutions and services, principally engaged in
provision of micro-lending, supply chain financing,
factoring business, credit assessment services and related
products and solutions;

(c) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services;

(d) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks; and

Discontinued operation

(e) Information security chips and solutions — principally
engaged in the provision of information system
consultancy services, the sales of mag-strip card security
decoder chips and related products and solutions in
Mainland China.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of a earnings/(losses)
before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA”) and segmental operating profit/(loss). EBITDA
excludes write off of property, plant and equipment, net fair
value gain/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss (“FVPL”) and employees’ incentive programme of a
subsidiary.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by

operating segment is as follows:
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Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B&LE
RRBLELE gERy
Information
Payment Fintech Platform security
processing  solutions and operation Financial Total chips and
solutions services solutions solutions Others Group solutions
%f4 SREE =8
RARE BARZ TRES £/ R2BR
BASE kiR BARBFE  BARE Hitt  EESH REBASE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr TEx TEx TER TEn TEn
Year ended 31 December HE-_Z--%£+-A
2021 =+—HLEFE
Segment turnover NEEEE 3,346,991 213,843 191,697 336,396 101,176 4,190,103 454,480
Inter-segment turnover DEBEEE (4,154) (1,291) (1,974) - - (7,419) -
Turnover from external RESMBERZ
customers o =] 3,342,837 212,552 189,723 336,396 101176 4,182,684 454,480
Segmental EBITDA (excluding ~ £4BEBITDA (FE4E
write off of property, plantand ~ ##H¥1% B &
equipment and net fair values & {8 RIRATEET A
gains on financial assets at ~ BEHZ EHEEZ
FVPL) ATENEFH 809,910 18,966 (5,660) (8,202) (26,821) 788,193 79,255
Depreciation e (228,007) (5,905) (4,449) (7,108) 2,779) (248,248) (8,564)
Amortisation B (250) 471 (39) - 93) (853) (2,666)
Write off of property, WIEME - BERZE
plant and equipment (2,257) - - - - (2,257) -
Net fair values gains on BATESABGZ
financial assets at FVPL SRBEZATE
Wi - - 181,191 - - 181,191 -
Segmental operating profit/(loss) 2 BATE &R/ (§518) 579,396 12,590 171,043 (15,310) (29,693) 718,026 68,025
Unallocated other income FOFEMBA 4,090 -
Unallocated corporate expenses & DB %R S (102,232) -
Finance costs FE A (70,588) (385)
Share of results of investments  FEMEMEREASRZ
accounted for using the REZ*E
equity method 352,333 -
Loss on deemed acquisition ~ BIEWEERK EE—1E
and dilution of interest of MgmEANRZ RS
an investment accounted for 2 ERFTEEEFRA
using the equity method, net (9,837) -
Gain on deemed disposal of  fRIEHELE T E AR
interests accounted for using 2 ERFTGIE
the equity method 2,861,475 -
Profit before income tax FREnE AR 3,753,267 67,640
Income tax expense FriSMmx (129,531) (6,340)
Profit for the year R 3,623,736 61,300
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEN®

K%@EWZH&U&&% BRIKE
(I\E)

DESN

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by
operating segment is as follows: (Continued)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operatlon
B L i«(M¥§&(
Information
Payment Fintech Platform security
processing  solutions and operation Financial Total chips and
solutions services solutions solutions Others Group soﬁmpns
h SRR ) s
wPRE  BAnE  TAEE 3R _ wmaip
BALE % BARE  BARE 2ty EEAS KRBARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TER TEn Thn TET FET FER
Year ended 31 December ~ HE_Z-ZF+_H
2020 (Restated) =+—H &85
Segment turnover ﬁ*ﬁ.g.%gﬁ 3,127,636 160,303 176,873 271,487 138,289 3,874,588 298,753
Inter-segment turnover NEBEEE (20,556) (1,176) (8,238) - - (29,970) -
Turnover from external RENMPER 2 EEE
customers 3,107,080 159,127 168,635 271,487 138,289 3,844,618 298,753
Segmental EBITDA (excluding  Y4EEBITDA (FE1E
write off of property, WEEmE -BEK
plant and equipment, R BATEA
net fair values gains on TEmZémﬂﬁéz
financial assets at FVPL ATEREPER
and employees’ incentive ~ —EMBAFZ
programme of a subsidiary)  BEX &5 E) 822,237 11 3,864 (33,494) (1,892) 790,726 16,161
Depreciation e (225,912) (5,095) (4,983) (5,039) (2,858) (243,887) (4,818)
Amortisation ik - - (36) - (86) (122) (1,803)
Write off of property, plant and ##5%1% » B K sk
?wpment _ (26,156) - - - - (26,156) -
Net fair values gains on BATES A BTG 2 2R/
financial assets at FVPL %EZ@$f§UQ§ - - 245,866 - - 245,866 -
Employees’ incentive —BE AR 2 RERE
programme of a subsidiary & & (40,191) - - - - (40,191) -
Segmental operating profit/(loss) 7 iEZ & ER / (§518) 529,978 (5,084) 244,711 (38,533) (4,836) 726,236 9,540
Unallocated other income KRB EMUA 6,798 -
Unallocated corporate expensesﬂiﬁ@itﬁﬁaﬁ?i (89,524) -
Finance costs AL (63,360) (362)
Share of results of investments W§1£ NgmEARZ
accounted for using the REZEE
equity method ) 301,512 -
Loss on deemed acquisition R FUTEE K12
and dilution of interestof  MEmAAEZEE
an investment accounted for 2 BmFT{S 8854
using the equity method, net (1,044) -
Profit before income tax PRFTSRATIE R 880,618 9,178
Income tax expense iSRS (108,987) (1,668)
Profit for the year FEREH 771,631 7,510
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The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2021 are as follows:

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

6 DHEEN®

BT —HF+R=+—HZOEEERS
BRBEZZ_—F+A=+—HLFEF
MENEEZARENT !

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRI
RELEER REEH
Information
Payment Fintech ~ Platform security
processing ~solutionsand ~ operation  Financial chips and Total
solutions services solutions solutions Others ~ Unallocated solutions  Elimination Group
%t ERBE fE8%2
RAEE  BARE  TREE & SRR
LYYES k% BARE  BARR Hit AE  BARE HE  &Ess
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Tén Tén Tién Tn Fin Thn Fin Thn
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-£
+ZA=+-A
Segment assets NEEE 4026159 2671425 1134088 564251 336457 396374 419105 (4,296371) 10,818,808
Segment liabilities PEaE (2,838,304)  (1,200,975) (354,254) (638,289) (296,449) 213,111) (82,803 2,296,371 (3,327,814)
Year ended HEZZ_-F
31 December 2021 +2B=+-AL
£E
Additions to non-current assets ~ FERBIEEZAE
(excluding deferred income tax (REEEERE
assets, investments accounted for ~ EE MEGEARZ
using the equity method, financial & ERATE
asset at FVOC, other financal SARMEEREZ
assets at amortised cost, loan SREE REH
receivables, financial assets at AGEz EtheR
FVPL and bank deposits BB EWED:
BRTEH ABEZ
SREEREIER 121,484 25,174 3,526 6,950 735 197 38,229 - 1929
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEN®

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

RIZTEE+"_A=+—HZNHEEERS
BRBEE_ZTEF+_A=+—HLLEEF

188

2020 are as follows: MENBEZARENT .
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BALE
2(« 2 ¥}& z(« =3 ¥ },’Z
Information
Payment Fintech Platform security
processing solutionsand ~ operation  Financial chips and Total
solutions services  solutions  solutions Others  Unallocated ~ solutions  Elimination Group
3 SEEE B
RERE BARE  FREE SH Emk
BARR ER®E  BARE  BARE Hftr 0k BARR B EEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TET TEn TET TEn TEn TEn TEn TEL
As at 31 December RZEZEE
2020 (Restated) +-B=1+-H
(%)
Segment assets NEEE 4,189,618 1,829,530 905,870 385,722 264,126 3,605,038 336,366 (1,799,171) 9,717,099
Segment liabilities NEaE (2,859,267) (997,884) (322,506) (438,423) (313,778) (147,586) (69,322) 1,799,171  (3,349,595)
Year ended 31 December HE_S_Z&
2020 +ZA=+-H
JI2:35;
Additions to non-current  FERBBEEZFE
assets (excluding (FEIERILAS
deferred income tax REE LR
assets, investments ANRZKE
accounted forusing — REHERRAGEZ
the equity method, HEtheh
other financial assets & ERE
atamortised cost, loan  HAFE AER
receivables, financial 7 &BEERET
assets at FVPL and 2|
bank deposits) 209,961 1,443 5,818 14,082 1,136 169 38,983 - 271,592
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets (2020: same).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China and
Hong Kong (2020: same). The Group's turnover by geographical
locations, which is determined by the locations in which the
turnover are generated from, is as follows:

o WA 5 e A B e

DEEN @®

EW FERBEEZAETECRENME -KE
REEARBERBIEEZRE CTZ
%EWEH)

BEFERHEZENFBRGEYBERE—X
ZHAF R RFEERARRNBZERD
Ao

DEEZHER —REERRET - REEE
PEIR B SMER S 75 1S 2 WA R A B4R & I 2
— 2 FEFEe

FAEBIEMERTEAKREREE (CEZF
F AR cAEEZME (RZEXREEY
W) BN 2 EXEINT ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAI&EE

2021 2020
—E-—F TECEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT

Continuing operations RS R
Mainland China aalETpN 122 4,021,961 3,747,510
Hong Kong B 160,723 97,108
4,182,684 3,844,618

BRIEEEETR
R A B

Discontinued operation
Mainland China

454,480 298,753
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred income
tax assets, investments accounted for using the equity method,
financial asset at FVOCI, other financial assets at amortised
cost, loan receivables, financial assets at FVPL and bank
deposits) and current assets by geographical locations, which is
determined by the geographical locations in which the asset is
located, is as follows:

DHEEN @

FrERRME (HREEFRTHIZEUEET) 8
NZIFRBEE CEBRLEFISNEE LI
TAARZERE - BATES ARMEER G
ZERMEE RBENAS B HMERMEE
BUWER BATES ARG EMEEKIER
TER e EEHTIT -

As at 31 December

w+=ZH=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F TETEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERSHEE
Mainland China (e A fE 349,232 476,110
Hong Kong e 2,361 5,313
351,593 481,423
Current assets RENEE
Mainland China e A 5,559,809 4,823,568
Hong Kong 5B 1,466,148 1,442,222
Others H1th - 2,561
7,025,957 6,268,351
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7 UMEESZRAX

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, STARHER A HERI  THRERNREEHR

administrative expenses and credit
analysed as follows:

impairment loss are BEREZEZORIT !

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E_—F —_B_BF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THT
(Restated)
(ET)
Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Auditor’s remuneration 12BN =
— audit and audit related services — R Z AR RS 4,378 4,238
— non-audit services — IR 3,091 4,387
Commission and incentives paid miBEE R AR A8

to merchant recruitment agents HE KR ALED 2,149,981 2,081,720
Depreciation of property, Y R Fe s BT EE (fati5)

plant and equipment (Note 15) 227,484 219,920
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE Watie)

(Note 16) 26,979 30,591
Depreciation of investment properties KEYEITE (Hat14)

(Note 14) 173 205
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) L& E#E (Hzt17) 853 122
Employee benefit expense BB RN

(excluding employees’ incentive FEiE—HENBARZ

programme of a subsidiary, including REREBISE AEESWS)

directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (H1&£9) 731,407 664,946
Costs of inventories sold (including reversal & HFEMZA (BIEFEEE)

of provision for inventories) (Note 23) (H1&£23) 83,415 112,519
Operating lease rentals in respect T REFZEESHERS

of land and buildings 9,981 5,721
Research and development costs MR REZERA (BEETRA)

(including staff cost) 214,497 240,076
Gain on disposals of property, LEMFE -BERRHZ

plant and equipment (Note 37(b)) Wzt (HaE37b)) (204) (12)
Write off of property, WMEEIZE ~ BB Rkl (HYaE15)

plant and equipment (Note 15) 2,327 26,156
Credit impairment loss EEREEE

— trade and bills receivables (Note 24) — R AR R FE U R4

(Hyz£24) - (4,765)

— loan receivables (Note 20)

—RWER (Hfat20) 113,034 67,026
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8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 8 IMEEIRBER
The net foreign exchange loss from continuing operations BE_Z_—F+A=+—HLFE KB
recognised in administrative expenses for the year ended FEEEEBIITHRX R 2 IMNERIRPER
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$5,019,000 (2020: #35,019,000/8 70 (ZE "  4,355,000/87T) °

HK$4,355,000).

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9. EE&EHMX (BIZEEMD)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAILEE

2021 2020
—E_—f “Z2TERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
(Restated)
G==pdl))
Continuing operations FBREER
Wages and salaries TERME 605,228 586,105
Pension costs and social security costs BIKE A Rt ZRER K 126,179 78,841
731,407 664,946
Employees’ incentive programme of —RINEBAE SR &
a subsidiary (Note 28) (Hiz28) - 40,191
Five highest paid individuals 1% E'_'_ﬁﬁk:t
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the rERBE_Z_—F+"_A=+—HLEE
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included four hEER %ﬁ/\:b@%@%(_’g_vﬁ mi) E
(2020: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the FoREZINEBTEMNFN DA RIR  REE
analysis shown in Note 41. The emoluments payable to the ENER T —% (CEIEF 1 =) AL 2B
remaining one (2020: three) individual during the year are as T
follows:
For the year ended
31 December
B#E+_A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E_—£F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ R RBYHw 1,013 3,443
Pension cost — defined contribution plan B {ksE A — EZBHRETE 157 249
Discretionary bonuses FIIETEAL 2,311 5,599
3,481 9,291
Employees’ incentive programme of —RINE Az SRR 2
a subsidiary - 40,191
3,481 49,482
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DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
The emoluments fall within the following bands:

HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

HK$12,000,001 — HK$12,500,000
HK$13,000,001 — HK$13,500,000
HK$23,500,001 — HK$24,000,000

EnE 2}

3,000,001 75—3,500,0007E 7T

12,000,0017875—12,500,0007 7T
13,000,0017875—13,500,00078 7T
23,500,0017875—24,000,0007%8 7T

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

EEEFRS (BEEEMD) @

E#mAL (&

M= TR

Number of individuals
A
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-B=+—RAiLEE
2021 2020
“ETEHF

|
_ =

FINANCE COSTS

10 FEERZs

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
(Restated)
(&5

Continuing operations FRREER

Finance costs RRE AL A

— Borrowing —f&N - 51
— Lease liabilities —fHE&aE 1,809 2,308
— Written put option liabilities —BHFHIAESE 68,779 61,001
70,588 63,360
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FRiSHRX

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—& o=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFAT
Current income tax ERRE

~ Hong Kong profits tax —BBFNER - -
— Overseas taxation —BINRIE 136,365 110,727
Deferred income tax FEIEFT1R (494) (72)
Income tax expense PS> 135,871 110,655

Income tax expenses is attributable to: ~ FFfSIRFAZ RS :
— Profit from continuing operations —FEREER AT 129,531 108,987
— Profit from discontinued operation —BARIEEEER TR 6,340 1,668
135,871 110,655

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) in accordance
with the PRC CIT Law. According to the PRC CIT Law and
the relevant regulations, the CIT tax rate applicable is 25%
unless preferential rates are applicable in the cities where the
subsidiaries are located. If a subsidiary is qualified as High
and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT
tax rate is 15%. If a subsidiary is qualified as Key Software
Enterprise (“KSE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 10%. If
a subsidiary is engaged in Encouraged Industries in the
Western Region (“EIWR”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 15%.
If a subsidiary is qualified as Key Integrated Circuit Design
Enterprises and Software Enterprises (“KIC”), the applicable
CIT tax rate is 0% for the first five years commencing from
the first profit-making year, and 10% for the subsequent years.
If a subsidiary is qualified as Software and Integrated Circuit
Enterprise (“SICE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 0% for the first
two years of being qualified and 12.5% for the next three years.

EBRSRE PO R SR I 6.5%
(CBBAE 1 16.5%) S BIMERIRIBRILL
Py IERIRR) A S BB EAR
BB TR E

ReZEARENE (THE)) KB R B AR
FREIR TR (TSR EHMDERT
B8 o IRIE PR (S ZEFTISRIA R ABRE AR > BRIE
BEREBERANRWBABIFERT  TAIRZE
FriSIEAMEA25%  H—EHB AR EERK
ASIIRMEE (St > AEBE
EFERINEA15%  H—E B AT S EMRN
AEE I (EREfhx) AIEARE
FTSMIREA10% o g — M B A B W B Fa 2pH
EEEEAEZE (R EEEEEZ)) > AER
PEMERNEAIS% - H—EBATDEER
A EINEM BB E R ((EE
ERBREE) MEEERTFERENE
hEBBLEMSRRER% HBEFERE
#10%° i —EM B AR & EMM AT RER
B (i REMBREE)  BREER
HNEMFEAREMERMRES% BER=F
REA12.5%°
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FRISHIRX (@
Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal FEMBARZBERAEEMSRRE

subsidiaries

Applicable corporate income
tax rate
BERATEMIRKRE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

Subsidiaries Fft BB 2 =) 2021 2020
T —F TZITF
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business e EEaRMTERAT

Solutions Information Technology (T=rEa=) (Biti)

Limited (“ABS”) (Note i) 15% 15%
Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology MNEEEFEMARAS

Limited (“Hangzhou Electronic (TN B FH=AMT)) (B22ii)

Technology”) (Note ii) 15% 15%
BT BRAE (“VBIll OPCO") BT ARAR (THIT(T)) 25% 25%
IERIREREMFEESRAR IR CRARMERERAT

(“Beijing Bank and Enterprise”) (Note iii) (T4t sgde)) (Hfatii) 15% 12.5%
1T o) £RESRBARAE  FETH 0 SRESRBERAT

("VBill Finance”) (Note iv) (BT 1T B8)) (Wativ) 15% 15%
SRR RAR B RAS IRREE RN A RAT

(“Beijing Cloud Chain”) (Note v) (MbRESE) (Wazv) 15% 15%
EEEBETHRARAS SEBMETREERAT

(“Chongging Xinlian") (Note vi) (TEEEN) (Hatvi) 15% 15%
Megahunt Technologies Inc. JEE BRI D B R AT

(“Megahunt”) (Note vii) (TYKRIEE) (B vii) 15% 10%
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited e EE B EMTER AT

(“HN Mobile Pay”) (Note viii) (G kREn) (Hazvii) 12.5% 25%
Notes: Miat :

(i) ABS was qualified as HNTE in 2020 and 2021. iy PEEERZIZFRIZSI—FENARME
2o
(i) Hangzhou Electronic Technology was qualified as HNTE in 2020 and (i) MMNEFRMN _Z_ZBER_ZB_—FEILS
2021. Gl A
(i) Beijing Bank and Enterprise was qualified as SICE in 2020 and (i) FIFER B _EEERRBNG REMER
qualified as HNTE in 2021. TERNR-E - —FRERMAS TR
(iv)  VBIill Finance was qualified as HNTE in 2020 and 2021. vy BEITNESMR B2 _SERE_—F5ERRA
Sk iEsdnirE
(v)  Beijing Cloud Chain was qualified as HNTE in 2020 and 2021. v) EREEBR_ECERERCE T —EE5EREAS
it bE o
(vi) Chongging Xinlian was engaged in EIWR in 2020 and 2021. v) EBREMR _Z_TFER_ZB_-FHREAESME
SYRNARAEZE -
(vii) Megahunt was qualified as KIC in 2020 and qualified as HNTE in i) JEER S _ZEAERMAETUEMBRE
2021. ERNR B2 —FaBERMAE MR EE.
(viii) HN Mobile Pay was qualified as SICE in 2021. vii) HEEREHN —E - —FAERRARERER
BHo
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FRiSHIR (@
The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the KREERRANGH) 2 NIBEE A ERRABE
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average ARREBERaEr 2 METIR X EIER
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the MEE ZERAT ¢

respective jurisdictions as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
B & BT ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THTT
Profit from continuing operations FRPT ISR A S E R R A
before income tax 3,753,267 880,618
Profit from discontinued operation BRPRISIN AT SR LIS E X Fm A
before income tax 67,640 9,178
Profit before income tax FRETEMATAN 3,820,907 889,796
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ?ﬁﬁ’\xﬂ./fﬁéil 52
applicable to profit in the BEREMREGEZRNIE
respective countries 879,884 155,493
Tax effects of: BT E !
Income not subject to taxation BEFHRUIA (846,417) (144,295)
Expenses not deductible for tax LRI =S A AR 2 B
purposes 62,556 84,085
Utilisation of previously FRBTRER ZINIEEGE
unrecognised tax losses 4,542) 6,311)
Tax losses for which no deferred T HRIREPRIS IR ERESR 2
income tax was recognised RIEE 18 30,618 21,683
Capital gains tax (Note 36) BARFEHR H5E36) 13,772 -
Income tax expense PRSI 135,871 110,655
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.0% for the BE_Z_—F+A=+—HLFE Mk
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 17.5%). The change FHEERARER23.0% (TEZEE 1 17.5%) ©
is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group’s SHRATDAERZMNBAENZEEIR 2R
subsidiaries in the respective countries. FBENHEG HIREEPRE
12 DIVIDENDS 12 g2
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the BE_Z_—HF+_B=+—HULEFE &R
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). RS NNEREARE CEZ2E  H) o
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 SikEF]
(a) Basic @ E=&
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SRERBN RN ES AEEET
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted PRUFREEITEBRMNETHREE-

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F CZE-%E
Profit attributable to the owners of KABEE NELET] (FHT)
the Company (HK$'000)
— Continuing operations —FHEIKE X 3,481,233 651,451
- Discontinued operation —BRIEEEETR 40,293 5,234
3,521,526 656,685
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ B2 1TE @RI FH9E (FR)
shares in issue (thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share attributable KATEE NEILERERRT
to the owners of the Company (BRET)
(HK$ per share)
— Continuing operations —SFEREER 1.253 0.234
— Discontinued operation —BRIERE X 0.015 0.002
1.268 0.236
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net profit and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
four categories (2020: six categories) of potentially dilutive
shares: share options issued by an associated company
— PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), share
options issued by a subsidiary — VBill OPCO and written
put option liabilities issued by subsidiaries — VBill Limited
(“VBill (Cayman)”) and Mega Hunt Microelectronics
Limited (“Megahunt HK”) (2020: share options issued by
PAX Global, share options and convertible preference
shares issued by an associated company — Cloopen Group
Holding Limited (“Cloopen”), share options issued by VBill
OPCO and written put option liabilities issued by VBill
(Cayman) and Megahunt HK).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in PAX Global would have
a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share options in PAX
Global would be dilutive if the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company will decrease. A calculation is
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual fair value of the associated company’s shares)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding share options of PAX Global. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options of PAX Global (2020:
same).

13 EREN @

(b) #F

SR ERA T BRI B R
2 B TBEATRI R BTSN B BRI
THBHE

BE_Z_—F+"_A=+—HLFE
AEEBEME (CE22F 1 80 BERE
HENEZRG  —HBE AT -—8EER
KRB RAE (BRI B172ER
B —ENB AR —BIT BT ERE
KM AR —BE T MERARAE (TVBIll
(Cayman))) RIKFAMEBFERA (UE
HEHR)) BT ZEHR EHH*&,%T? =
:ﬁiiﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁz%k%\—%
& /A 8] —Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(MCloopen 1) 817 2 BB F2 AT ARG B 5
%~ BETT 1T 38 T 2 BE AR K2 VBIll (Cayman)fz
HKEEBE T B LRSS -

BHE_ T —EF+°"F=+—HIEE>
ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁziﬁ@%k%TbEE%
SR B YA AR A ESATFR R
AITHEEERBICEREREE®ER
Ho BT ATEREZRNEE (28
EATRMDZFHEEATFEET JHIRE
BERKZ RITEBREFRMN 2 REEE
EESE  EXFstEZROHE T A
BREE BRI EREETEZEETR
PHBEELLR (CT T & f8E) ©
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in VBill OPCO would have
a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share options in VBill
OPCO would be dilutive if the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company will decrease. A calculation is
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
outstanding share options of VBill OPCO (2020: same). The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options of VBill OPCO (2020:
same).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the written put option liabilities of VBill (Cayman) and
Megahunt HK as they would have an antidilutive impact to
the basic earnings per share (2020: same).

For share options and convertible preference shares issued
by Cloopen, as at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of the interest in Cloopen was zero. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s share of loss exceeded its interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, the exercise of the
abovementioned share options and convertible preference
shares would not have any impact on the diluted earnings
per share.

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

13 BiRER @

(b) #8 ( q)

BE_T_—F+-_B=+—HIEEE>
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁ@%k%TbEﬁﬁé
FE AN B AEGARIRL > BlfT
ﬁ%ﬁﬁZ%%%ﬁEﬁ%é%%-#E
AR AFEREZROEE RHBA
BB ZFHEER $@ﬁ®ﬁﬁ#%
T (CEZEE HR) ZRTHEERRER
Mz REEEEEEESE  EXFRstE
APBEHARRETN CEIZF (A8
[B) ~ BRI T 2 BETRID BB (ELE
8o

BE_ZE_—F+ZA=1+—HIEFE"
FTEESREER T FRRZVBIll (Cayman)k
KSRz BRI ERETE
FERAESSHEREABNEERES
FE(CEIZE I MER) -

FCloopendE 1T 2 FEIG 1 K I ARG 1B ST iR

ERIZIZF+A=+—H'R
Cloopen? #mFEERARZT N T -2HF
+ZR=+—H AEEEGBEEREH
R Cloopen& i@k 2 # i » HUITE FatiER
R HR BRI EHERIBERT]
BRI &
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

13 EREN @

(b) #F (®

For the year ended

31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
% “EBTF2F
Profit attributable to the owners KABEB AL ET
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#E7m)
— Continuing operations —FEREER 3,481,233 651,451
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BREBRKETZFAERRK
dilutive share options issued by PAX ITEEERE A T
Global (HK$'000) (F#7m)
— Decrease in share of profit of the —EALERE A B EA D
associated company (5,090) (3,073)
— Reduce in gain on dilution of the —EEHE RR 2 W RLD
associated company (55,494) (59,218)
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BREITNETZFRBERR
dilutive share options issued by VABill TEEEEREETE
OPCO (HK$'000) (F#&7T)
— Decrease in profit attributable to the —RREVEE NI ET
owners of the Company Ve (26,878) (22,635)
Adjusted profit attributable to the owners  FFAEASE £ HUEE
of the Company from continuing SREERNZAQE
operations used to determine diluted A ARG AEEF
earnings per share (HK$'000) (F#E70) 3,393,771 566,525
Profit attributable to the owners RABER NELET
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T)
— Discontinued operation —BRIHEEER 40,293 5,234
Weighted average number of ordinary SREERN 2 ZER
shares for diluted earnings per share MIETFHE (FAR)
(thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable KABHER NEILER
to the owners of the Company #wEHEA (kBT
(HK$ per share)
— Continuing operations — RS ER 1.222 0.204
— Discontinued operation —BERIHEEER 0.015 0.002
1.237 0.206
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REWFE
Buildings
BF
HK$’000
FHT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE_ZH—A—H
Cost D% 3,960
Accumulated depreciation i (2,582)
Net book amount RERE 1,378
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZTHE+_"_HA=1+—HLEEE
Opening net book value FYREFE 1,378
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 15) E# B2 BB K& # (HfaE15) 46
Depreciation e (205)
Closing net book value FAEEMZFE 1,219
At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-_TF+"A=+—H
Cost D% 4,091
Accumulated depreciation REtHTEE (2,872)
Net book amount REFE 1,219
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_T-_—H+°-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book value FHREFE 1,219
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 15) SR EZE BB Kt (HEE15) (189)
Depreciation e (173)
Closing net book value FRIREFE 857
At 31 December 2021 R B _—F+ZA=+—H
Cost DN 3,457
Accumulated depreciation KEHTE (2,600)
Net book amount REEE 857
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14 KEYE @®

202

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2020: same).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to
administrative expenses (2020: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement:

Rental income WA
Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generated

rental income

ZEREEERX

RIE_—F+_HBA=+—H ~EBHES
FHBEEKRFREMAEREZGHEET
ETZFE R o

FRFBINERXEATHRER CE2°F
F R -

T2 REGRE W RS

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

wHEETWAZREMEMEE

2021 2020
—E-—F TEIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,388 3,207
(485) (330)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that did not generate rental income
during the year (2020: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases ranged from 1 to 2
years (2020: same).

FRAHARSZWAZKREYELRELE
AEZCERS (CZ2T2F AR o

AEFRRBLCERERHEREYE AN
FIE2F (CB_BF HHE) ©
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14 EWE (@
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating KREVFEIZKEREHTHER 88 S'Zﬁ?ﬁ%"
leases with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable A fE HAMEUA T IEBE ) R P SR E IRk o

lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the future aggregate RIE_EFR_E_—FTA=+—H"
minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating IRBEA AR EEE 2 KRR EERE SR
leases are as follows: BRI

As at 31 December

nR+-A=+—H
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$/OOO
FHT FHTT
Not later than 1 year NBiB1E 3,165 857
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years #8381 BBiB55E 22 -
3,187 857
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15 ¥ BBk E

Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE WAE
18F MERE RAREE BERRE pat:] &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEFE—HB—H
Cost A 38,102 26,108 185,496 542,184 32,645 824,535
Accumulated depreciation RetirE (21,706) (25,705) (138,185) (220,495) (27,328) (433,419)
Accumulated impairment loss REtREBE - - - (6,660) - (6,660)
Net book amount REFE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5317 384,456
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-ZT-ZF+-BA=1+—H
LFE
Opening net book amount FREZE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5317 384,456
Additions HE - - 14,435 213,998 1,170 229,603
Transfer to investment properties BEEREWE Wti4)

(Note 14) (46) — _ _ _ (46)
Disposals (Note 37(b)) HE (Iz237b) - - (323) (139) - (462)
Written off (Note) WsH (472 - - (26,156) - (26,156)
Depreciation e (1,663) (214) (24,540) (194,404) (1,941) (222,762)
Exchange realignment EREE 994 14 539 21,094 44 22,685
Closing net book amount ERRE 15,681 203 37,422 329,422 4,590 387,318
At 31 December 2020 RZZ2-FF+-A=+—H
Cost A 40,488 27,531 206,246 640,498 35,562 950,325
Accumulated depreciation R E (24,807) (27,328) (168,824) (304,068) (30,972) (555,999)
Accumulated impairment loss RetRERE - - (7,008) - (7,008)
Net book amount BREFE 15,681 203 37,422 329,422 4,590 387,318
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_T-_—-F+-A=1+—H

HEE
Opening net book amount FRERE 15,681 203 37,422 329,422 4,590 387,318
Additions HE - 257 31,472 116,973 2,830 151,532
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35)  WEE—EMBAT (115235) - - 53 - - 53
Transfer from investment properties BEBREME Witi4)

(Note 14) 189 - - 189
Disposals (Note 37(b)) HE& (Hfs37) - - (3,357) 24) (155) (3,536)
Written off (Note) W (5t - - (70) @, 257) - (2,327)
Assets classified as held for sale (Note 36) DEAFEHEZ BE (H7#36) - - (4,601) (37,379) (1,501) (43,481)
Depreciation e (1,812) (242) (27,780) (201,949) (2,191) (233,974)
Exchange realignment EREE 383 2 1,002 7,514 116 9,017
Closing net book amount FRIREZE 14,441 220 34,141 212,300 3,689 264,791
At 31 December 2021 RZ2-_—-F+-A=+—8H
Cost A 42,168 28,379 227,343 730,818 35,524 1,064,232
Accumulated depreciation REifeE (27,727) (28,159) (193,202) (511,512) (31,835) (792,435)
Accumulated impairment loss REtRERE - - - (7,006) - (7,006)
Net book amount REFEE 14,441 220 34,141 212,300 3,689 264,791
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 ¥ -BEKRZHE @

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales, selling HERA HEEBRRTHERTEINITE
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BERDHNT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
B -F e S22
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FTHET
Continuing operations FRREER
Cost of sales & pA 198,503 194,078
Selling expenses HEER 183 179
Administrative expenses TIHEHR 28,798 25,663
227,484 219,920
Discontinued operation BARIEEETR
Cost of sales THER A 4,681 1,512
Selling expenses HEEA 19 13
Administrative expenses THER 1,790 1,317
6,490 2,842
Total depreciation expense FEE R 233,974 222,762
Note: Bzt
As at 31 December 2021, the net carrying value of electronic funds transfer RoEBE-—F+-_A=+—F BT REERR
point-of-sale terminals in relation to the payment processing solutions HREREENE R (e IR R R EY
business approximately HK$209,766,000 (2020: HK$313,782,000). 209,766,000 7T (T2 B4 1 313,782,000/87T) c BF =
The electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals were written down Y R s F A R E B — &+
to their carrying amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2021, B=+—ALEE EEEO RS ST e
management had carried out an assessment over the recoverable amounts LR iR B R Bk T E AT SRR 1T i ME o A
of these electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals based on their B R0 T S 8 BEAR B0 257,000 7T (T
respective level of utilisation. As a result, certain under-utilised electronic BT 1 26,156,000557T) WIS > W8S E AL ASHESD o

funds transfer point-of-sale terminals amounting to HK$2,257,000 (2020:
HK$26,156,000) were written-off and recognised in cost of sales.
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, banking facilities of approximately
HK$26,633,000 (2020: HK$25,944,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$4,700,000 (2020:
HK$5,760,000).

16 LEASES

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and

15 Y% -BERKRE @

16

A —
I —_F—

T —H+ZR=+—H ' RITMEN

26,633,000787C (ZEZZ4F 1 25,944,000
7o) LUEREFE4,700,0008 7 (C B T4 ¢
5,760,000 70) Z 1&F(Eif o

e

@ NEEEERRRESNEHE

REEERRRETUTARAEYER
Ffﬂ EARIEER -

factory:
As at 31 December
n+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—%F —ETERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TFAET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Office premises —WMAEYE 50,892 72,425
— Factory — T 9,241 9,230
60,133 81,655
Lease liabilities HEERA
— Non-current —JERE) 10,775 28,143
— Current — R 20,801 25,335
31,576 53,478

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were HK$13,068,000 (2020:
HK$30,017,000).

As at 31 December 2021, banking facilities of
approximately HK$26,633,000 (2020: HK$25,944,000)
were secured by a right-of-use asset with net carrying value
of HK$2,747,000 (2020: HK$2,830,000).

REE_Z-_—5+_B=+—HILEE
R REEERES13,068,00087T (CF
=4 1 30,017,00057T) ©

N ZEZ—F+A=+—8 > RITHE
926,633,000/ 7T (ZZ ZZ4F | 25,944,000
BT LUEREE(E2,747,000870 (CE &
£F 12,830,000/ 7T) 2 EAEEEFIRR
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16 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b)
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

16 HE ®

R REDNEREE

REWmRBETRUTERRAEYER T
HEARNTE

factory:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F C—E-SF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE Wa7)
(Note 7) 26,979 30,591
Interest expense FERX GEARERNA)
(included in finance costs) 1,809 2,308
Expenses relating to leases BITHAE G 2 HE B RIRR X
of short-term leases 9,981 5,721
Discontinued operation BRI R
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRIESERE 2,074 1,975
Interest expense MEMX 385 362
Expenses relating to leases BIOERRE 2 T E AR
of short-term leases 706 -
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16 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

(c)

statement (Continued)

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and selling expenses are analysed
as follows:

16 HE @®

(b) RiZEWRmRETNEE (B
ST ASHE BAS  TTEE A R 8 & RS2 RO 3T

EERAORUT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2021 2020
—EB-—fF TTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Continuing operations FHRIRE R

Cost of sales THE R A 4,527 3,016
Administrative expenses THER 19,773 23,345
Selling expenses HEER 2,679 4,230
26,979 30,591

Discontinued operation B4R I RS
Administrative expenses THER 2,074 1,975
Total depreciation expense TEE PR 29,053 32,566

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended
31 December 2021 is HK$32,379,000 (2020:
HK$42,008,000).

The Group’s leasing activities

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts
are typically made for 1 to 8 years (2020: same). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants.

REE_Z_—S+_RB=1+—HILEE
MEE IR R 48382432,379,00058 7T
(TRTEAE  42,008,00057T) ©

(0 FEENHEEED
AEREEZEARRAEYFE -HESNRE
ENFIRE (CZZF L 18R) ~HEW
R TEINMERIZ2AT -
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PR
17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BLEE
Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development In progress Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs  technology software Total
EF);d
ERLER BERREFZ
BE  miEeE B BUBEERE  WERES  EERG Bit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TERT TERT TET TET TET
At 1 January 2020 KZZZ%5—-F—H
Cost mA 105,094 4,461 4,663 23,160 5,962 30,978 174,318
Accumulated amortisation Rt = (4,461) (4,663) (22,681) (5,962) (30,907) (68,674)
Accumulated impairment loss RetRESE (103,579) = = = = = (103,579)
Net book amount REFE 1,515 - - 479 - 71 2,065
Year ended 31 December 2020 BEZZ-ZF+”A=+-H
LtEE
Opening net ook amount ENRESE 1,515 - - 479 - 71 2,065
Additions RE - - - 11,972 - - 11,972
Impairment loss AEEE (1,515) - - - - - (1,515)
Amortisation s - - - (1,889) - (36) (1,925)
Exchange realignment ERHE - - - 631 - 3 634
Closing net book amount FRIREFE - - - 11,193 - 38 11,231
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+-A=+—-A
Cost A 113,159 4,766 4,980 37,422 6,369 30,990 197,686
Accumulated amortisation Retss - (4,766) (4,980) (26,229) (6,369) (30,952) (73,296)
Accumulated impairment loss RiRERE (113,159) - - - - - (113,159)
Net book amount REFE - - - 11,193 - 38 11,231
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z--F¥+-B=+-H
LtEE
Opening net book amount FRERE - - - 11,193 - 38 11,231
Additions RE - - - 5,810 - - 5,810
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (Note 35) WEBHIB AR (H7##35) 13,647 - 8,049 4,136 - - 25,832
Assets classified as held-for-sale (Note 36) NEARBEHEZEE (I:#36) - - - (14,347) - - (14,347)
Amortisation i - - 472) (3,009) - (38) (3,519)
Exchange realignment ERBE 251 - 141 413 - - 805
Closing net book amount FREEFE 13,898 - 7,718 4,19 - - 25,812
At 31 December 2021 KZE--£+-A=+-H
Cost R 127,154 4,892 13,309 29,508 6,538 30,996 212,397
Accumulated amortisation RetE - (4,892) (5,591) (25,312) (6,538) (30,996) (73,329)
Accumulated impairment loss REtRESR (113,256) - - - - - (113,256)
Net book amount BRE R 13,398 - 7,718 4,19 - - 25,812
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation expense included in cost of sales and

administrative expenses are analysed as follow:

17

BIEE @

STAERARITHRERNEHERONINT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2021 2020
—T—F =t 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Continuing operations FEREER

Cost of sales & A A 112 104
Administrative expenses THEHR 741 18
853 122

Discontinued operation BARILEEETR
Administrative expenses THER 2,666 1,803
Total amortisation expense HiH & FAR%R 3,519 1,925
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18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
included listed equity security which is not held for trading.
Such investment was reclassified from an investment accounted
for using the equity method and financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) as detailed in Note 22(b) and
Note 19(b) respectively. The Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to classify such investment in this category.
This is a strategic investment and the Group considers this
classification to be more relevant.

o WA 5 e A B e

18 }é’z}iﬁﬁﬁﬂkﬁﬂﬂé@ﬂ&ﬁZﬁﬁﬂﬁ

/\7><*
L —=

—F+ZA=+—H FxEEEAF
Bt AEMzERE EREE (TR TER
AHMEEREZ EMBEE) SEFFFESR
2B LEmkAES ARREERERED X
AR E R AT ES AR (FRATES
A ) 2 EMEESHNIE BB
BT EE22(b) K fi5E19(b) e REEE R HIF HE
Eﬁﬂﬁxﬂ%&ﬁﬁi’ﬂi’%ﬁf@%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁéﬁéﬁ%uZ
RECMWTEBRKE BAEERRZDEES
BT

For the year ended
31 December

#=+_"_H=+—H

ILFE
2021 2020
—E-—%F —E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Listed equity security outside BARINZ EHRAE
Hong Kong — Cloopen (Note (a)) — Cloopen (#f7#(a)) 629,711 -
For the year ended
31 December
BE+—_A=+—H
ILFEE
2021 2020
—E_—F -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Balance at 1 January —A—BZ 48R - -
Reclassified from an investment accounted @ MiEREARZ —BIREERN
for using the equity method (Note 22(b)) 348 (15£22(b)) 2,857,920 -
Conversion of convertible preference shares B3 A BB S0 B (H75#79(h))
(Note 19(b)) 616,346 -
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised R EMEMEURERZ
in other comprehensive income BERATFEBE (2,844,555) -
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—HBzZ#&& 629,711 -

Note:
(@ Listed equity security outside Hong Kong — Cloopen

Cloopen’s American depositary shares (“ADSs”) were listed on the
New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) (stock symbol: RAAS) on 9
February 2021. The fair value of the ADSs is based on its quoted
bid prices at New York Time in NYSE and its carrying amount is
denominated in US$.

Mzt :

(@ BBIREIZ EHERAFESF— Cloopen

Cloopen#yEE 7R (TEEEERA ) K ZZ
Z—FEZBNBRMAANESERZT (M2 Eh

(BEZZAFE [RAAS) o XETF LA 2 AFETHIRE
RARFARANORFEEANEABEY HIREE
METEHE
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19 AT EFAESZEHMEE

212

PROFIT OR LOSS

As at
31 December
R+-A=+—H
ILEFEE
2021 2020
—B_—f “ETFEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Non-current assets IERBEE
Unlisted investment fund outside BEBEIZIELITRERS
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (#t52@)) 108,200 123,480
Unlisted convertible preference BAEINZ IF LT AR
shares outside Hong Kong (Note (b)) Boh (Hatmb) - 418,524
108,200 542,_0_0_4_ ~
Current assets MENEE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LHRAES
(Note (c)) (Hztc) 1,103 1,036
109,303 543,040

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-BA=+—H

ILEFEE

2021 2020

—EB_—fF “BCEBF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET THT

Balance at 1 January K—RA—HBzZ 4% 543,040 289,918
Net fair value gains on revaluation REmER 2 B AT ER D

recognised in profit or loss R 181,258 245,190

Conversion of convertible EIADTIA R B IThR (a2 b))

preference shares (Note (b)) (616,346) -

Distribution 7k (1,666) -

Exchange realignment R sREE 3,017 7,932

Balance at 31 December R+ZRB=+—HZ#&eR 109,303 543,040
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

(©)

Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong
The carrying amount of the unlisted investment fund is denominated in
RMB.

Unlisted convertible preference shares outside Hong Kong

On 10 June 2016 and 28 February 2018, the Group subscribed
7,443,326 Convertible Series C Preferred Shares (the “Convertible
Series C Preferred Shares”) and 2,434,015 Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Series D Preferred Shares”) of
Cloopen, respectively. The considerations for the Convertible Series
C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares (“CPS”)
subscribed by the Group were approximately HK$78,000,000
(equivalent to US$10,000,000) and HK$39,000,000 (equivalent to
US$5,000,000), respectively.

The Group, as the holders of the CPS have:

() options to request Cloopen to redeem the CPS at the prices
equal to the greater of the issue prices with an 8% compound
interest per annum return plus any accrued but unpaid dividends
or the fair values at the dates of redemptions after the earliest
of 10 June 2020 for Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and
28 February 2021 for Convertible Series D Preferred Shares or
the occurrences of other conditions as provided for under the
definitive subscription agreements; and

(i) options to convert the CPS into ordinary shares of Cloopen at
the conversion prices based on certain conditions on the dates
of conversions as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreements.

The CPS, together with the abovementioned options, were classified as
financial assets at FVPL and recognised at fair values. The fair values
of the CPS were valued by an independent valuer at the date of initial
inception and on 31 December 2020.

The carrying amounts of the unlisted convertible preference shares is
denominated in US$.

The trading in the ADSs on NYSE commenced on 9 February 2021
(New York time). On the same day, the CPS held by the Group were
converted into ordinary shares of Cloopen. The CPS which were
previously classified as financial assets at FVPL were converted into the
listed shares of Cloopen and accounted for at fair value with reference
to the trading price. The fair value of the CPS at the time of conversion
into ordinary shares of Cloopen amounted to HK$616,346,000.

Upon completion of the offering of the ADSs on 9 February 2021,
the Group’s interest in Cloopen was classified as a financial asset at
FVOCI, with subsequent fair value movement recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on their current bid
prices in an active market and their carrying amount is denominated in
HKS$.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recorded in
‘other gains, net” in the consolidated income statement.
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES 20 FEMRETR
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers in the FEWE R A & RAHS R B MR EHN
ordinary course of the fintech solutions and services business ABEBBEEFREERORIE BRIRIET
primarily denominated in RMB. EUANRESIE
(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables @@ FERERZIRE D
The aging analysis of loan receivables based on the RBEIEAA R B 2 B ETRERES DTN T

payment due date is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+-A=+—H
2021 2020
—®=—F CEBE-EfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Current ENEA 2,219,046 1,038,283
1 to 3 months past due BE—=E==EA 16,449 10,658
Over 3 months past due BmEA=EA MU L 122,980 39,078
Loan receivables, gross FEINE RN 4E %R 2,358,475 1,088,019

Less: provision for impairment of W R ETURER S

loan receivables (130,148) (44,940)
2,228,327 1,043,079
Non-current FEBPHA - 54
Current BPEA 2,228,327 1,043,025
2,228,327 1,043,079
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20 FEIRE R @

20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)
The analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount
and the corresponding provision for impairment of loan
receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follows:

@ BWREMZIRES T (&)

BERIERER

EREEBZOMNT :

As at 31 December 2021

RABERE B R ABRAFE W ERURL

R —H+=ZHB=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—PMEERE FTME F=RE Wz
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET FHET
Loan receivables = EN 2,219,046 16,449 122,980 2,358,475
Less: Provision for impairment of & | FEWERURE R HE
loan receivables (15,333)  (12,794) (102,021) (130,148)
Loan receivables, net FEWE R FEE 2,203,713 3,655 20,959 2,228,327
As at 31 December 2020
A ZETIEF+ZA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE FIMEE F=PEE 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT TFAT TAT
Loan receivables FEWE R 1,038,181 10,760 39,078 1,088,019
Less: Provision for impairment of 3 : FEUNE TR E B &
loan receivables (2,607) (3,255)  (39,078)  (44,940)
Loan receivables, net FEW E R F 28 1,035,574 7,505 1,043,079
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)

20 FEIRE T @

@ BWREMZIRE ST (&)

Movements for gross carrying amount of loan receivables: FEU ETREREARZEE BT ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE FMER B #ast
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET F#T F#T
As at 1 January 2020 R_E_ZTF—H—H 368,409 26,221 33,738 428,368
Addition/transfer NG R 6,517,591 (2,396) 94,434 6,609,629
Repayment B (5,909,037) (13,885) (23,360) (5,946,282)
Written off s - - (68,203)  (68,203)
Exchange realignment b R EEEE 61,218 820 2,469 64,507
As at 31 December 2020 N FE
+-B=+—H 1,038,181 10,760 39,078 1,088,019
As at 1 January 2021 RIZEZ—F—HF—H 1,038,181 10,760 39,078 1,088,019
Addition/transfer =t 8,570,799 19,915 116,203 8,706,917
Repayment B (7,431,566) (14,587) (14,182) (7,460,335)
Written off b/ 67! - - (32,268)  (32,268)
Recovery of loan receivables s [o] 5% A 4 55 B9
previously written off WEWT%\ - - 2,072 2,072
Exchange realignment bE 2SR 41,632 361 12,077 54,070
As at 31 December 2021 A —F
+_-_B=+—H 2,219,046 16,449 122,980 2,358,475
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 FEIRE R @

@ EWERZEIREDH (B
RRERRERESIMT

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)
Movements for provision for impairment of loan
receivables are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—MEER FIPEER F=PEER st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2020 N_ZZZTHF—H—H 2,217 7,285 33,738 43,240
Addition/transfer B 225 (4,273) 71,074 67,026
Written off | - - (68,203)  (68,203)
Exchange realignment & R sR 165 243 2,469 2,877
As at 31 December 2020 RN _E
+-—RB=+—H 2,607 3,255 39,078 44,940
As at 1 January 2021 RZE2-_—%—H—H 2,607 3,255 39,078 44,940
Addition/transfer B R 12,480 9,320 91,234 113,034
Written off b 67! - - (32,268)  (32,268)
Recovery of loan receivables W [B1 S A5 B9
previously written off ERERR - - 2,072 2,072
Exchange realignment PE R 246 219 1,905 2,370
As at 31 December 2021 B —F
+-RA=+—H 15,333 12,794 102,021 130,148

During the year ended 31 December 2021, based
on management’s assessment, the Group recorded
credit impairment loss of HK$113,034,000 (2020:
HK$67,026,000) in the consolidated income
statement. Loan receivables of HK$32,268,000 (2020:
HK$68,203,000), which are still subject to enforcement
activity, were determined as uncollectible and were written
off against loan receivables during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The loan receivables are not collateralised.

REE_ET-_—F+"_H=+—HILEF
B IRIEEEENE AEERGE R
KPS EERERTE113,034,00087T (T
T RAE 1 67,026,000557T) © 5 BETHE
SEEBIFER SRR A32,268,00058 7T (T
T 4F 1 68,203,000/ 7T) » HHEE A AU
B WREE_S-_—F+"HB=+—H
IEFE R R E R o

FEU Bl AR R
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20 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20 FEIMETR @@
(b) Effective interest rates on loan receivables (b) BWERZERFE
The effective interest rates on loan receivables are normally FEWER  BEAZ—RKWNT
as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAIEE

2021 2020
—E-—%  ZT-TH
Loans to borrowers AERAIREZER 6% to 36% p.a. 5% to 36% p.a.
FRx FHE
6%ZE36% 5%£36%
21 SUBSIDIARIES 21 IBRE
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 AR CEERTE T —F+_A=+—H">
December 2020 and 2021: FEMBAB ZHREIT :
Proportion
Particulars of ordinary
of issued Proportion shares held
Place of incorporation/ share capital/ of ordinary by non-
establishment and Principal activities and registered shares held by controlling
Name type of legal entity place of operation capital the Group interests
(%) (%)
HEE gD
SHRAIE R BETRE/ HEZ fHZ
ko EERRE TEEBRERHA AMERHE BERILA BERLA
(%) (%)
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business The PRC, limited Provision of financial solutions, HK$100,000,000 100% -
Solutions Information Technology Limited  liability company* services and related products in the PRC
ITREREEEERITERAT B BRAF EHERGERFALE RERERER 100,000,000787 100% -
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited* The PRC, limited Provision of platform operation RMB100,000,000 100% -
liability company solutions in the PRC
HEERERERRINARAT" TE BRAR ETERHTABERANR B 100,000,007 100% -
Hangzhou PAX Electronic The PRC, limited liability ~ Manufacturing and sales of electronic power RMB53,400,000 100% -
Technology Limited company meters in the PRC
MMBEEEFRINERAT TE ARAT EPERERHEREHEER AR 53,400,007 100% -
Megahunt Technologies Inc. The PRC, limited Sales of information security chips RMB59,800,000 54.10% 45.90%
liability company” and solutions in the PRC (Note 36) (Note 36)
(2020: 65.73% (2020: 34.27%
(Note 34)) (Note 34))
JABERERHARAT TE BRAT ETEHEEER2 DA RFARE AR 59,800,007 54.10% 45.9%
(Ht36) (Hyt36)
(CBZBE . 65.73%) (CZTBE:34.27%)
(Hra£34) (Hra£34)
BT ARRAT" The PRC, limited Provision of payment processing RMB199,900,000 68.83% 31.17%
liability company solutions in the PRC
TE BRAR ETEREXARZRERALR B 199,900,007 68.83% 31.17%
BEBIEE N\ BERBRAGH The PRC, limited Provision of micro loan solutions in the PRC RMB500,000,000 68.83% 31.17%
liability company
TE ARAT EERMREREANE A& 500,000,007 68.83% 31.17%
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

#

(a)

Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises.
Registered as equity joint venture.

HN Mobile Pay is the subsidiary of HFERIESRMARAF
(“Hunan Yunrong”). The Company does not have legal ownership in
equity of Hunan Yunrong. Nevertheless, under certain contractual
agreements enacted among the registered owners of Hunan Yunrong,
the Company and a subsidiary of the Company, the Company controls
Hunan Yunrong by way of controlling more than one half of the
voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating policies and
appointing or removing the majority of the members of its controlling
authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of such
authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements also transfer the
risks and rewards of Hunan Yunrong to the Company. As a result, it is
regarded as the subsidiary of the Company.

VBill OPCO and mEMEITITEE/NEERARAT are the
subsidiaries of EEEITREEHAIRAT (“Chongging JIM”). The
Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Chongging JIM.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the
registered owners of Chongging JIM, the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company, the Company controls Chongging JIM by way of
controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing
its financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the
majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting
the majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition,
such contractual agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of
Chongging JIM to the Company. As a result, they are regarded as the
subsidiaries of the Company.

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2021
is HK$1,067,690,000 (2020: HK$825,438,000), of which
HK$924,987,000 (2020: HK$754,581,000) is attributed to
VBill (Cayman) and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”), which
is considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,320,387,000 (2020:
HK$2,796,769,000) of VBill Group are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 BAE @
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) @ EXRIFZR#ED (B
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with HEEA TR IER ZHE 528
material non-controlling interests BEHHEZ
Set out below are the summarised financial information for MU ESIBETNER R ERE

the VBill Group.
Summarised balance sheet: EESBRREE

As at 31 December

w+=ZH=+—H
2021 2020
—EC—F TETEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Non-current assets ERMEEE 289,762 391,516
Non-current liabilities eI E=N | (4,475) (748,708)
Non-current net assets/(liabilities) FRBHRE (RE)FE 0 285287 (357,192)
Current assets TRENE E 5,236,499 4,684,357
Current liabilities MENEE (3,070,151) (2,370,239)
Currentnetassets mEERESFE 2166348 2,314,118
Net assets BEEFE 2,451,635 1,956,926
Accumulated non-controlling interests B tIEIERR R 924,987 754,581
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 BAE @
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) (@) ERIEIERER (B
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with HEEA TR IER ZHE 528
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BEHHEZ (B)
Summarised income statement: W R E

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F C—E-%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Revenue WA 3,572,273 3,278,807
Profit before income tax FRETSH BT EA) 538,405 461,529
Profit for the year FRmT) 423,382 352,499
Other comprehensive income, Hi2EEA
net of tax (R E) 69,864 115,096
Total comprehensive income for the year, FAZEUNE4BZE FOFRIRIE)
net of tax 493,246 467,595
Total comprehensive income for the year FE#E G 5 PR EE
attributable to non-controlling interests 2 E R 4258 185,278 169,976

Summarised cash flows: BeRENE !

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—EB_—fF “BTBF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Cash (used in)/generated from REEE FrA) /PR E
operating activities (675,739) 70,611
Cash generated from/(used in) QEEEPNS FTA) RE
investing activities 62,640 (297,305)
Cash used in financing activities B REFTAIR S (14,789) (23,778)
Net decrease in cash and HEhREEBYMZ
cash equivalents D RER (627,888) (250,472)
The information above is before inter-company U EERAEERNRBIEEBER &R -

eliminations.
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22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUiEZSEZARZIRE

EQUITY METHOD

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as RireEERBRERNZ
follows:

As at 31 December

K+=ZRA=+—H
2021 2020
—B—F TERITRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Associated companies: e AT
- PAX Global (Note (a)) —B E.aiaﬂi (H17%()) 2,688,668 2,393,435
— Good Chain (Chongging) Technology —4FiE (BB RRBRAF
Co., Ltd. (“Good Chain”) (Note 35(a)) (Tgrsi)) (M5235(a) - 4,108
— Beijing Suiyun Technology Co., Ltd —IREERKXERAF
(“Beijing Suiyun”) (MERBEED) 3,242 3,391
— Shenzhen Guofu Yunlian Technology I EERERRARAT
Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Guofu”) (MRYIEE) 3,649 3,568
— Beijing Fangyun Technology Co., Ltd —IERFERKERAF
(“Beijing Fangyun”) (MERAE)) - 311
2,695,559 2,404,813

The amount of share of results recognised in the consolidated

income statement is as follows:

KRB RAED 2 L EETERIN T ¢

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2021 2020

—EB_—F -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHTT

Associated companies: BMEAE

— PAX Global (Note (a)) —EBE BBk (B3 @) 353,505 302,091
— Good Chain —F 5 (608) 656
— Beijing Suiyun —ItREE (236) (173)
— Shenzhen Guofu —RYIEE (14) (6)
— Beijing Fangyun —IRAE (314) (1,056)
352,333 301,512
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22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUHEZZZARZIEE @

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

The amount of net loss on deemed acquisition and dilution of AR BT R A RESS 2 R EURE R S
interest recognised in the consolidated income statement is as B8 RERI T ¢
follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—B_—fF “BCEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Associated company: /NI
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —E =B (B1:2a) 9,837 1,044
The amount of gains on deemed disposals of investments PR E W RS Z RIEH & DUE A AR
accounted for using the equity method recognised in the ZREWTIT -

consolidated income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAiEE

2021 2020
—E—F —EIERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT

Associated companies: BEATE
— Cloopen (Note (b)) —Cloopen (#15#(b)) 2,857,920 -
— Good Chain (Note 35(a)) — i (B75735(a)) 3,555 -
2,861,475 -
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22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUIEZSEZARZIRE ®
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (@ MEERKZIRE
Set out below is an associated company of the Group as TYHIN B ZEFR BT —F+

at 31 December 2020 and 2021, which, in the opinion
of the directors, is material to the Group — PAX Global.
PAX Global has share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares, which are held directly by the Group; its principal
places of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United
States of America and ltaly.

B=1T—HEERAHEEEMSBEK
ZHRERBERT -BERK BEIRK
BEERHAEEEERRENEEREN
feAs > HT EEEMBRPE T EF
RERBEREAN -

Place of
incorporation and Particular of issued Nature of Effective  Measurement
Name kind of legal entity share capital relationship interest held method
B AE Y PR Z
o8 EEERER BRITREHE MELE BR#ED HERE
PAX Global (Note i) Bermuda, limited 1,092,974,000 (2020: 1,092,837,000) Associate 33.30% Equity
liability company ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (2020: 33.31%)
BERK@Z)  BFRE BRRE 1,092,974,0008% (ZZ "4 : 1,092,837,000) kg 33.30% 553
BREEIETZEER (C2EE:
33.31%)

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s
spinoff of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Stock
Exchange, PAX Global became an associated company
of the Group. On the date when control ceased, the
Group's retained interest in PAX Global was fair valued,
and this give rise to the recognition of goodwill being the
difference between the fair value of the investment in PAX
Global and its share of net identifiable assets value of PAX
Global. As at 31 December 2021, difference between the
carrying value of the investment in PAX Global and its
share of net assets value of PAX Global mainly included
goodwill of HK$530,420,000 (2020: HK$530,420,000)
and adjustments to eliminate unrealised profits and losses
on transactions between the Group and PAX Global.

RIZ2—Z2F+ZF"+H ARAKEE
DB Lz B8R 5
BRI AREE 2 BE AT o R IEE
FEEH AEEREERIFEZEn
URAFEFE BHNREIEE BIRESE
RIKREZ N FERERGHESIRIKEE
FEZER N B_—F+_A=+—
B REERKZEERABEHEAEWN
EERNEEFECZEBEIZOERE
530,420,000787T (ZZ =4 : 530,420,000
BIT) o WETRABELIREAERE A EIR
KB 5 BRI G K518 o

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
T —fF —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January nw—RA—H 2,393,435 2,103,541
Share of profit FE(h &R 353,505 302,091
Share of other comprehensive income FE{GE M2 E U 28,261 59,951
Share of other reserves [ B At 3,374 13,025
Loss on deemed acquisition and RIEW I I 8 e~ B 183 5
dilution of interest, net (Note ii) (Kt =%ii) (9,827) (1,453)
Dividend received/receivable B FEWARE (80,080) (83,720)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 2,688,668 2,393,435
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22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global
at the balance sheet date is less than its carrying value. An
impairment test is performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use
basis calculated by a discounted cash flow model, exceeds
the carrying value as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global at
the balance sheet date is higher than its carrying value.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s interest in PAX
Global was 33.30% (2020: 33.31%,).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group’s interest in PAX
Global (2020: same).

Note i:  PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance and
installation services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solution business”).
Note ii:  During the year ended 31 December 2021, PAX Global
repurchased a total of 13,232,000 ordinary shares (2020:
20,283,000) on the Stock Exchange, of which 9,561,000
(2020: 20,283,000) ordinary shares were subsequently
cancelled during the year. Certain employees of PAX
Global exercised their share options granted pursuant to a
share option scheme set up on 2 May 2019. A net loss on
deemed acquisition and dilution of interest in an associated
company of HK$9,837,000 (2020: HK$1,044,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement,
including release of reserve credited (2020: debited) to
the consolidated income statement of HK$10,000 (2020:
HK$409,000). The Group's interest in PAX Global decreased
from 33.31% to 33.30% accordingly.

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

22 DIEREARRZIRE @

(@ NEERIKKZEE B

RE SR Z B 2 i E R
AR —F+ZHA=F—H KBREZAR
$@&mﬁaﬁmmﬁz;mﬁkgﬁ
B ORHIREE - ETRENRSEEE
KREZ O[Ol 58 - W_v:—¢+:ﬁ
=t+—0 > BB EEMREREEREE
SRR AERE S REEA T E 2 A
[Cl&ZBBBREE

RIEZEF+"/F=1+—H KEZAQ
TEREENE SR EM B AEST
/SR HEREE

A BT —FF+ZA=F+—H AEER
BERKZEEA33.30% (T _T4F .
33.31%) ©

MERAERANESRKZEERMES
ZHRBERAEE CEZE (AR -

Mazi: BERRKEIENEMERBEBFIH
SR (MBS (T4 %)) EE G > MUK IR it
HEE R RS (78 T8 F AR IR AR R
FEEFR) -

sz RBE_Z-_—F+-R=+—HLF

B BEIRIKI I TRl & 313,232,000
fREiEp (Z T =4 [ 20,283,0008%) »
Hr9,561,0008 (ZZ =4 20,283,000
B ZERAEBRAFENAH SR
HETRETFERE-_ZS—AFERAH
SO 7 FERR M ST B ERR b 2 B AR AE 0 3R (E
WS — R E AR R B854
9,837,000/ 7T (ZZ 224 1 1,044,000/ 7T)
PirElE RS BEFERTA CF
ZZFE ER0) BiralieEmiR 2 [#%10,000
Bt (ZEZEE 1 409,000% 7) © Ak
REERBESRKZERB3Z331%HE
33.30%°
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22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 LfEZSEZARZIESE @
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ MREBREKZEE @
Extracted financial information set out below are the TXFEZzHHRERRES MR EAR
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX ZABRIKGEMEERBIE

Global which is accounted for using the equity method.

As at 31 December

W+=-—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—% C"E-Tx
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current TRED
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 3,532,954 3,802,741
Other current assets HEMREHEE 4,257,152 3,152,375
Total currentassets ﬁ@]_‘ﬁ_)_%_i?_@ _________________ 7,790,106 6,955,116
Trade payables FETER X (1,668,823) (1,371,267)
Other payables and accruals HitE I RIEREtE A (504,229) (485,459)
Other current liabilities Hitvmgh&aE (90,491) (97,593)
Total current liabilities o _ﬁ%}]_j%fé_ﬂ%‘_%’? _________________ (2,263,543) | (1,954,319)
Non-current JETRED
Assets o _____ BE 1031172 ¢ 681,943
Liabilities =K (101,179) (109,168)
Net assets BEEFE 6,456,556 5,573,572
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o MR i aE
22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 22 MUHEZZZARZIEE @
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ MEERKZIKZE @)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020

S “EIFHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FHET

Revenue A 7,195,982 5,650,619

Profit for the year FRimT) 1,092,242 903,850

Other comprehensive income, net of tax E 2N GOFFRIRIE) 82,072 175,532
Total comprehensive income FAZE W@ AEZE FOFRRIE)

for the year, net of tax 1,174,314 1,079,382
Dividends received/receivable B ERZHE AT ZRE

from the associated company 80,080 83,720
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22 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in Cloopen

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of Cloopen
was zero which is not considered as material to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Cloopen
had share capital consisting of class A ordinary share,
class B ordinary share, series A convertible preferred
shares, series B convertible preferred shares, series C
convertible preferred shares, series D convertible preferred
shares, series E convertible preferred shares and series F
convertible preferred shares.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s effective interest in
the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on all
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which
were held by the Group, was 46.79%.

Saved as disclosed in Note 19(b), immediately upon
completion of the offering of the ADSs on 9 February 2021
and the conversion of the CPS into the ordinary shares,
the equity interest of the Company in Cloopen was diluted
and reduced to 17.42%. The Company’s representative
also resigned to serve on the board of directors of Cloopen.
As a result, the Group lost its significant influence over
Cloopen, and Cloopen ceased to be an associate of the
Group. Upon completion of the offering of the ADSs on
9 February 2021, the Group’s interest in Cloopen was
classified as a financial asset at FVOCI, with subsequent
fair value movement recognised in other comprehensive
income. It was accounted for as a deemed disposal
of the investment in Cloopen, with a resulting gain of
approximately HK$2,857,920,000 on deemed disposal
of an investment accounted for using the equity method
recognised in consolidated income statement during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

(c) Investment in Beijing Fangyun

The interest in Beijing Fangyun was initially measured
at fair value. The carrying amount was increased or
decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and movements in other comprehensive income
or loss of the interest in Beijing Fangyun to the extent
the carrying amount of the interest in Beijing Fangyun
reduced to nil due to losses, after the initial recognition.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s share of loss of
Beijing Fangyun exceeded its interest in the ordinary
shares of Beijing Fangyun. As at 31 December 2021,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interests in Beijing
Fangyun is HK$1,746,000 (2020: Nil).

22 DIEREARRZIRE @

(b)

(o)

Cloopenz 1% &
RZZ2ZZHF+"F=+—H"CloopenZ
REERAS HAEBEZGEMBRER
JBE K © Cloopent#E B 2 B AN AATEE 1B A% ~
BEEE AL - AR T PTHARR B STAG « BRIIT]
MBI CRIITTIAREBIK DAY
AR EBSERR ~ ER T PR R B ST R F R T
IR BT AR B o

A _EBEF+_B=+—H EKx&EE
FifFCloopena 8 2 8517 R 35T 1R SME A%
s8> ANEE A Cloopeni B 2 B
7546.79%

PRIGEE19(b)PTIRBEE SN  BREN — T - —
FZRNBHEEEFERMEETRELA
BnRELEKRBMASEBERE AREN
CloopentI R HEE#E > WRIE17.42% >
KRB ENTREFECloopenZE = & il B 1
5o EIE > AEE K EEH CloopenfIE K5
277 Cloopen B A X EENEE AT
RERGFEEROIN _S_—F_BNH%
EmAE  AEER CloopentV i N 184
BAFESFAEMZERENEMEE
BEBAFEZEN M2 E W R -
HDSRIEHE R CloopenZ % B ARR > AL
EXZGIEREMREEARZEE
##92,857,920,0008 TR BE S - —F
+ZA=+—HLEFENGEWmRE

=5
B ©

BRELEEFE

IR A ENESNTIRAFESE R
IREEUEDAEEEGIER S EEEN
ERRHMEERER GRS TEE
T EREItR s ERENREERER
BAEZT - RN_E_—EF+"B=+—8>
NEFEEGILR A ENGEBAENIER
FEEERNESZ R_Z_—F+_4
=t+—H> kRN ELIL RS EERE
18%51,746,000/87C (T ZZF | |) o



23 INVENTORIES 23 786
As at 31 December
m+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
B 5 B ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Raw materials R 8,032 21,177
Work in progress R 8,538 73,176
Finished goods LAl ah 1,857 27,092
18,427 121,445
The cost of inventories from continuing operations recognised PRI E AR I E RS EE  (FE A E
in cost of sales amounted to HK$83,415,000 (2020: 83,415,0008 7T (CZE -4 1 112,519, OOO/%

24
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for o A 5 ¥ R BT

HK$112,519,000), which included reversal of provision for
inventories of HK$2,052,000 (2020: HK$692,000).

The cost of inventories from discontinued operation recognised
in cost of sales amounted to HK$259,701,000 (2020:
HK$201,126,000), which included provision for inventories of
HK$9,130,000 (2020: HK$2,048,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$36,078,000 (2020:
HK$40,820,000) as at 31 December 2021. Full provision has
been made with regard to these balances.

) BEEE

REHEREREBZER I

Pe3s

S B #EE]2,052,000/8 T (CE-F
£ 1 692,000587T) °

201,126, 000/%75) BiEES
BT (B TE4F 1 2,048,000587T) ©

Romo—

RL—=

FIRZTF

548

=i

KREEREEZ
SRS £45259,701,0008 0 (CZE -5 .
5 55 15(019,130,000

FHR=+—H ZUEREFE

FB49736,078,000/8 7T (B &

£F 1 40,820,0000570) » W EFILEFLERIEE S

it e

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24 FEURBRFR B RN E S
As at 31 December
nr+-A=+—H
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'OOO
F#T T
Current portion BNHAER 7
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEUWLARTR (B &t (@) 176,292 236,974
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEWESE (BYEb)) 1,520 51,291
Less: provision for impairment of receivables 3 : FEU TR IB R (E B 5
(Note (c)) (Hfzt(c)) (9,403) (14,371)
168,409 273,894
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24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 FEWERFR B FEIREE @

FREEEAQTEREE - BUGRR KBRS
ZIREEDUTIIERSIE

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

W+=-—B=+—H
2021 2020
—B—F TERITRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 37,000 10,561
RMB AR 130,679 258,284
us$ ESS - 2,670
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPYHE (MRPFES]) 730 2,379
168,409 273,894
Notes Vior=3
(@ Trade receivables (@) FEURERTR

The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180
days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on
invoice date was as follows:

FEMGETEZEBAZEER—KRBEOE180ET
%o T RIGET A ML Z FEWERTERE DI T

As at 31 December

®+ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F “ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 128,311 194,298
91 to 180 days 91E180H 10,947 7,955
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 17,934 11,185
Over 365 days 3650 E 19,100 23,536
176,292 236,974

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables included retention
money receivables of HK$13,186,000 (2020: HK$11,174,000),
which represents approximately 10% to 20% (2020: 10% to 20%)
of the relevant contract sum granted to certain customers in the

RIEZ—F+"A=+—0 BURIRZREIEEIR
fREE13,186,000/8 7T (ZZZZ4F 11,174,000
70 EETETHEE SRS AMIEN10%E20%
(CEZZE D 10%E20%) » ZEREZRELHR
—RB—F R —EFE+"A=+—H FE
BT A EESA3GAU L ERRESS
2,812,000570 (ZB 24 © 1,341,000587T) ©

PRC that have a retention period of normally one year. As at 31
December 2021, the retention money receivables aged over 365 days
primarily based on invoice date amounted to HK$2,812,000 (2020:
HK$1,341,000).
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24 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Bills receivables

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates
within six months. The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the
Group is as follows:

GLAE RiEd (TS

24 FEURBRFR B FEUNEYS (@)

MsE (8

(b)

ZAEHIEEIHBE A LVRANER ZRITEAERE &
EERREEREZ DEBERNOT

As at 31 December

®+ZH=+—H
2021 2020
R —F “E2TEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Falling within 90 days 90HR - 51,291
Falling within 97 to 180 days 91E180H 1,520 -
1,520 51,291
Impairment and risk exposure (0 HEREE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL REBMRAEBHBREERESREEH E 2T

which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows for each group

HEEEE sArA YRR A 2 TR IS R
st BREEBR BUGRMERERRER
EERFEME SAEARWIERN R RIS RETHIR

receivables are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience, RE P RSB AR 5T WAEH AR MU B E R
adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions as well as forward MR BRI E -
looking information.
Movement on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as FEUCERFURERFREBNT :
follows:
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-_A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
B —F TEIRF
At 1 January w—A— 14,371 14,851
Credit impairment loss 5% /W{EEF?E 912 150
Written off SR - (1,560)
Classified as held for sale DEEAFIERE (6,187) -
Exchange realignment ERRAE 307 930
At 31 December ®W+ZBE=+—H 9,403 14,371

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

RREBPMEHZRAEERERTL Lt &R
PR BREE - AEE Y BSA EAERREAE
fRe
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25 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 25 ##timAstE HithEmEE

COST
As at 31 December
®W+=-HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F “ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current portion mENES
Deposits and other receivables ¥ K H A FE U Fh I8 85,945 52,502
Dividend receivable from an investment FERAE R EARZRERE
accounted for using the equity method - 36,400
85,945 88,902
Non-current portion FERENER 3
Deposits & 7,788 14,332
93,733 103,234

IREERAEQTERE JFRBEAOMIRE
EBUWAER - IZHHENASTECHMEREE
ZEREET U TS ESIE

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
discounting impact of non-current portion is insignificant. The
carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are
denominated in following currencies:

As at 31 December

232

w+=-—B=+—H
2021 2020
B & TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 2,915 38,209
RMB AR 90,818 65,025
93,733 103,234

As at 31 December 2021, the impact of ECL is immaterial to

the Group (2020: same).

A S —FE+_RB=+—QH EHREEFE
M ERAERTAEA (CE_ZFE HHAE)
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B BRI G

As at 31 December

m+=ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—% “ETEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Prepayments AR 28,562 29,273
Value added tax receivables JE Y I {E R 36,526 50,733
65,088 80,006

BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

27 $RI1TERR ~ ZPRHIERT
RIREEEY

TREERUARIRE

As at 31 December

w+=ZBA=+—H
2021 2020
T % —ETER
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Bank deposits (Note i) IR1T1ERR (Wati) - 6,105
Current assets MBEE
Bank deposits (Note i) IRITERR (W a2ii) 6,832 76
Restricted bank balance (Note iii) S IRGIERITAS BR (B aiii) 765,462 880,552
Cash and cash equivalents (Note iv) RERIBEHEEY) Wativ) 3,254,558 3,747,468
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27 BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The balance represented bank deposits with original maturities over
one year which are placed as guaranteed deposits for a project and are
denominated in RMB. The balance was classified as current as at 31
December 2021.

The balance represented bank deposits with maturity dates in January
2022 and June 2022 which are placed as guaranteed deposits for
a project and bank deposits with original maturities between three
to twelve months which are time deposits or placed as guaranteed
deposits for bills payables (2020: bank deposits with original
maturities between three to twelve months which are time deposits or
placed as guaranteed deposits for bills payables)and . The balance is
denominated in RMB.

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the PBOC, effective from 14 January 2019, all customer
reserve accounts held by the third-party payment institutions were
to be cancelled and the customer reserves were to be deposited in
a dedicated deposit account maintained centrally by a designated
agency. The customer reserve account is denominated in RMB.
Transfers of funds under this bank account are governed under certain
measures implemented by the PBOC and hence these customer
reserves are restricted in nature.

Included in cash and cash equivalents were HK$386,000 (2020:
HK$1,025,000) bank deposits with original maturities within three
months which are placed as guaranteed deposits for tenders.

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$1,876,584,000 (2020: HK$3,248,108,000) are kept in
the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

27 SRITTFTR ~ PR ERT

TREERARIRE

RREFEY @

sz -

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HEREAEEN—EEEMEFEFAREBRE R
TER ZFRTERREIHA A —FU L 1Y
ARBHE-RB-—F+-B=+—B &&H2
BRmesE-

s EalL = b e —— o T - G —— S =
ZROTER LESRABEA =2+ BT
ERUAMENREMEEFARERE C2E
FERRBRA=ZET_ERNTEREFRAIME
NREMEEERRERE ZIRITER MU
ARWEHE

BEFPEARBTXNEEDEMHNEN B8
—NEF—BTHOBAE E=5XNRBKAENRA
ERREBSRARRES BEXRRESARETE
BHEE BN ERERERAT TR HEAEERRS
MAR¥ESHE - ZIRITIRPPHNESERZ PR A
RIFTEBRNETIEHEE ALZSERHES
RE 2R

RERRSEEYOERREMEEFAREES
KRHARR 2 =18 B ) 2 R1T1770386,0008 7T (ZF
TEEE 1 1,025,000587T) ©

AEBESL%1,876,584,00087T (CE-E
£F 1 3,248,108,000787T) fF AL REISRTTRIER 2
IRITERP  EHESBRINESH -

RERRESEYIRUTERIIE :

currencies:

As at 31 December

®+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F _EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT AT
HK$ BT 413,479 305,666
RMB AR 1,860,620 2,371,117
USs$ E7T 979,382 998,227
JPY = - 69,720
MOP pealaskics - 2,473
EUR BT 7T 1,037 265
GBP %53 40 -
3,254,558 3,747,468
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28 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020,
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021

ARE

—=

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

28 fgas

R-T-TE—B—H-
I = = h

£ —®—HF—BkK

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
SREE0.0025B T HiER
No. of shares HK$’000

R FHT

“E-—HF+ZH=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE :
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, ATETEF—H—H>
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 :g_gfﬁJr—ﬁ =+—8-
- _—¢+ A=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942
Notes: HaE
(@) Share award scheme (@ BRIDIEENETE
The Company operates a share award scheme (the “Share Award RABEE—IRRRAA SRS B (TR 5@ sT81)) -

Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising and rewarding the
contribution of certain eligible participants to the growth and
development of the Group and providing incentives in order to retain
them for continual operation and development of the Group and
attracting suitable personnel for further development of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme include the Group’s
full-time employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on 29 June 2021 and unless
otherwise amended or terminated, will remain valid and effective for
a period of 10 years from that date. As at date of report, no share was
awarded under the Share Award Scheme.

Ei?%?éﬁ*&%ﬁi%?%d:%lE’]EJZ%&’%‘EP)WE
BERTUSEREE  WiREHEURBZEAL
LAEEEREEERER ; REBRSIGEAR
HEAEME—PER ZRMDEBHEZGER
2REQEAERZ 2RESURRIITRIFNTE
FozRORBHEAN_S_—FB-_+NBE
R BRIFaz R0 SRSt BI BT ERTSA b BRI
Z B ERENAB MR ER - RIREBRH I
EIREAR D SRED ST B ER E IR o
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28 SHARE CAPITAL

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(©

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme since 2011 (the “2011
Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented employees in order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the 2011 Scheme
include the Group’s full-time employees, and Executive and non-
Executive Directors. The 2011 Scheme became effective on 29 April
2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date. No share option
was granted under the 2011 Scheme. The 2011 Scheme expired on 29
April 2021.

The Company operates another share option scheme since 2021 (the
“2021 Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented employees of the Group or associated companies (including
executive and non-executive directors) in order to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the
2021 Scheme include the Group's full-time employees, executive and
non-executive Directors. The 2021 Scheme became effective on 18
May 2021 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
valid and effective for a period of 10 years therefrom until 18 May
2031. No share option was granted under the 2021 Scheme.

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of VBill OPCO
have passed a resolution to conditionally grant options to several
management (the “Grantees”) of VBill OPCO pursuant to the terms of
a share option scheme for VBill OPCO (the “2018 VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”) a right to subscribe up to approximately 12% of the
enlarged registered and paid up capital of VBill OPCO at the exercise
price of RMB12.51 for every RMB1.00 in the registered and paid up
capital of VBill OPCO within a period of 3 years from the date of grant.

The share options are fully vested as at 31 December 2018. The
validity period of these share options shall be 3 years from the date of
grant.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary (Continued)

On 18 November 2020, the directors and shareholders of VBill OPCO
have passed a resolution to amend the 2018 VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme from an exercise period of 3 years to 6 years (the “2020 VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme”). As a result of the modification, the
incremental fair value granted is HK$40,191,000.

The incremental fair value granted is the difference between the fair
value of the modified equity instrument (2020 VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme) and that of the original equity instrument (2018 VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme), both estimated as at the date of the
modification (18 November 2020).

The weighted average fair value of options under 2018 VBill OPCO
Share Option Scheme determined using the Binomial valuation model
was RMB13.62. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise
price as shown above, volatility of 57.40%, zero dividend yield,
exercise multiple of 2.8 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 2.86%.

The weighted average fair value of options under 2020 VBill OPCO
Share Option Scheme determined using the Binomial valuation model
was RMB14.86. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise
price as shown above, volatility of 45.90%, zero dividend yield,
exercise multiple of 2.8 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and an
annual risk-free interest rate of 3.09%.

for o A 5 ¥ R BT
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29 RESERVES 29 f#fA
Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
RitEE  ERERR HtEE ERRE  RERA At
(M) (Hfai)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
At T January 2021 RZE-—%F—F—H 1,063,153 168,434 433,076 158,322 3,712,139 5,535,124
Profit for the year FRER - - = - 3,521,526 3,521,526
Exchange differences on translation of  #& /85N B A B HRE
the financial statements of foreign EEZERER
subsidiaries - - - 64,526 - 64,526
Exchange differences on translation of  #18 B4 I EEF
the financial statements of MBRRELZ
discontinued operation ERESR - - - 5,230 - 5,230
Share of other comprehensive income  FEMEUEREARZHEZ
of investments accounted for using ~ EM2E M=
the equity method - - 120 28,361 - 28,481
Release of reserve upon dilution of — #ENEEARZ
interest in an investment accounted R ER@RERELZ
for using the equity method 1 - - - 10 - 10
Change in value of a financial BATES ARt2ERE
assets at fair value through other ZEHMEEBELY
comprehensive income - - (2,844,555) - - (2,844,555)
Share of other reserves of an LMD ENRZREZ
investment accounted for using At
the equity method - - 3,374 - - 3,374
Capital injection into a subsidiary H—ERBATFE - - (661) - - (661)
Deemed disposal of shares RALE—BRBADRNR
of a subsidiary (Note 34) (Myi234) - - 574 (394) - 130
Partial disposal of a subsidiary BOHE—BREAT
(Note 36) (Wzt36) - - 104,053 (926) - 103,127
At 31 December 2021 RZF——
+-A=+-H 1,063,153 168,434 (2304019 225129 7,233,665 6,416,362
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29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 f#fE @
Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
RiDEE BEEBRE HAMEE ERERE  REEN CE

(Hizt) (Wizti)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET FTERT FER TET

At 1 January 2020 RIZ2ZEF—F—H 1,063,153 168,434 434,108 (41,043) 3,055,454 4,680,106

Profit for the year FRER = = =
Exchange differences on translation of  #E/EIM B A B MR %
the financial statements of foreign EEZERER EB5)

656,685 656,685

subsidiaries, as restated - - - 122,661 - 122,661
Exchange difference on translation REBRILREER

of the financial statements of PERREEZERER

discontinued operation, as restated (=75 - - - 11,930 - 11,930

Share of other comprehensive (loss)  FEIELUETEAIRZREZ

income of investments accounted Hi2E (58 /s

for using the equity method - - (2,669) 63,486 - 60,817
Release of reserve upon dilution of ~ ESEMEREARZEZE

interest in an investment accounted @A EE 2

for using the equity method - - - (409) - (409)
Share of other reserves of an MRS ENRZREZ

investment accounted for using EfE

the equity method - - 13,025 - - 13,025
Deemed disposals of shares RALEMBABRG

of subsidiaries (Note 34) (H234) - - (39,050) 1,697 - (37,353)
Employees’ incentive programme —RNEAT 2 BERE

of a subsidiary (Note 28) T8 (H228) - - 27,662 - - 27,662
At 31 December 2020 RTBBE

+ZB=1+—H 1,063,153 168,434 433,076 158,322 3,712,139 5,535,124
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29 RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(@@

(i)

(iii)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Major items in other reserves are as follows:

- the difference between the net proceeds from issuance of
convertible preference shares of subsidiaries and the amount
transferred to non-controlling interests upon their conversion into
ordinary shares in prior years;

- the impacts from granting employees’ incentive programme of
subsidiaries;

- change in values of the financial asset at FVOCI;

- the initial recognition of the written put option liabilities (Note
33); and

- the recognition of gain on the deemed disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 34).

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2021, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$146,134,000 (2020: HK$139,783,000).

29 f#fE @

sz -

(i)
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- RETFEESRSEERERAETHEAR
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- RBaVESARMEENG SMEEEESE
#;

—  YPEDEHRLAEAE (§533) 5 &
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PEABMNEE AR 106D EEE#ES BEE
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30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 30 FE(IERFIREMNERE - X ZEIE

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS PR RER Z RTRIERE MR
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS TRIE B2 FEEHRIR
As at 31 December
r+-A=+—H
2021 2020
—ET—F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Current portion BNHEAER 53
Trade payables (Note (a) FEATRRR (Hat(a) 497,080 512,622
Bills payables (Note (b)) P& R4% (HaE b)) 8,503 14,182
505,583 526,804
Payables for payment processing solutions SRR RER
business (Note (c)) FEARIR (Bt (c) 624,296 828,619
Other payables and accruals (Note (d) HLAth & AT 7R I8 K FE 510 IE
Hiztd) 1,076,401 1,013,991
2,206,280 2,369,414
Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing ENRRRENRE XU FEERRT R
solutions business and other payables and accruals are HEF 2 A RUE R HMFE (R IB R FE ST RRIA R
denominated in the following currencies: UrEByE :
As at 31 December
®+Z-A=+—H
2021 2020
—T”—F T HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
HK$ BT 69,530 55,004
RMB AR 2,136,555 2,313,024
USD ETT 195 1,386
2,206,280 2,369,414
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30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@ Trade payables
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

30 FEMIARFAR BT RIR IR FRRIE

RRRP HZRBZ RIRIER AR

TRIE R FESTTRIA ()

st -

@ FEERM

RIZ-—FRZE-EF+-_A=+—H FZE

RET AL 2 EABRTERE: IO T ¢

As at 31 December

®m+=ZR=+—H
2021 2020
—EC—F .
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 468,595 462,757
91 to 180 days 91E180H 11,272 30,489
181 to 365 days 181E365H 7,089 9,898
Over 365 days 365 E 10,124 9,478
497,080 512,622
The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. HERR T ZEERN FOE180H 2R
(b) Bills payables b EHE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: BRERISIRI TR IR
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—E_—F —TCETHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Due within 90 days 90H A EHA 5,993 4,878
Due within 91 to 180 days 91E180H N EHA 2,510 9,304
8,503 14,182

(c) Payables for payment processing solutions business
Payables for payment processing solutions business mainly represent
payment received from the relevant banks and financial institutions on
behalf of the merchants. The amounts are required to be settled with
merchants upon the respective contractual settlement clearance dates
and are denominated in RMB.

(0 ZNRZREBHBRAREHZEMARE

SNRGEEFRRS EEBZENTRTERERE
8 P U EERIIRIT R SRR BRI IR - BRASERA
REMGNERRREERFEERZARKET
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30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

30 EIIRMKRIEARE IR FRIE
RRRP EZRBZ RIRIER AR

AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS TRIE R FEETRRIA (&)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) izt @
(d) Other payables and accruals (d) HEthFEfTRIERERIE
As at 31 December
R+-B=+—8
2021 2020
ZEZ—%F TECTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations fESt B TRARRIKEEE 266,720 302,642
Deposits & 60,751 50,373
Receipt in advance from customers (Note i) FESWEN R P 2 T (W5ti) 77,241 27,932
Advance from merchant recruitment agents REBIER R IR RN 435,842 415,261
Others Hit 235,847 217,783
Total a5t 1,076,401 1,013,991
Note: k=3

(i)

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities
under other payables and accruals as receipt in advance from
customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year amounted to HK$26,072,000 (2020:
HK$69,592,000).

The increase in receipt in advance from customers was mainly
due to increase in advances from merchants under the payment
processing solutions segment.

() BHNEERAEREDERERAR REFZ
AHRERGORERLNINEESRETRR
BR - AEENGREEERRRTHDEEM
FEATRIE R FE 5 FORIR TR G AR ERTRER
WMERZIE

REE_S_—F+_B=+—HI-FEH#:D
W st AFH & B EERR Z WA %326,072,000
BT (CEIEE 69,592,00087T) ©

FASUWE S A 2 ORI I E ZAMN R B IR
ZERIRERAR RO RIE T P BRRIG IR
®e
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31 B

As at 31 December

n+=ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
8- S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2,446 -

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowing would mature
on 27 December 2022 and bears average interest of annually
4.25%. The interest-bearing borrowing is carried at amortised
cost.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowing was repayable
within within 1 year.

The carrying amount of the short-term borrowing approximates
its fair value. The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing as
at 31 December 2021 is denominated in the RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowing is pledged by
buildings (Note 15) and right-of-use assets (Note 16) of the
Group.

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

A B —F+ZA=+—BRITERRZ
BT F+ A+ A BTHFENE
42551 B o 5t BEATIGHIE AT iR -

A S —F+"HA=+—H AEBEZE™
BR—FREE

THERZREERAEATERE - R2F
T—F+ZA=+—R AEREEMZIREE
TSUAREESHE -

ATE T —F+ "B =+—H RITERES
EEBF (f5E15) REREESE (fizt16) /EIE
o

BE_Z_—F+A=t—HLEE F5%
E & T HAERBE RN 2E -
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BEEH (E) BRAR

32 JEIEFRISH

S —EFR

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRIREFTSRNEERSBEEEUT .
during the year is as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRISIRERE
2021 2020
ZEC-F ZEC%E
Accelerated Revaluation Accelerated Revaluation
tax  of intangible Right-of-use tax  of intangible Right-of-use
depreciation assets assets Total  depreciation assets assets Total
MEHE BHEE fERIE MERE BVEE B
bif Bff BE ai & En BE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#w Thw TEw T FER FER Fh TEr
At1 January R*-A—8 119 310 2,852 3,281 173 311 6,275 6,759
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEREAR
(Note 33) (H1e35) - 3,046 - 3,046 - - - -
Credited to the consolidated HAGRERER
income statement (32) (202) (2,887) 3121) (54) 21 (3,635) (3,710)
Exchange realignment EREE - 62 35 97 - 20 212 232
At 31 December ®+ZB=+—8H 87 3,216 - 3,303 119 310 2,852 3,281
Set-off deferred income tax assets EHIEEFTSHARE (87) (247) - (334) (119 (241) (2,550 (2,910)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net 3+~ 8 =+—H#
at 31 December BILFERERESE - 2,969 - 2,969 - 69 302 371
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 IRIEFRISIR @

246

Deferred income tax assets REFRISHEE
2021 2020
it b2 kSt .3
Decelerated Revaluation Decelerated Revaluation
tax  of intangible tax of intangible
depreciation assets Total depreciation assets Total
MZERE BN EE MERA BVEE
if-3 Bft Ch e B CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TART TAT TAT TER TART
At 1 January ®—A—H (2,567) (360) (2,927) (5,957) (399) (6,356)
Charged to the consolidated nisBRaKER
income statement 2,595 32 2,627 3,584 54 3,638
Exchange realignment ERBE (28) ) (34) (194) (15) (209)
At31 December ®+=B=+-8 - (334) (334) (2,567) (360) (2,927)
Set-off eferred income tax liabilities REETFHERER - 334 334 2,550 360 2,910
Deferred income tax assets, net at 31 December  F*+_B=+—H#
BEFEMEESE - - - (17) - (17)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses EEFFSIRE ET AR AR IER A Al AL

carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
to be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
amounted to HK$738,476,000 (2020: HK$466,209,000),
which were subject to agreement with respective tax
authority. These tax losses have no expiry date except that
HK$462,061,000 will expire from 2022 to 2026 (2020:
HK$196,278,000 will expire from 2021 to 2025). The potential
deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$137,130,000
(2020: HK$84,436,000).

As at 31 December 2021, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$277,404,000 (2020: HK$219,130,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

FEBBERMENEEMMAAEE 2 RIE
BEERER R _E-_—F+_-_/A=+—8>
AREEBAELULHEHBRERRUA Z KHE
SRR TERS18738,476,0008 70 (ZE T F ©
466,209,000/ 7T) > I ZEEAS %ﬁ?%%%ﬂ
= F%462,061,0008THN _E__FF
TARFHEER(CEIEEH 196,278, ooo%m
AT —FEE " RFEHRBEW) &
TRIBE5 18 3 4 2 m 5 1 o ﬂiﬁkaﬁé%’ﬁlﬁgﬂaﬁﬁ
B BT RIEFTSIRE E 137,130,000 7T (=
T TE  84,436,000587T) ©

A —

A ST —F+ZRB=1+—H HBRAEET
PO R R EEREREAERY
R E] RAR SR [D] > B R FL A S B A T AR B
BRABIRERF Z EITEINMRE277,404,00078
TT(CE-FE 219,130,000 70) RiF S TR
RIEHIRIEFR B o
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

33 BHREEGRE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'OOO
FHET THT
At 1 January EA—)% —H 831,207 683,908
Issuance of written put option BITEL LA - 78,824
Unwinding of discount {EIE 68,779 61,001
Exchange realignment bE 52 5R 2,595 7,474
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 902,581 831,207
As at 31 December
R+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—%F “E2TERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Current portion BNHAER 7
—VBill (Cayman) (Note a) —VBill (Cayman) (#7zta) 797,710 -
Non-current portion FEENEAER 3
— VBill (Cayman) (Note a) —VBill (Cayman) (#/zta) - 738,620
— Megahunt HK (Note b) —JKREE (Ha2b) 104,871 92,587
104,871 831,207
Total Gt 902,581 831,207
Notes: Bzt
(@ In 2019, the Company, certain shareholders of VBill OPCO, @ MRIZE—AE XRAT - BAINETRE> aiFF

including Shen Zheng (also acts as the director of VBill (Cayman)),
Li Huimin, Xue Guangyu and Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “VBill
Management Shareholders”), ELECTRUM B.V. (the “VBill Investor”),
VBill (Cayman) and VBill OPCO entered into a subscription agreement
(the “VBIill Subscription”), pursuant to which, the VBill Investor had
agreed to acquire approximately 11.21% effective shareholding
in VBill OPCO through subscription of the issued shares of VBill
(Cayman) at a subscription price of RMB588,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$676,494,000). The VBill Subscription was completed on 12
November 2019.

As a part of the VBill Subscription, VBill (Cayman) granted a put option,
which the VBIill Investor could request VBill (Cayman) to repurchase,
redeem and/or cancel all the VBill (Cayman)’s shares held by the VBill
Investor at its discretion within 3 to 5 years after the completion date
of the subscription under certain conditions at an exercise price of
RMB588,000,000 (equivalent to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0% interest
per annum.

B (JREAEVBIll (Cayman)EE) 2R EH - ENLF R
BEEE (B4 TVBIllEIEEAEH]) “ELECTRUM
B.V. ("VBill#& & &) “VBill (Cayman)RFE1T1T5T1L
g (TVBIlIEAESEIE)) »RIb VBIREER
FERBBZDEEAR588,000,0007T (HHER
676,494,000787T) SRFEVBIll (Cayman)EE4TAZ1A  #E
MUEERETT I A11.21% B FRAZHE © VBIllZRFE =18
RIZE—NAF+—B+H=mM-

VEAVBIRBEEN—Z5 » VBIll (Cayman/ &S —
@nuéiﬁ)ﬂ% ﬁ\mﬁ%mﬁiﬁﬁﬂfé iﬁﬂiﬁq VBI|HX
BHEDRUIEZERVBIll (Cayman/fE& T1ER FUITEE
B AR #588,000,0007T (HEE7676,494,0007 7T)
8.0%MEFIEE EHEE BB K, HVBIllR E
EFRARPTAVBIll (Cayman)f(7
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes:

a)

(Continued)
(Continued)

The fair value of the written put option liability is derived based on
the present value of the exercise price of RMB588,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum, by applying a
discount rate of 8%, and on the assumption that the put option will
be redeemable on 12 November 2022. The written put option liability
was denominated in US$ and classified under current liabilities as at
31 December 2021 (2020: denominated in US$ and classified under
non-current liabilities).

In 2020, the Company, Megahunt, Megahunt HK, the management
team members of Megahunt and certain investors entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Megahunt Subscription”). The
management team members of Megahunt include Li Li, Liu Zhan-
li, Xu Changjun, Xu Wensheng, Yang Lei, Hui Lok Yan and Song Jie.
The investors include Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (a
subsidiary of PAX Global) (“Wonder Pax”), EiB8FRFSEMR B E
ERERERESPO (BRAY), SHE (TEREERE) BHRE
B (BIRE ) (collectively the “Megahunt Investors”). Pursuant to
the Megahunt Subscription, the Megahunt Investors have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of approximately 14.55% of
the enlarged registered capital of Megahunt at a subscription price
of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$87,441,000). The Megahunt
Subscription was completed on 30 March 2020 (Note 34).

As a part of the Megahunt Subscription, Megahunt HK granted a put
option, which the Megahunt Investors could request Megahunt HK to
repurchase all the Megahunt's shares held by the Megahunt Investor
at its discretion from 31 December 2023 to 31 December 2025 under
certain conditions at an exercise price of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$87,441,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum.

The fair value of the written put option liability is derived is based on
the present value of the exercise price of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$87,441,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum, by applying a
discount rate of 10.34%, and on the assumption that the put option
will be redeemable on 31 December 2023. The written put option
liability was denominated in RMB and classified under non-current
liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

33 BHEERRE @

MisE 6@

a)

)

FEIBIRAS%MAIRE B EHEEENA
ERTEBNIREARE588,000,0007T (*E*‘*ﬁA
676,494,00077T) NN8.0%BIEF R H » ﬂ‘ﬂEx?.Q;E,
HEER S —F+—A+_HHEBL RN
——H+ZA=+—H ?‘fﬁm ShEREAa F&%ﬁl
BERDEFFBERE CTIIE  BETIERD
EAIERHED

RIT T AAT KMIBEE - KAEFB K
HEEEEBENMERE TRESIRERE
(MJKENIEEREEIE)) < JKAIBEEERE B MR
BEEEN LN BREE - HBEBR
BRRH -KREECEBETERE CRY) ARA
B (BEBRKNREBAR) ((BESE) - EEFR
BOERBRELERELEESDL (BREE) &
BB (FEReERE) RELRERL BREH)
(#FBA DKAIBEREE]) o RIBEIKAIEERE
B HNIEEREECERGEREZREILNIEE
EHA14.55% N EEAFMEL  AEELARE
80,000,0007C (FEE 287,441,000 7T) © JKNIEESD
BEENR_Z_TF=A=1+H5%M ([:34) °

EBIKIBZREEEN—ZD B BHRH—
PEREIRRE  JKNIEER BB AL BRI E A
EETFIER FUITEEARS0,000,0007T FEEHR
87,441,000787T) MN8.0%MIFFEIEN S =4
+-B=+—HE_Z-_HF+_A=+—HE-L
IR EETFEWETEJCTIBER D

FEBIRA1034%MIRE > BHLPEEEES
A FERTHEEMNIRE AR 80,000,0007T FBE
287,441,000787T) 18.0%MFEF| R+ 8 > WK
TR =+ A=+ —HREAEE B o 1
CEC—F+Z A=+ AEHEHREEEMUA
RisHERDEAEABEE (CETE (18R ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Deemed disposal of shares of a subsidiary in 2021

(1)

Deemed disposal of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech Global
Company Limited in 2021

In August 2021, ABS, the management team members
of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech Global Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Hi Sun”) (a subsidiary of the Group)
(“Shenzhen Hi Sun Management Team Members”),
certain investors and Shenzhen Hi Sun entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Shenzhen Hi Sun
Investors Subscription”), pursuant to which, the
investors had agreed to subscribe approximately
19.09% effective shareholding in Shenzhen Hi Sun
through subscription of the issued shares of Shenzhen
Hi Sun at a subscription price of RMB9,750,000
(equivalent to HK$11,791,000).

The Shenzhen Hi Sun Investors Subscription was
completed on 18 October 2021. Upon the completion
of the Shenzhen Hi Sun Investors Subscription,
Shenzhen Hi Sun remains as a subsidiary of the
Group. The Group was deemed to have disposed of
19.09% of Shenzhen Hi Sun, resulting in a decrease in
shareholding from 70% to 50.91%.

Gain on deemed disposal of shares of Shenzhen

o WA 5 e A B e

34 RIEHENBEATRMD

(@)

— B -FREHERIISHEERR

RERAT

() ZEZ—FRFLHEFRYEEELK
B BRL 5]
RIZ2Z—FN\A sEsE - Fias

BEXERERAR CRIIER) &
EEN—RENBAR) BEBEXME
RYIEmEEBERRE) BT
LB E ORISR R E & (F,ék
JIERREEREEIER) &Ik
ERREBEREEEAR9,750, 0007u
(FEEF11,791,00058 7T) RE RIS
BEETRS  KMmRERISRY
19.09%FY B PR A1

R ERREE DRI T —
E+A+\BFH RRYIEHEE
ERWEERAE > R EBH DA

EEN—ERER T REBAR A

H:Il /*t”lﬁﬁﬁ]g 090/01% 2 gf:t&zﬂi
TER70%82E50.91% ©
HE_ZE-_—F+°"B=+—HIF

Hi Sun for the year ended 31 December 2021 is > SRIFEHE RIS SR MBI U 5t
calculated as follows: LRI
For the year
ended
31 December
2021
BE_ZT_—F
+-A=+—H
ILFE
HK$’000
FHT
Proceeds receivable from the Shenzhen Hi ~ BRIIERZIEEE TN ESIEZ RIFME
Sun Investor Subscription Ia 11,791
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests 3 : FEsRIFIER = (11,611)
Add: proportionate share of accumulated RIS R n‘l'E'lf S E RS
currency translation differences re- ER AR S
attributed to non-controlling interests 394
Gain on deemed disposal of shares of REAMEEEDNRELER)ISH
Shenzhen Hi Sun recognised in other Bz n Wzt
reserves 574
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34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Deemed disposal of shares of subsidiaries in 2020 (b)
(i) Deemed disposal of Megahunt

As disclosed in Note 33, the Megahunt Subscription
was completed on 30 March 2020. Upon the
completion of the Megahunt Subscription, Megahunt
remains as a subsidiary of the Group. The Group was
deemed to have disposed of approximately 11.19%
of Megahunt, resulting in a decrease in shareholding
from 76.92% to approximately 65.73%.

Gain on deemed disposals of shares of Megahunt for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is calculated as
follows:

34 RIEHEWBATIRG @

—ETERELHEMB ARG

(i) HETEHEJKG 57
WM EE33FTI B8 JKENIBZERE S 1B
BER_E-ZF=F=+H%M P
JKENIBER B EIEEME  JKAIEE
MALERN—EHEBEAR ~ER
WRABHEIAIEELT1.19%E
o ERRTERT6.92% B E 4965.73% ©

BE_TZF+_RA=+—HILHF
> BREH & ILIEZ IR MBI IR 5t
R

For the year

ended
31 December
2020
BE_Z_ZRF
+ZB=+—H
HFE
HK$'000
TAT
Proceeds received from the Megahunt BIKIEER B E IR 2 RUFT1ERIAE
Subscription 87,441
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests & : M8 IFIER = (47,160)
Less: proportionate share of accumulated BRI ERN RS E BT ZREE N
currency translation differences re- BB TR IRt TS
attributed to non-controlling interests (1,697)
Less: directly attributable transaction costs & . EIZEI53Z 5 A (437)
Gain on deemed disposal of shares of REAMFEEEDARIEL EIRAIEE
Megahunt recognised in other reserves B 1R e 38,147
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34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF 34 HRIEHEMBATIRG @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Deemed disposal of shares of subsidiaries in 2020 b)) —E-ZEFREHERBATNRG
(Continued) #B)
(i) Deemed disposal of CodeOne Data Limited (i) HR1EHEMIGEIEE RG]

In March 2020, VBill (Cayman), VBill Management
Shareholders and CodeOne Data Limited
(“CodeOne”) (a subsidiary of the Group) entered into a
subscription agreement (the “CodeOne Subscription”),
pursuant to which, the VBill Management
Shareholders had agreed to subscribe approximately
17.72% effective shareholding in CodeOne through
subscription of the issued shares of CodeOne at a
subscription price of HK$1,772,000. The CodeOne
Subscription was completed on 30 March 2020.
Upon the completion of the CodeOne Subscription,

RIZZEZZEF =5 VBill (Cayman)
VBIllEIBERRRMISEIEERA

(M5 (RERN—HEHERR) J
SRR (BN SIE)) - It
VBIIEEEBRECRREBIZDERE
1,772,000 o3 BE MBS B 21T A%
TR B MAE 4917 .72% B IR HE -
MEERBBEERN _ S _EF=A=+
H5Ek o RIS R R IBE A > 9SG
MANEBRN—EHEBAR - ~ER
WRABHEMIBEN17.72%#m > &

CodeOne remains as a subsidiary of the Group. The IR ER100%3 £ 4982.28% ©
Group was deemed to have disposed of approximately
17.72% of CodeOne, resulting in a decrease in

shareholding from 100% to approximately 82.28%.

Gain on deemed disposals of shares of CodeOne for BEZTEF+_HB=—+—HLF
the year ended 31 December 2020 is calculated as > %ﬁf’ﬁﬁ'iME%foﬁE’]Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
follows: T
For the year
ended
31 December
2020
BECZEF
+ZHA=+—H
IEFE
HK$'000
TATT
Proceeds received from the CodeOne BIMIS R E IR BIRPRSTIA
Subscription 1,772
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests 3 : FEsRIFIER = (1,256)
Less: directly attributable transaction costs & : EIZE(53Z 5 A (150)
Gain on deemed disposal of shares of P EAth B SR AU AR 1F B E B AR 15
CodeOne recognised in other reserves Wi 366
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34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Deemed disposal of shares of subsidiaries in 2020

(Continued)

(@)

(iii) Deemed disposal of Shenzhen Hi Sun in 2020

In April 2020, ABS, Shenzhen Hi Sun Management
Team Members and Shenzhen Hi Sun entered into
a subscription agreement (the “Shenzhen Hi Sun
Management Team Members Subscription”), pursuant
to which, the management team members had agreed
to subscribe approximately 30% effective shareholding
in Shenzhen Hi Sun through subscription of the issued
shares of Shenzhen Hi Sun at a subscription price of
RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$6,543,000).

The Shenzhen Hi Sun Management Team Members
Subscription was completed on 10 April 2020. Upon
the completion of the Shenzhen Hi Sun Management
Team Members Subscription, Shenzhen Hi Sun
remains as a subsidiary of the Group. The Group was
deemed to have disposed of 30% of Shenzhen Hi Sun,
resulting in a decrease in shareholding from 100% to
70%.

Gain on deemed disposals of shares of Shenzhen
Hi Sun for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
calculated as follows:

34 RIEHEWBATIRG @

b) —E_ZFERELERBAIBRHRG

(iii) PR =B - EFREHE R S5

RIETZEFUR > sheiE  Fls
EEEBENNERFSET LR
BEipz (RSB EREERRAER
BEEIE)) i EEBEKKERR
RiBEEIEE A R 16,000,0007T (18
E11°6,543,000787T) RE RIS E %
IR WM EE RIS FE4I30% N E
PRAGHE o

FSEEREBXKNERESEN
:g_gimﬂ‘f’axm HENE
GEEEERKKEREETETMRE
FINBB N AHARERN—EH B
Bl REEWRABEHERYIEE30%
T ERREHE100% - E70% ©

BE_ZTZF+_HA=+—HILF
B RIEERERIISHERM IR S
R

For the year

ended
31 December
2020
BE_ZEF
+-A=+—H
IEFE
HK$'000
FHTT
Proceeds received from the Shenzhen Hi Sun B RIS EREERKRKEREEIE
Management Team Members Subscription ZFR1SRIA 6,543
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests & : MEs3IFIER = (6,203)
Gain on deemed disposal of shares of REMBEFEDNRELERISHE
Shenzhen Hi Sun recognised in other & 15 Wi
reserves 340




BHEH (FE) ARAF T EER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF 34 HRIEHEMBATIRG @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Deemed disposal of shares of subsidiaries in 2020 b)) —E-ZEFREHERBATNRG
(Continued) #B)
(iv) Deemed disposal of Hi Sun FinTech Global Limited (iv) BBIEHEBGEKFR BRAE

In July 2020, Emerging Technology Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group) and Shenzhen Hi Sun
(a subsidiary owned as to 70% by the Group since 10
April 2020 (refer to Note (b)(iii) above) entered into an
agreement (the “Hi Sun FinTech Agreement”), pursuant
to which, Shenzhen Hi Sun had agreed to purchase
100% equity interest of Hi Sun FinTech Global Limited
(“Hi Sun FinTech”) from Emerging Technology Limited
at nil consideration.

The Hi Sun FinTech Agreement was completed on 7
October 2020. Upon the completion of the Hi Sun
FinTech Agreement, Hi Sun FinTech remains as a
subsidiary of the Group. The Group’s interest in Hi Sun
FinTech decreased from 100% to 70% accordingly.

Gain on deemed disposal of shares of Hi Sun FinTech
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is calculated as

RZEZZFtLtH Emerging
Technology Limited (A& E 2 2 & B
nE) BRYIEE REEE 2
FHA+BRESH70%BEN M E
AE (B Exb)ii) s1ir e (B
Btna) o Bib RISBEREUS
X1 BEmerging Technology Limited!s f&
SEEXRERBRAR (MEHEEE)
Z 2 ERRGHE

sShEERBEER 2 -EF+AtH
TR e BB RTME  SER
RINBAEEZM B AR - &REE
BRI B EEER100%/RDE
70%°

BEZTEF+_HB=—+—HLF
B> %ﬁf’ﬁ& = B3 BHR IR 10 B9 U o 5t

follows: B0
For the year
ended
31 December
2020
BECZEF
+ZHA=+—H
IEFE
HK$'000
TATT
Consideration B _
Recognition of non-controlling interests IR 921
Gain on deemed disposal of shares of Hi Sun TR EAA#HERNRIEHE BRI
FinTech recognised in other reserves 17 W 921
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34 DEEMED DISPOSALS OF SHARES OF

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Set out below is the summary of the impact on other reserves
in respect of the deemed disposals of shares of subsidiaries and
the written put option liability:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ko W B Rk B e

34 RIEHEWBATIRG @

IR &5 ARRIFHERB R RMRE LR
RS AN EMREEELENTENNE

For the year ended
31 December

#E=+"H=+—H

IEFRE
2021 2020
—E_—F kSt 3
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Gain on deemed disposals of shares of RAF B B 2 B B9 AU 2
subsidiaries 574 39,774
Initial recognition of the written put option B X HEBIKFAIBENE LR E
liability of Megahunt AR - (78,824)
574 (39,050)

In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended
31 December 2021, net cash inflow for deemed disposal
of HK$1,666,000, represents proceeds receivable for
Shenzhen Hi Sun Investors Subscription of HK$11,791,000,
less unsettled consideration of HK$10,125,000 as at 31
December 2021 (2020: net cash inflow from deemed
disposals of HK$95,169,000 represents proceeds received
from the Megahunt Subscription, CodeOne Subscription and
Shenzhen Hi Sun Management Team Members Subscription
of HK$87,441,000, HK$1,772,000 and HK$6,543,000
respectively, less the directly attributable transaction costs
of Megahunt Subscription of HK$437,000 and CodeOne
Subscription of HK$150,000, respectively).

RBEEZZ-_—F+__A=+—HIFEW

FEReERERT REHEETENRERA
J$EA1,666,0008 0I5 B RSB R EERE
EIBEUFRERIETT,791,0008 T/ — &~ —
F+ZA=+—BF&EHEE10,125,000E T
(CE2T2F  FEHESENRESRA R
95,169,00078 7015 B KR 181D 18 ~ 1E5ER
BRERFISHEEREERNEREEEMN
BRIE D RIA87,441,0005 75~ 1,772,00058 7T
7§z6 543,00078 7T B JKFL 1B 3 50 B 5 18 K RS

REFEEEEGZZMA 2 5)A437,0008
7T 150,000587T) ©
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 35 EHEH
(@) Acquisition of Good Chain (a) UghBYFHE
(i) Summary of acquisition of Good Chain (i) USEEBLFHERIBIE

On 8 June 2021, the Group acquired 70% of the N TET-FXANB REEHE
issued share capital of Good Chain (an associated FiE (CEZ—F-B/\BAIAHE
company before 8 June 2021 (refer to Note 22)), RE) 70%NWEETRAE GE2REME
which is principally engaged in the provision of 22) T ERERESHB R
fintech solutions and services business. B R ARTEHE

BEAGB BUWRBEEFERBEN

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets

acquired and goodwill are as follows: BT
Year ended
31 December
2021
BE
+-B=+—H
ILEFE
HK$’000
FHT
Purchase consideration (Note (a)(ii) BENRE (stai))
— Cash paid —BfRE 12,011
— Fair value of 30% equity interest of — R E AR Z 4F HE30% A 2
Good Chain accounted for using the rEFEE
equity method 7,090
19,101

RWERREARENRE S D BTHE
30%BRIERATERBI (A EMETEE

The fair value of the 30% equity interest of Good Chain as
at date of acquisition as part of the consideration paid was
valued by an independent valuer.

SRR IR 0 (P AR ERBNE AT o
HARIWERIEFHENRGFHENKRE R E
EE—F+A=+—HIFERKRSE
W REDHNEREREARNRIEHE
B PR EAY%33,555,000/87T ©

Upon completion of the acquisition, Good Chain became
a subsidiary of the Group. It was accounted for as a
deemed disposal of the investment in Good Chain, with a
resulting gain of approximately HK$3,555,000 on deemed
disposal of an investment accounted for using the equity
method recognised in consolidated income statement
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35 ERSH®

(@) Acquisition of Good Chain (Continued) (@) UaRBYFHE (&)

(i) Summary of acquisition of Good Chain (Continued)
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the
acquisition are as follows:

() WRELFHERIBIE ()

HW RN EERSENT !

Year ended

31 December

2021

BHE

+ZRA=+—H

IEEFE

Fair value

REE

HK$'000

FET

Cash and cash equivalents HERREEBY 1
Trade receivables FEUWAR X 14
Other current assets HEmeEE 79
Other financial assets at amortised cost BEEN AT E EthEmMEE 3,603
Property, plant and equipment Y EN YR 53
Intangible assets BLEE 8,049
Trade payables, other payables and accruals FE{TRRRR ~ EANFEIRRIR R E SRR (366)
Deferred income tax liabilities IRELEFRISIREE (2,012)
Net identifiable assets acquired BERHAEERE 9,414
Less: Non-controlling interests T JEERRE = (2,165)
Add: Goodwill m:meE 11,852
Net assets acquired BWEEEFE 19,101

The goodwill is attributable to the expected synergies
from combining operations of Good Chain and the
fintech solutions and services business. It will not be
deductible for tax purposes.

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in
an acquired entity either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. This decision
is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. For the
non-controlling interests in Good Chain, the Group
elected to recognise the non-controlling interests at
its proportionate share of the acquired net identifiable
assets.

FERARGHEEFRELEHBE
RT3 BB R RFFBITAHA T R R FE o H
WA BT EAR TR0 ©

FERRATERREBGLEREER
Bl R E AR ER IR EREm L5
BREWBERERYIFIEREL - ZOR
ERTHIZ BRI U B B ZE (R Y o RUIS 4 82
BUIFERER M S > A EREFRHE
RIS EW BRI ) B = 3 E R BE

DI o
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35 EHEH®
(@) Acquisition of Good Chain (Continued) (a) WahBHFsE (48)
(i) Purchase consideration — cash outflow for the (i) FEECIB—UFBI##AIIE < 7t

acquisition of Good Chain

Year ended
31 December
2021
BE
&
+=R=+—H
LEE
HK$'000
FET
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, WL FE M A BRI ER M
net of cash acquired NEREER/RE
Cash consideration HEAE 12,011
Less: Cash acquired B BERRE M
Net outflow of cash — investing activities IR H P RE— L& IAE) 12,010
(b) Acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia Technology Co. Ltd (b) WEBIERZRHKEFRAR (MERZE
(“Beijing Xuanjia”) B)
(i) Summary of acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia () WHEILRZFHIHZE
On 7 July 2021, the Group acquired 60% of the AT —FLATH REERE
issued share capital of Beijing Xuanjia, which is IEREZFO0RNEEITRA ZHE
principally engaged in the provision of payment ENERMUINRFEIEBRSEE
processing solutions business. e
Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets BERB BHBEEFEREEN
acquired and goodwill are as follows: BT
HK$’000
FHET
Purchase consideration (Note (b)(ii) BENE Wazwnrim)
— Cash paid —BfHE 3,603
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia Technology Co. Ltd

35 EHEH @

(b) WEILRZXBRKBRAE (IERE

(“Beijing Xuanjia”) (Continued) B (@)
(i) Summary of acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia (Continued) () IR ZFHIBZE (&)
The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the FWEmRZNEERBENT :
acquisition are as follows:
Fair value
ATE
HK$'000
FHT
Cash and cash equivalents RERRETEEY 662
Other current assets HtREhEE 211
Intangible assets BLEE 4,136
Other payables and accruals HA B RIE R ESTRIA (961)
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFAISI B A (1,034)
Net identifiable assets acquired B ERHAEERE 3,014
Less: Non-controlling interests B SRR (1,206)
Add: Goodwill IR 1,795
Net assets acquired BWEEETE 3,603

The goodwill is attributable to the expected synergies
from combining operations of Beijing Xuanjia and the
payment processing solutions business. It will not be
deductible for tax purposes.

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in
an acquired entity either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. This decision
is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. For the
non-controlling interests in Beijing Xuanjia, the Group
elected to recognise the noncontrolling interests at its
proportionate share of the acquired net identifiable
assets.

FERAR S HEEIRZR R
R A BRIERR T BEBTRRBEY
& o EL A AT TR IR R

FERBRATENREGLEREER

Rl RIE AR ER IR R B L
SRR EWBERENIFERER &R
RTIDZE R BEEAE(FH - B IER
ZRPIFERERMS > AEEERE
RERGEWEE A EEZENLL
BIREEB I i A o
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35 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 35 EBEH @
(b) Acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia Technology Co. Ltd (b) WEIERZBAHKEFRAR (MERZE
(“Beijing Xuanjia”) (Continued) B)) (@)
(ii) Purchase consideration — cash outflow for the (i) BEE—INEILRZFHNEDT
acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia i}
Year ended
31 December
2021
BE
+-R=+—H
ILEE
HK$’000
FHT
Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, W EM B A BRI IR M
net of cash acquired NEREER/RE
Cash consideration HERE 3,603
Less: Cash acquired W BERRE (662)
Net outflow of cash — investing activities R HFEE— R EEH 2,941
There were no acquisition in the year ended 31 RB&EZZ-_ZTF+"_A=+—H1Lt
December 2020. FETRERKESE
36 PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36 5 HE—FHIBATE
On 15 December 2021, Megahunt HK entered into W_E_—F+_A+EHH  HKAEEHSE
share transfer agreements with certain purchasers (the FEXR (DRABEE R STILRG FE R
“Megahunt Purchasers”), pursuant to which Megahunt Bt KB BEBRARERENMERE
HK has conditionally agreed to dispose of an aggregate of BHEHM20%PVEETREA BRAEAARE
approximately 20% of the issued share capital of Megahunt at 208,727,0007T (HEE1149254,647,000787T) °Jk
an aggregate consideration of RMB208,727,000 (equivalent to HIEEERCVEREERRESIRERES
approximately HK$254,647,000). The Megahunt Purchasers Bhx ARG (RERER) ~RESEHR
include XEERREBIRERECR X (BRE®) RAaBEEERED) -RELERRABEHE
("REER)RECERRGBEE (BRER) RELE (BEREH) EREECHEAEELE (BRE
MiEaBtzE (BREHE) andRKEEEREEEEE (AR ) o STRPTE R EERER > RERPIK
&%) . Upon completion of all share transfer agreements, the 18 M m A FH4965.73 %3 E 4945.73% > B JK
Group's interest in Megahunt will decrease from approximately HIEERTBAERLANNE LS > LR AR
65.73% to approximately 45.73% and Megahunt will cease to FIEARRBMEE QT - EHE D RIHEER
be a subsidiary of the Company and will be accounted for as FHAIEE 2R o

an associated company of the Company. Completion of each
of the share transfer agreements is not inter-conditional to each
other.
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36 PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

On 15 December 2021, Wonder Pax has also entered into
a share transfer agreement with XKiEZ&ES, pursuant to
which Wonder Pax has conditionally agreed to dispose of an
aggregate of approximately 3.64% of the issued share capital
of Megahunt. Upon completion of the relevant share transfer
agreements entered into by Megahunt HK and Wonder Pax,
Megahunt will be owned as to 8% by KE&ZS. On the same
day, K/EES and a limited partnership established by certain
management team members of Megahunt to hold interest in
Megahunt (the “Management Platform Company”) entered into
certain side letters in connection to the share transfer, pursuant
to which KEZZ% could request Management Platform
Company to repurchase all or part of the Megahunt's shares
held by K:#Z&Z under certain conditions, with Megahunt
acting as the guarantor for such potential share repurchase.
The guarantee shall terminate on 31 December 2022. As at 31
December 2021, as the share transfer to K/Z&E5 were not yet
complete, such side letters were not yet effective.

As at 31 December 2021, transfer of an aggregate of
approximately 11.63% of the issued share capital of Megahunt
at an aggregate consideration of RMB116,364,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$142,324,000) has been completed. The
Group expected the the transfer of remaining of 8.37% of the
issued share capital of Megahunt to be completed during the
year ending 31 December 2022. Consequently, the associated
assets and liabilities of Meghunt and its subsidiary (together
the “Disposal Group”) were presented as held for sale in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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36 oHE—RMEBAT @

RZE_—F+-FA+HH BEQEFEH
KEBEZFIURMDEE RS BRI B EQE
EERGRREHERMIEEZE BITRAGHEL
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RARR D ERIRER  KAIBEERR K EESE
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B EMIFERANEEREN—BERE
B ((BBEERT)) MROEEILET
MIeR 3R RIZESAREEREBFEE AT
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#116,364,0007c (FEEH249142,324,000787T) &
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EREERBBEN A B RERANZIAIFE
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36 PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 36 EPDHE—REMBATE @

The Group’s sales of information security chips and solutions HEEERELEEINEEZETR KBRT
business is engaged by the Disposal Group. The above disposal HEBHE LB EBNEBYHREER
constituted a discontinued operation under HKFRS 5, and MM BRIEREERS AILEEZE2 TR K
accordingly, sales of information security chips and solutions R F REBHENKNPB2RA R LEE
business are reported in the current period as a discontinued ES R
operation.
(a) Details of the partial disposal of Megahunt @@ B HEIRMIEERNFE
For the
year ended
31 December
2021
BHE_T_—F&
+ZRA=+—H
IEEFE
HK$'000
FTER
Proceeds received EWFriERIA 142,324
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests BRI R (39,197)
Add: proportionate share of accumulated currency I : #ELBIDEM Rt IR E Z58
translation differences re-attributed EMBAFERETD
to non-controlling interests 926
Gain on partial disposal of Megahunt REMEEEENE D HE
recognised in other reserves JEEIEE W 104,053
In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended RBEZT_—F+"A=+—HILEFE
31 December 2021, net cash inflow for partial disposal ZEHREREREBRA B HENRTR
of HK$128,552,000 represents proceeds received of A$EE128,552,0007 015 B W AT RIE
HK$142,324,000, less capital gains tax of HK$13,772,000. 142,324,000 70 B EAF1EH13,772,000
BT
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36 PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 36 ZPQHE—RIMBAE @

(b) Financial performance and cashflow information of (bh) BERUEKELEENMBERAKRIRERN
discontinued operation 28K
The financial performance and cash flow presented are for BE_Z_—FR-ZEZZF+ZA

the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. —t+—HIEFEEZHERBRIREREE

262

Hlgn e
2021 2020
HK$:000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue PN 454,480 298,753
Cost of sales i & R (271,030) (201,453)
Gross profit E7 183,450 97,300
Other income EhUg A 14,137 9,788
Selling expenses HHERS (13,000) (11,430)
Administrative expenses ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ (115,650) (81,203)
Credit impairment loss EERERFE (912) (4,915)
Operating profit gl 68,025 9,540
Finance costs BRE R A (385) (362)
Profit before income tax IRFRS R AnER 67,640 9,178
Income tax expense T8> (6,340) (1,668)
Profit from discontinued operation BRI ST 61,300 7,510
Exchange difference on translation of MEBEKRIEREEBUHRE
the financial statements of EEXCERER
discontinued operation 7,957 18,775
Total comprehensive income BRLEREEBZ2H
from discontinued operation A 4E%E 69,257 26,285
Profit from discontinued operation UTREBRILEEETR
attributable to: P | I
— Owners of the Company e VNSIEZSUN 40,293 5,234
— Non-controlling interests —JFERE D 21,007 2,276
61,300 7,510
Total comprehensive income from UTREBARIEREERE
discontinued operation attributable to: 2 EUXA48%8 :
— Owners of the Company e YNCIEZSUN 45,523 17,164
— Non-controlling interests —JFERE D 23,734 9,121
69,257 26,285
Net cash inflow/(outflow) KEFEHMRER/A (RE)
from operating activities R 15,955 (14,286)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing TQ%%@JE'\]E% Crd) /7 H/A
activities B 3 (38,108) 56,649
Net cash outflow from financing activities B4E EENBIIR 7 HIF R (2,057) (1,998)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HEEFREEZRE
generated by the Disposal Group GRiZL) e hni3%E (24,210) 40,365
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36 PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

(c) Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as
held-for-sale
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held
for sale in relation to the discontinued operation as at 31

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

36 HBoHE—RIMBAT @

(0 DEARKFHEZHEEREERSE
(E
A BT —F+-A=+—HHEBKILK
EEBARMEMOBAFEREZEE

December 2021. REEmTeo
Assets classified as held-for-sale DIEBIFIEHEZ EE
As at
31 December
2021
iy
+=ZB=+—H
HK$000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y EN ey ] 43,481
Right-of-use assets ERESE 5,837
Intangible assets mLBEE 14,347
Other financial assets at amortised cost BB A2 AthS &S E 1,703
Inventories E& 156,771
Other current assets HtmsEE 41,813
Amount due from an investment accounted WM EREARZIRE Z B
for using the equity method 35,501
Trade and bills receivables FEUWLER FR A FE WL 2% 78,910
Cash and cash equipments RERIREFBY) 40,742
Total assets of the Disposal Group classified PDEAFFHENHEER ZEERE
as held for sale 419,105

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held-

B BRI EL & BEBFEARE

for-sale &

As at
31 December
2021
iy
—E-—F
+-A=+—H
HK$’000
FAET
Lease liabilities HEaE 5,879
Trade payable FEATBRR 19,664
Other payables and accruals H AN (T TRIA K FE 5T RIE 44,482
Current income tax liabilities BRERFREIREE 8,121
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R £ M B A B 2718 4,657

Total liabilities of the Disposal Group classified DR FEHENHEEER - BELEE
as held for sale 82,803

The accumulated foreign exchange gains recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to the
discontinued operation as at 31 December 2021 were

HK$21,156,000.

RIE_—F+"HBA=+—H> BRILK
EERNEMEE NG PR R 5T INE
Uz 221,156,000 7T ©
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37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
(used in)/generated from operations

37 ARERERMNE

@ PFRFRISIRATERERLEES FRA) Fr
SR ZHIR

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
& —EEF
HKS$/000 HK$000
FTERT BT
Profit before income tax from BRFTISIR AT &R
Continuing operations REgax% 3,753,267 880,618
Discontinued operation BRIPREET 67,640 9,178
Profit before income tax including PRETSIGAT AR
discontinued operation  (BEERIEREER) 3,820,907 889,796
Adjustments for: HE \ N
Depreciation of property, plant and M2 BB R BT E
equipment o 233,974 222,762
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 29,053 32,566
Depreciation of investment properties SEMETE 173 205
Amortisation of intangible assets B AE#SE 3,519 1,925
Impairment loss of intangible assets BVEEZRERE - 1,515
Net fair values gains on financial assets at ~ #AFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss THEEATERGPEHE (181,258) (245,190)
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant HENE -BERZEZ
and equipment Wra) /R51E (202) 86
Write off of property, plant and equipment iS5 « B 55 Fe 3% 4 2,327 26,156
Provision/(reversal of provision) FEERE/ HERR)
for inventories . ) 7,078 (2,740)
Employees’ incentive programme —fEN B AR 2 R EREE
of a subsidiary . . - 40,191
Share of results of investments accounted ~ FEMEETEARZBEZ X8
for using the equity method ) . (352,333) (301,512)
Loss on deemed acquisition BB REE—E
and dilution of interest of an investment D@ EARZKEZ
accounted for using e S SN L
the equity method, net . L L 9,837 1,044
Gains on deemed disposals of investments — fR{EHEURTEARZIZE 7 W
accounted for using the equity method . ~ (2,861,475) -
Credit impairment loss EERERE 113,946 67,176
Interest income FEWA (57,612) (70,975)
Finance costs & A 70,973 63,722
Operating profit before working capital EEETEHE 2 K2 HH
changes B 838,907 726,727
Increase in bank deposits SRIT UL - (5,763)
Increase in inventories EFEIEm (59,094) (15,456)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEBR M e R BRI 1)
bills receivables : 30,651 (45,790)
Increase in loan receivables %Uﬁ%%’)}tﬂﬂ . o (1,246,582) (663,347)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets ~ ZHEHEM A2 HMEMEE
at amortised cost gm el (8,154) 39,304
Increase in other current assets HvszEsem (26,842) (12,287)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from FEW LUt A ABRZ B 2 A
investments accounted for (gm) /rL
using the equity method N i (15,301) 1,297
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due R AR E AR IR E 2 RUIB
to investment accounted for using W) B
the equity method N (26,124) 12,870
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables, & {3 BR 7% FE (Y R 18~ ST (Y525
ayables for payment processing solutions B IR 2 EH 2 FE(TIE
Eusiness and other payables and accruals LAse B {708 e fE SR
GRD) /180 (153,359) 161,902
Cash (used in)/generated from operations feg () /FiislRs (665,898) 199,457
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37 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 37 &EZ&8HRERERMET @
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals (b) REEFRERD  HEWE - HBEKRR
of property, plant and equipment comprise: HRRSRIAELE :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAiEE

2021 2020
—B_—fF “BCEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHT
Net book amount (Note 15) BRESE (BaE15) 3,536 462
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, — HEWE~FEKZHEH 2 W~
plant and equipment (#518)
— Continuing operations —FEKEER 204 12
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREER (2) (98)
202 (86)
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEYIE  BE RRES
plant and equipment 3,738 376
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEIZFEEXEZEEHIR
activities
This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising REHIEZ 2NN FERETHEEZEE
from financing activities for each of the years presented. #go
Borrowing  Lease liabilities Total
(B HERE A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FERT
As at 1 January 2020 R_E_TF—HF—H 5,577 59,310 64,887
Cash flows Rene (5,623) (39,338) (44,961)
Addition NE - 30,017 30,017
Exchange realignment ERBE 46 3,489 3,535
As at 31 December 2020 RCEFFFA=+—H - 53,478 53,478
As at 1 January 2021 R _E_—F—F—H - 53,478 53,478
Cash flows Rene 2,412 (30,185) (27,773)
Addition e - 13,068 13,068
Liabilities classified as held for sale DEAFIELREZ &R - (5,879) (5,879)
Exchange realignment R R 34 1,094 1,128
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+ZB=+—H 2,446 31,576 34,022
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance
of a subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a
modernisation project of up to HK$60,000,000 and claims
of infringement of third party’s intellectual property right. As
at 31 December 2021, the Company did not recognise any
liability in relation to the Performance Guarantee Agreement.
The Directors consider the possibility of reimbursement is not
probable (2020: same).

In 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt, Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega Hunt
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianjin Mega Hunt”) (the
“2019 Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2019 Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide Megahunt, Mega
Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega Hunt with a guarantee to repay
their due and unsettled debts payable to a supplier, should
they fail to honour their obligations of up to US$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$78,000,000). In respect of
the further expansion of order scale, the Company entered into
a new guarantee agreement dated 22 April 2021 (the “2021
Guarantee Agreement”) with the same counterparties. The 2019
Guarantee Agreement was terminated on the same day and the
entirety of the Company’s obligation and liability thereunder,
if any, was effectively transferred to the 2021 Guarantee
Agreement. Pursuant to the 2021 Guarantee Agreement, the
Company agreed to provide Megahunt, Mega Hunt HK and
Tianjin Mega Hunt with a guarantee to repay their due and
unsettled debts, should they fail to honour their obligation
of up to US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000,000). As at 31 December 2021, the Company
did not recognise any liability in relation to the 2021
Guarantee Agreement. The Directors consider the possibility of
reimbursement is not probable (2020: same).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt and an independent manufacturer (“OEM”)
(the “2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2020
OEM Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall guarantee
to repay Megahunt’s due and unsettled debts of up to
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,000,000) owed to the
OEM which are incurred in relation to such manufacturing
orders Megahunt placed against the OEM should it cease or fail
to honour its payment obligations. As at 31 December 2021,
the Company did not recognise any liability in relation to the
2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement. The Directors consider the
possibility of reimbursement is not probable (2020: same).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

38
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 3

1 December 2021, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in

British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held (2020:

same).

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except for those disclosed below and other than those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other significant transaction
with related parties during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: same).

39 FAERRS

A— i —

[R—=—

—F+"HB=+—H> %Eﬁﬁ
BE5EM AL ZRich Global Lmned?‘?’éﬁzlK
22.22%R217 © B8R T 77.78%R& 15 E!a%ﬁ)\i)%i
BFE CZET2FE HR) -

@ HRERZXS
bR N X ERE e dr & B B R R HL A &P
DFFEBEEN RBE-_S - —F+_8
—t+—HLEFE rERTERRERE
THMEBEARS (CE2ZE MR ©

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2021 2020
—B_—f S
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHT
Transactions with PAX Global, an BBE N HBRK RS
associated company:
— Rental income (Note i) —MEUWA (H73Ei) 1,601 1,493
— Purchase of electronic payment —BEEB T NER BW:Ei)
products (Note ii) 26,220 38,595
— Sales of mag-stripe card security — I E AR RINB RIS A
decoder chips (Note iii) (i1 &%iii) 118,332 76,607
Transactions with Cloopen, an RN _E_—F_AhBZAHA
associated company before Bt = A BlCloopenZ X 53 -
9 February 2021:
—Technical and support services — Rk ERBER (Hstiv)
fee (Note iv) 1,570 28,857
— Provision of platform operation —RMFTaEERY Watv)
services (Note v) 2,048 7,190
Notes: Hiat -
(i)  Rental income from an associated company was charged at a (i) RE—REBHEARZHESWASAREFHE
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties. R < [E7E B FRURER »

(i)

(iii)

Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company on 19
December 2012. The terms and conditions of the framework
agreement have been renewed on 3 December 2015, 5
December 2018 and 23 December 2021 respectively.

Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated
company on 31 December 2016. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement have been renewed on 30 December
2019.

i) BEEFEMERSERAEER—BHEA

BN 2 —CF+ A+ MBI ZERBE
FREUFR AR EITR 5 o IR R Z AR

BEEDRN _E—HAF+_A=H - ZF—N
F+_RERRE_—F+"B°+=H&
HE

(i) SHEBMF-RINEZRESA HIREAEE SRR
BEARNR T R"ETA=+—H5JuZ
HEZR TR E P SR RURAR M ETTR 5 - ZIERIB
FZBERREHFER _E—hE+"A=+H
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  Technical and support services fee were charged pursuant to the
terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered
into by the Group and an associated company on 9 May 2016.

(v)  Provision of platform operation services were transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the contracts entered into
by the Group and an associated company on 28 September 2018
and 1 November 2018, respectively.

Balances with investments accounted for using the
equity method

GLAE RiEd (TS

39 FAERRS @

@ HREAEHLZRZ
Mifat - (8

(%)

iv) BEMEZERBEDHRESEREZ—EHER
BN B —RERRNBI LR
PRRR B AR 0B

v RHUTaEERFHREFAEEE—FEBER
BARZE-N\FENAZF+NHRZZ—N\F
+—B—B2RET L2 EHIPT R R R A&

725

(b) MUETEARZIRE Z R

As at 31 December

R+-A=+—H
2021 2020
25 —ETTEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Amounts due from associated FEUEE R B FIE
companies (2021: HK$35,501,000 (ZZZ—4% 135,501,000
is included in the assets classified as &7t BIEDEAFELHEZ
held for sale) (Note 36) (Note i) BE) (Watze) (Wizzi) 35,501 19,957
Amounts due to associated companies FETE#E A B FIA (H172i)
(Note i) 6,304 43,936
Dividend receivable from PAX Global, FEWH & AT B BIRkZRRE
an associated company (Note i) (fatii) - 36,400
Note i: As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, these balances are Hiati: RZE2EFR-ZB-—F+ZA=+—
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and repayable B ZFEHRAUARBE BERE
on demand. et BREEREE
Note ii: On 8 December 2020, PAX Global resolved to declare and Kiatiic: RZE-FF+"_/B+/\R> B8RKER
pay a special dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share to FERRRE RS HIRE SR EER
shareholders. The amount was subsequently received in the 0.10787T » A RFER B AR S HAULET
current reporting period.
Key management compensation 0 FEEEEZHE
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, key BE_ZE_—EFER_Z_ZTF+_A
management compensation is equivalent to the directors’ —t+—HLEE - FTEEEEHERE

emolument as disclosed in Note 41.

IRMyEEA PR EE 2 B o
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 40 ATz EEBERREEEH

THE COMPANY

FARZEERER

Balance sheet of the Company

As at 31 December

270

®W+—-B=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F TECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET TFAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties LEYE 1,279 1,536
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18,954 19,714
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZKRE 713,189 713,189
Investment in an associated company A —REEEAB ZKE 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERHEELE 993,192 994,209
Current assets RENEE
Other current assets HiwRsh&EE 939 864
Other financial assets at amortised cost IZ#IHA AT E 2
HEmEE 200 36,606
Financial asset at fair value through BATESABEmZ
profit or loss TREE 1,103 1,036
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B AR I8 522,405 392,027
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIEEEEY 511,675 530,065
Total current assets MEEEHEE 1,036,322 960,598
Total assets BEEME 2,029,514 1,954,807
EQUITY g3k
Capital and reserves attributable ZK/L}_J BEARGEERR
to owners of the Company f#fE
Share capital [iicZN 6,942 6,942
Reserves G Note (a)
Bt @) 1,314,201 1,304,585
Total equity R 4BEE 1,321,143 1,311,527
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities mEIAE
Other payables and accruals HAMFE (T TRIA K FE 5t RRIE 34,435 28,820
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NI E =] 659,136 599,660
Current income tax liabilities BPERPRISIREE 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities RENBEEEE 708,371 643,280
Total liabilities GffR®E . 708371 ______ 643,280 _
Total equity and liabilities EnkaBesE 2,029,514 1,954,807
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company

BEEH (E) BRAR

S —EFR

40 AT ZEERBERRFRED @

AR ZEERER (B

Mita): ZARZ EHEED

Share Contributed Other Accumulated

premium Surplus reserves loss Total

(Note)
iR iEE BRER Hithtfs ZEti5E At

(Hizt)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHER TR TR THET
At 1 January 2021 KZE-—-%—A—H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (59,589) 1,304,585
Profit for the year vl - - - 9,616 9,616
At 31 December 2021 RZZ2-—-%+-A=+—H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (49,973) 1,314,201
At 1 January 2020 KZE-%&5—A—H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (84,524) 1,279, 650
Profit for the year FREF] - - - 24,935 24,935
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-25+”-A=+—H 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (59,589) 1,304,585

Note: sz

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company
may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under
certain circumstances.

FTRBZ BHEFEREEEMEBZNBARKRNEA
TEBBAABMILZRZ BETROEEZ S R
BRE-NN—FREE RBAIEETELTHEHR

BRI RRER A E R R EH K e
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41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 41 EEZEMRiER (GFEL LR

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (58622%) $3831F% - AT HEES
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE FEERD $RH (55622GE) REA L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE HRANERELIEE)

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EERITHEZZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BREERITHRIZMESEHIINT :

is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021: BHE_Z-—HF+"A=t+—HILEEE:

Emoluments

paid o

receivable

in respect of

director’s other

services in

Remuneration - connection with
paid or the management

Employer’s receivable  of the affairs of
Estimated ~ contribution in respect of  the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of ~to a retirement accepting office ~ or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
REFANER
FRRAEHE

HRREE ANFHZEM

RftiERl  EIZBK AEZZER REHZERN
e EE HETEA RERN (SAREE  BUHEMR  SRbEE S Gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TiEn TR FER FiEn TiEn TER FER TR TEn

Executive directors WiTES
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 1,080 - 1,500 - - - - - 2,580
Kui Man Chun REE (1B

(Chief Executive Officer) - 2,520 7,400 - - 18 - - 9,938
Xu Wensheng wyE - 2,827 7,200 - - 18 - - 10,045
Li Wenjin FXE - 2,160 7,200 - - 18 - - 9,378
Xu Chang Jun #HeE - 2511 6,600 - - 18 - - 9,129

Independent Non-Executive BUATES

Directors
Tam Chun Fai EiRE 220 - 350 - - - - - 570
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 220 - 350 - - - - - 570
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard £33 220 . 350 . - - - - 570
Li Heguo (Note) THE () 9 - 160 - - - - - 259
Total a3 1,839 10,018 31,110 - - 7 - - 43,039
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41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

BEEH (E) BRAR

41 EEZENRER REEATEA
(58622%) 383X 2T WEES
FZZEHED R (F622GE) REH L

S —EFR

HARAIERIEHNE) @

@ EFRTHAEHZME (&

BLEERTBHRHBZMERIIWT : @)

BE-E-TE+-ASt+—HIEEE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's other
services in
Remuneration  connection with
paidor - the management
Employer's receivable  of the affairs of
Estimated contribution ~inrespect o the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of ~ to a retirement  accepting office  or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HESEHER
FARAEME
HERZRE ARFHAM
ARkl EXZRM%  AEEZEN  REHZENT
ik i3 KB BERE hGENEE BUHAER  SELEE FEUEN S fit
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tin T#n Thn Thn TEn Thn Thn Tin TEn
Executive directors yirES
Cheung Yuk Fung REE 1,080 - 1,300 - - - - - 2,380
Kui Man Chun REE (TH4H)

(Chief Executive Officer) - 2,520 6,200 - - 18 - - 8738
XuWensheng BE - 2,780 6,000 - - 18 - - 8,798
Li Wenjin FXE - 2,160 6,000 - - 18 - - 8,178
Xu Chang Jun “EE 2473 5400 - - 18 - - 7,801
Independent Non-Executive BUATES

Directors
Tam Chun Fai Bk 220 - 200 - - - - - 420
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2R 220 - 200 - - - - - 420
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RigE 220 - 200 - - - - - 420
Total Bt 1,740 9,933 25,500 - 72 - - 37245

Note: Li Heguo was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in July 2021.

Mat . FMER -_Z-_—FtBEZERERDE

MIRFITEE
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41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing in favour of directors,
or controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2020: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2020: Nil).

41 BERZEF RiED EERATRG

(3

£6225) F3831% - A8 (KEBEEH

e ER) R (F622GE) hEH L
MARAIERIEHNE) @

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EFRNKER
ﬂiﬁq R EE AT g WEUE RN
B CEZZF | o

EFMMERN
R BEEF AR & WU B
B CEZF |-

MENERERBAB=FZHZRE

KBE-S-—F+-B=t—BL%E
B A AR LFRERES BB OO
E=HLMRECEDE W

ERUER - ZFERZRENZER
REBRARTAZER EEMKEE
thxxZmZER

REEE-_—F+"HB=1+—HIHF
Erﬁﬁﬂ%?ﬁ#%%$zm?ﬂi@
MEEERASmAZER EERRE
HRHZ CEZEF ) o

EENRG ZHRANZEAEDR

BRPFIEEE SN AR B ER FRHNEN
EEBEAENARDEENETERE
HEEEEEMNEA T AR AEEER
BRZEARG ZHREH (CET
FIE) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Beijing VBill Commercial
Factoring Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Group) has obtained
approval from the Shanghai Stock Exchange for issuance of
asset-backed securities (the “ABS”) in the PRC under an asset-
backed securities scheme (the “ ABS Scheme”). The ABS are
backed by the Group’s loan receivables and administrated
under a trust interests. The maximum issue size of the ABS
Scheme is RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,230,000,000) and the ABS can be issued in not more
than 15 phases by 31 December 2023.

On 27 January 2022, the first phase of the ABS Scheme with
an issue size of RMB309,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$380,070,000) was established.

for o A 5 ¥ R BT

42 HREWPWREIA

REERR ERETHEEREBEERAR (K
EBZHBAE) BENTEELBESZS
HERBEESFFIEFE (BEESZFSEE
) BITEESGES (BEXRRS) o BE
TIREESFHETERE N EENERERE
FhER BELFESFTENEITRE LR
# A ER1,000,000,0007c (HEEFL491,230,000,000
B AR 2 =F+"A=+—HrlE*r
BE158A% T o

A CECCF-—BZ+EHCBITEEAAR
#309,000,0007t (FHEH2%9380,070,000787T) BY
BESIFESEE MM
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the BB ZUHFRRLIZERBEREIN ZA
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five EEBARENBREESAhizaEERES
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements ~EEHEESEMZWT !

and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- ZBIZF Z2-hE ZBE-N\FE Z—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET TET TR FET

Results E$5

Profit/(loss) attributable to ZN/NCIEZ 2PN

owners of the Company wHl,/ (F8) 3,521,526 656,685 569,111 278,175 346,144
Assets and liabilities BERAR

Total assets BERE 10,818,808 9,717,099 8,149,068 6,632,517 5,657,451
Total liabilities BER%E (3,327,814)  (3,349,595)  (2,870,556)  (2,061,242)  (1,493,906)

Capital and reserves attributable to AT EH A
the owners of the Company B KE 6,423,304  5542,066 4,687,048 4378213 4,059,342
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